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b meLennium cottection M M coLLECTION

Our Miltennium and Grand The M Coltection showcases

Millermium hotels offer timeless stylish and vibraht design with

elegance and personalised, strong locol Influince. offering

gracious service to the guests a new, urban, and .

seasoned globat traveller. stimulating lodging experience.

They are brilltant for corporate ) These convenlently keated

guaests and groups as they are ) ‘ hotels are colourtul, lively. and

seen as a greot place to meet "{ i technologically equipped with

ond network in the world's most L ¥ the aim of helping guests tap

fascinating cities. . ' il nidmBilfmore Hotel into their own creotive and
tos Angelgs 'wr adventurous spirts.

A\ Lene's coLLecTioN

Leng’s Collection Is o legacy

of our founders, the Leng

generotion of the Kwek family.

Unique. outhentic and elegant,

these iconkc hotels offer guests

a most distinctive hospitality

experience and provide the

sense of being port of a club.

They ore beautifully situated.

characterful properties In

some of the world's most

desirable destingtions.

| (C corroRNE colLEcTION

comprises comf and competitivelty priced hotels, whire friends ond
families are welcomed with o warm smite and helpful service, As with alt of
The Bailey’s Hotei London  § our properties, Copthome hatels are in locations that put ovr guests close to
< — the heart of their chosen destinations. \
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Underlying hotel performance was flat last
KWEK LENG BENG year. Foreign exchange gains relating to
Chairman hotel revenue totalled £39m arising from
weaker sterling, which is our reparting
currency, against currencies in the
regions where we operate. The increase
in 2017 hotel revenue was attributable
mainly to a full year of trading at two of
our hatels: Millennium Hilton New York
One UN Plaza, which re-opened post-
refurbishment in September 2016, and
Grand Millennium Auckland, which joined
the Group in September 2016.

Ferformance was impacted by industry-
wide factors, including pelitical instability
in Karea, the unabated growth in
popularity amongst customers of online
travel agents and alternative lodging
options; and rising costs, especially

in Londen, where Brexit is impacting

a hospitality labour market already
affected by minimum wage legislation.
Our New York business will take some
time to restore profitability in light of

a strong union operating environment,
union-driven wage increases and the
continuing growth in reom supply.

The Group expects to make significant
capital investment for a needed
transformation to the repositioning

of our hotels so as to keep pace with
guest expectations. Increased expenditure
on both maintenance and product
improvement will therefore be necessary
for the Group to stay relevant and
competitive. We also remain alert to
opportunities to grow by acquisition.

1
kS

. : We respect the decision by shareholders
Source The Straits Times @ Singapore Press Holdings Limited Permission tequired for reproduction This in the recent lapsed offer by City

photo has been modified for Annual Report use Developments Limited.
‘ ‘ During 2017, the Group struggled to
make headway against a number of

) . ) challenges In New York Millennium
The Group expects to make significant capital investment for  Broadway continued to under-perform.
a needed transformation to the repositioning of cur hotels. whilst the recent operating transfer of ONE
UN to Hilton will take some time to yield
, ’ results The recent growth in local hotet

room inventory constrained our ability to
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Revenue

£1,008M
+89%

£1 064m £ Oném

£G26m
£826m £847m

2013 204 2015 2016 2017

RevPAR™

+3.2%
2016: £80.19

£147M
+36.1%
2016 £108M

2016 hgure shewn in constant currency

Financial statements Further information

increase room rates in Singapore, whilst
the performance of the other Asian hotels
was flot overall

Concerns about Brexit have affected cur
UK hotels especially in London, where
there were already pressures on labour
costs from a recent mimmum wage
increase More positively. our hotels in New
Zealand continued their recent run of good
RevPAR growth. reflecting higher visitor
numbers in the country. as well as the
inclusion of Grand Millenmum Auckland in
September 2016

Total revenue for the year increased by
£82m or 89% to £1,.008m (2016 £926m)
Hotel revenue contributed most of this
growth 1 e £66m REIT revenue increased
py £10m to £66m {2016 £56m) mainly
due to contributions from newly cequired
hotels Increased land bank sales in New
Zealand added £5m to total revenue

Pre-tax proht grew by 36 1% to E147m
(2016 £108m) Part of the increase

was driven by lower impairment losses
compared to the previous year and

the reversal of a £12m loen impairment
following the sale of the Group's interest in
its Thailand jeint venture, Fena, the owner
of Pullman Bangkok Grande Sukhumvit
{formerly Grand Millenmum Sukhumwit
Bangkok}

The Group's share of profit from joint
ventures and associates fell by £4mto
£22m (2016 £26m) The decrease was
principally due to a gain recognised by
First Sponsor Group Limited ("FSGL) in the
comparative year 2016 relating to a project
based in Dongguan, Ching

The Board recommends a final ordinary
dividend of 4 42p per share (2016 5 66p)
taking into account the Group's current cash
position and future capitel expenditure
requirements Together with the interim
ardinary dividend of 2 08p per share

(2016 2 08p). the totol ordinary dividend for
201715 6 50p per share (2016 774p)

Miltannium & Coptherne Hotels plc 5
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Subject to approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting to be held

on 4 May 2018, the finral dividend will be
paid on 11 May 2018 to shareholders on the
register on 16 March 2018

The Group refreshed its Board of Directors
during the year With Aloysius Lee having
retired as a Director and the Group Chief
Executive Ofhicer at the end of February
2017 and with Alexander Waugh and
Nicholas George stepping down from

the Board at last year's annual general
meeting, we welcomed Martin Leitch and
Christian de Charnaocé as Independent
Non-Executive Directors on 22 May and
16 August 2017 respectively Howard Wu,
who |oined the Board as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 17 February
2017, stepped down from the Board as of
3 August 2017 in order to take on executive
responsibllities within the Group

Following the annual general meeting

on 5 May 2017, His Excellency Shaukat
Aziz was appointed Senior Independent
Director. succeeding Nicholas George
Following these and other changes. the
compositions of the Audit, Nominations,
Risk and Remuneration Committees were
updated further, as explamed in the
Corporate Governance Statement starting
on page 40

in the first 31 days of troding in 2018, Group
RevPAR in constant currency increcsed by
3.6% New York up by 4 5%, Rest of Asia up
14 2%. Australasia up 10 3%, Rest of Europe
up 12% but London cown 3 2%, Singapore
down 2 0% and Regional US down 2.5%

Excluding Millennium Hotel Glasgow (116
rooms reduced te 60 rooms from July 2017},
M Social Aucklond {opened October 2017)
and Millennium Hotel London Mayfarr
(refurbishment commenced in November
2017). Like-for-like Group RevPAR increased
by 4 0% with London up 09%. Rest of
Europe up 0 2% and Australasia up by
99%
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BUSINESS REVIEW
AND STRATEGY

BUSINESS MODEL

STRATEGY

STRATEGY IN ACTION

Qur business model generates earnings predominately through
acquiring and owning hotels and managing them profitably

over the long term. This distinctive owner/operator model allows

a significant proportion of hotel revenue to flow directly to the
bottom line as profit and allows us to retain control over our
property assets. In some destinations, where real estate ownership
is less attractive for fiscal, legal or other reasans, we may operate
hotels under management contracts or franchise agreements or
through joint ventures.

Qur strategy is to maximise returns on shareholders’ capital,
whilst growing the business through asset acquisition, prudent
investment in the existing hotel portfolio and the development

of our people, processes and technology. Our strategic focus

has always been on prime locations within gateway cities -
destinations that naturally attract a large number of business and
leisure travellers.

Our strategic priorities in 2017 were to strengthen the Group's
ability to manage the change that is transforming global
hospitality markets, not least through the impact of “"disruptive”
technologies, and to tackle the specific challenges that we face in
certain markets.

We completed a review of the senior executive management
structure and created new leadership paositions in marketing and
sales, technology and human resources, whilst also strengthening
regional leadership.

The Board was focussed on re-positioning key hotels in the
global pertfolio, such as Millennium Hotel t ondon Mayfair, and
developing a strategy to restore profitability to our New York
business, which will take some time and investment to achieve.

The Group continued to review and streamline its corporate
processes, thereby aiding cost control, and sought to enhance
its capital efficiency. We also continved to develop our brand
presence, especiolly in the China market and the business travel
sector.
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Hotel operations

Hotel revenue increased by £66m or 81%
to £680m (2016 £814m) mamly because of
favourable foreign exchange movements
of £39m In constant currency, hotel
revenue grew by £27m or 3 2% due largely
to full-year contrnibutions frem two new and
refurbished properties in New York and
Auckland Otherwise hotel revenue was
Rat compared to last year

Group RevPAR increased by 79% and 3 2%
in reported currency and censtant currency
respectively Hotel gross operating margin
was slightly higher at 32 2% (2016 31 6%)

Developments

The Group recewved bulding permit
approval for the Yangdong development
project in Seoul on 25 January 2017
Construction 1s intended to commence after
fine-tuning the design for optimal efficiency

The Group continues tc review the project
cost and specification for a 263-room hotel
and a 250-unit residentiol apartment block
on its 35,717m? mixed use freehold iandsite
at Sunnyvale, California, and intends to
start construction in 2018 The Group may

Finangial statements Further information

modify certain aspects of the development,
which is anticipated to take about 18
months to complete after commencement
Final planning approvet for the project was
recewed in December 2016

Management continues to explore options
in relation to the freehold site cccupied by
the Millennium Hotel St Lowis, which was
closed in January 2014

Hotel refurbishments

Phased refurbishment work on Millennium
Hotel London Mayfair commenced in the

fourth quarter of 2017 and s scheduled

to complete in Q2 2019 Refurbishment of

Millennium Hetel London Knightsbridge is
planned to commence next year

Refurbishment of 260 deluxe guest rooms
in the Orchard Wing of the Orchard

Hotel Singapore has been re-scheduled
to commence in the second half of this
year to accommedate customer demand
Refurbishment is also planned for the
lobby area and F&B outlets at the ground
level Renovation of the hotel's Hua Ting
Restaurant, which started in August 2017, 1s
complete, with the focility re-opened on 7
December 2017

Millannivm & Copthorne Hotels plc 7
Annual Report & Accounts 2017

The final phase of the refurbishment of
Grand Millennium Kuala Lumpur, relating
to the guestrooms at levels 7 and 8, 1s
under review Guest rooms on levels 9 to 19
were completed i late 2016

In October 2017, the 190-room M Social
Auckland (previously known as Copthorne
Hotel Aucklond Harbourcity) was opened
and benefited from keen demand for the
hotel's innovative design, social spaces
and service ethos Initicl feedback from key
markets, ncluding international and New
Zealand business and leisure travellers has
been positive

Acquisitions

On 4 May 2017, COL Hospitality Trusts
("CDLHT") completed the acquisition of the
165-room The Lowry Hotel in Manchester
for a purchase consideration of £53m.

On 14 July 2017, CDLHT completed the
acquisition of an effective interest of 94 5%
in the 337-room Pullman Hotel Munich and
its office and retail compenents and the
fixtures, furniture and equipment used by
the hotel for a purchase consideration of
€101m (£89m)




8 Millennium & Copthorne Hotels ple
Annual Report & Accounts 2017

BUSINESS REVIEW

AND STRATEGY CONTINUED

On 1 February 2018, the Group

acquired The Waterfront Hotel in New
Plymouth, New Zealand, for a purchase
consideration of NZ$1lm (E6m) The
iconic 42-room hotel wili be rebranded o
Millennium hotel in Q2 of 2018

Disposals

The Group continues to engage with the
developer of Brmingham’s Paradise Circus
redevelopment scheme, under previously
agreed commercial arrangements,
regarding the closure and acquisition

by the developer of the Coptherne Hotel
Birmingham and possible acquisition by the
Group of an alternative site for development
of a new hotel within the scheme

In March 2017 Scottish Ministers approved
an order that aliows Network Rail
Infrastructure Limited ("Network Rail™)

to take permanently and to demolish

the 1970s-built. Sl-room extension of the
Millennium Hotel Glasgow, in connection
with the redevelopment of Queen Street
Station. In July 2017, 56 guestrooms were
permanently removed from the hotel

in cennection with the development

The property now has 60 guestrooms
compared to 116 previcusly

The Group is entitled to compensation,
which will either be negotiated with
Network Rail or settled at the Laonds
Tribunal Separation and other works
ansing from the order were completed

at the end of 2017, with democlition of the
extension anticipated to commence in Ql
2018 The Group 1s continuing to consider
its options with respect to the refurbishment
of the remaining hotel areas

On 11 january 2018, CDLHT completed
the divestment of two hotels n Austrolia.
the Mercure Brisbane and lbis Brisbane
for A$77m (F45m) to an Independent
third party Accordingly these investment
properties were reclossified as assets
held for sale on the bolance sheet as at
31 December 2017

I e T e —

Other Group operations

Joint ventures and ossociates contributed
£22m to profit in 2017 (2016 £26m) The
Group has an effective interest of 36% in
First Sponsor Group Limited ("FSGL™). which
is listed on the Singapore Exchonge ond
reports its results independently

On M january 2018, a partnership comprised
of a subsidiary of FSGL together with
subsidianies of COL and another substantial
sharehelder of FSGL acquired a 300-room
hotel currently operated by atenant as

Le Meridien Frankfurt for €79m (£70m),
excluding certain transaction related
expenses.

The Lowry Hotel.
Manchester

* Pullimgin Hotal Munict dnd
.office § Petail cymponents
Ce e e et -

On 1 February 2018, FSGL together with
four other co-investors acquired all the
issued shares of Hotelmaatschaopp
Rotterdam BV, which owns the 254-room
Hilton Rotterdam Hotel in the Netherlands.
for €51m (£45m) following the completion
of the transaction, FSGL has a 24 7%
interest in the acquired company

On 7 February 2018, the Group provided
an irrevecable undertaking to take up its
full entitlement of FSGLs proposed nghts
issue of new perpetual convertible capital
secunties for a total cost of $358m (£32m)
and a proportion of the excess rights not
subscribed by other shareholders for a cost
of up to S$31m (E17m)
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

We use a set of carefully selected key performance indicators
("KPIs") to monitor our success in executing our strategy set out on
page 6. These KPls are used to measure the Groups progress year-
on-year against those strategic priorities, and are set out below:

COST CONTROL
To ensure costs remain in line with

revenue movements through a
decentralised model, technological

FINANCIAL LEVERAGE
To ensure o sound finoncial base in

order to provide a solid platform for the
development and growth of the Group

GROWTH

To achieve profitable growth and improved
asset returns for our hospitality business
These are shown at constant rates of

exchange

Revenue per

enhancements to drive efficiencies
and rigerous monitering of spending

Available Room* Occupancy Gearing Net debt Operating profit Profit before tax
£ % :‘5 £m £m " £m 147
100 80 nap 7330 &00 107 150 150

ao1g 8278 850
&0 265 540 120 0/ 120 108
&0 0 2403
60 480 a0 %0
40 2
40 320 &0 60
a
20 o 160 30 30
2} 206 2017 0 06 201/ 0 6 2017 o] 2006 2007 o 016 2017 a 208 2017

Averoge room rate
multiplied by occupancy
percentage

Average
room rate* Hotel Revenue
£ £m
130 1183 11208 1000 sa0
814
100 800
80
s00
60
400
20
200
- =
[} 206 2017 0 016 2017

Revenue from room sales
divided by the number of
rocm nights sold

Basic earnings
per share

P

40 381

30 240
20

10

a e 2007

Percentage of rooms
avoilable for sole that
were actually sold to
our guests

Including room sales,
focd ond beverage
sales and meetings
and events

Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the
parent divided by weighted average number of shares

Inissye

*2016 figures shown in constant currency

Net debt over total equity
attnutable to equity
holders of the parent

Total barrowings less

total cash

The Group believes that the KPls provide useful
and necessary information on underlying trends to
shareholders and the investment community and
are used by the Group for internal performance
analysis. Net Asset Value growth was replaced
this year with a gearing measurement to better
align the KPls with the Group's strategy and
Board reporting metrics. Given the decentralised
model of the Group, regional management
focuses on operational KPls These include
customer feedback, hotel gross operating profit
and staff retention. General Managers report
their operating KPls to Regional Managersona
regular basis with comparison numbers for the
local competitive set of each hotel. The hotel
performance numbers are then consclidated into
regional and Group-wide figures



]0 Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic
Annugl Repeort & Accounts 2017

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the full year to 31 December 2017, total revenue increased by 8.9% to £1,008m (2016: £926m) mainly due to favourable foreign
currency movements as a result of the weak pound against major currencies and higher hotel revenue. The Group's reported revenue
benefited from a positive foreign exchange impact of £46m during the year. Total revenue in constant currency was 3.7% higher as

compared to last year.

Renorted Currercy

Lorstant Currency

Crarge Change
FY 2017 FY 27214 Fr 2016
£m Fr Em * £m e Y
Hotel 880 ol4 66 81 853 27 32
Property 62 56 3} 07 60 2 33
REIT 64 56 10 179 59 7 une
Total Revenue 1,008 @26 82 ae 972 38 37

Financial performance

On a constant currency basis, hotel
revenue increased by 3 2% to £680m
principally due to the inclusion of new and
refurbished hotels During the year. New
York region remained in o loss position
Performance by the Group's hotels In
Singapore continued to decline with
RevPAR down by 09%

Reported profit before tax increased

by 36 1% to £147m (2016 £108m) During
the year, o totol of £29m (2016 E44m) of
net revaluation and impairment losses
were charged to the income statement
The impairment losses are a result of the
Groups impairment testing whereby the
carrying amount of assets s compared

against the estimated recoverable amount,

which 1s the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use In assessing
the value in use, the estimoted future cash
Hows are discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to each asset

After removing the effects of the
impairment losses and revaluation
gains, the Group's reported profit before
tax is £176m (2016 £152m) Profit was

also Impacted by the release of £3m
accruals no longer required in relation
to the Glyndebourne project which was
completed in 2013 Finance cost was also
lower by £5m n 2017

Basic earnings per share increcsed by
58 8% to 38 1p (2016 24 Op).

Foreign exchange translation

The Company publishes its Group financial
statements in sterlng However, the
majority of the Company's subsidianies,
joint ventures and associates report

their revenue. costs. ossets and liabilities

in currencies other than sterling The
Company translotes the revenue, costs,
assets and liabilities of those subsiciaries,
joint ventures and associates into sterling

and this translation could materially
affect the amount of these items in the
Groug's financiol statements, even if their
values have not changed 1n their onginal
currencies

The table in Note 22(g){i) to the Fnancial
statements sets out the sterling exchange
rates of the other principal currencies in
the Group Sterling weakened compared to
other major currencies during the financial
year. the impact of which is refiected in the
translation reserve on page 84

#lsea Harbour Hotel
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Financial Pesition and Resources

2007 2016 Charge
Em £m £m
Property. plant gnd equipment and lease premium prepayment 3,232 3345 m3)
Investment properties 577 534 43
Investment in joint ventures and associates 324 320 4
Non-current assets 4,133 4199 (66)
Current assets excluding cash 228 195 33
Provisions and other labilities excluding borrowings 274) 297 23
Net debt (650} aon 57
Deferred tax Lab lities (188) (220) 32
Net assets 3,249 3170 79
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 2,676 2.668 a8
Non-centrolling interests 573 502 N
Total equity 3,249 3.170 9
Non-current assets At 31 December 2017, the Group had net next 12 months Plans for refinancing of the
The Group states property. plant and debt of E650m (2016 £707m) Excluding facilities are underway
equipment at cost. less depreciation CDLHT, the net debt was £1866m (2016 .
or provision for impairment Investment £232m) Treasury risk management
properties are held ot fair value External . Group treasury maotters are governed by
professional open market valuations tock Future funding policies and procedures approved by
place at the end of 2017 for all investment Of the Group's total facilities of £1,603m, the Board of Directors The treasury
properties and those property assets £599m matures within 12 months Excluding  manogement committee moniters and
dentified as having impairment risks CDLHT, the Groups total facilities were reviews treasury matters on a regulor basis
£819m of which £171m matures within the A written summory of maojor treasury activity

Non-current assets decreased slightly by 15 presented to the Board on a regular basis.

1 6% compared 1o last year, principally due
to the impact of exchange translation on
property, plant and equipment

Financial position

Group interest cover ratio for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (excluding share
of results of joint ventures and associates.
and other operating income and expense)
is & times (2016 6 times)

At 31 Cecember 2017, the Group had £354m
cash and £292m of undrawn and committed
facilities avallable comprising revaolving
credit facilities which provide the Group
with financial Aexibility Most of the facilities
are unsecured with unencumbered assets
representing 88% (2016 B86%) of fixed assets
and investment properties At 31 December
2017. gross borrowing amounted to £1.004m
of which £155m was drawn under £176m of
secured bank facilities
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OUR GLOBAL REACH
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GROUP INVENTdRY AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Hotels Room count
2017 2016 Change 2007 2016 Change
& Owned or leased &5 &6 - 19,672 19534 138
o Managed 15 42 @9 4,098 1924 (7.826)
136 * Franchised 38 7 3’ 10982 109 989 39’402
Investment 7 16 1 4,650 4,473 177

Total 1386 131 5 39402 37022 2380
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REGIONAL {INVENTORY AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
F- 3 H Hotels Room count
- Asia
y 2017 201 Chonge 2017 2016 Chonge
® Owned or leased 12 12 - 591 5979 2
- Managed 9 [ (M 3134 3182 ()]
Franchised 2 Zz - 35 780 (d55)
Investment 9 ] M 280 3136 (@25
Totol 32 34 @ 1,251 13047 {794)
Hotels Room count
Evurope
P 2007 2016 Change 017 2016 Change
R & Owned or leased 2 2 - 4,582 45680 (€] !
= & Managed 5 3 {26 851 8459 (7.800) N
7 Franchised 3 - 3 10,345 - 10345 e
] 60 investment 3 1 2 700 128 502 'l 6’ 523
. Total 40 53 7 14,523 13537 2906 .
- "y Es
. AT
United states Hatels Room count
2017 2006 Change 2017 2016 Change
& Owned or leased 9 % - 8797 LT97 -
& Managed - - - - - -
# Franchised - - - - - -
Investment - - - - - -
Total 19 9 - &7297 &797 -
H Heotels Raom count
Australasia
2017 2016 Change 2M7 2016 Change
® Owned or leased 14 14 ~ 2,268 2078 w0
# Managed 1 1 - n n3 -
& Franchised 5 5 - m kil -
Investment 5 5 - 1139 1,139 -
£ 25 3,831

Total 2% 25 - 38N Jsd 90 e
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REGIONAL PERFORMANCE

RevPAR Total Asia 2007 _ 2016 Change
100 Revpar (£) 71.91 72 61 0%
:u Occupancy (%) 739 727 12
B Average Room Rate (£) 97.37 9987 2 5%

1] 206 207

Occupancy Singapore ) o
o Revpar (£) 83.83 8458 (0N%
= 7 oy Occupancy (%) 85.6 842 14
N Average Room Rate (£) 9791 10041 (25%

o we 2y
Rest Of Asia

ARR : R —
. Revpar (£} 64.39 46505 (0%
o8 = Occupancy (%) 66.4 654 10
& Average Room Rate (£) 96.93 9943 (? 3)%
an
20
0 201 M7

The long-running decline in Singapore hotel room revenue slowed
dunng 2017, with RevPAR down by |ust 0 9% compared to the
previous year Lower room rates were offset by higher occupancy,
reflecting the increase in foreign visitors to Singapore, notably
from Ching In the fourth quarter Singapore RevPAR grew by

0 8% Despite the increase Tn visitor numbers, there is still over-
capacity in the Singapore hotel room market, although the rate of
construction of new hotels has passed its peak.

RevPAR fell by 1 0% in the Groups Rest of Asia region, with
ma|ority of the hotels contributing to the decline

EURCPE

}
Grand Hotet Palace

Rome

\

RevPAR Total Europe - 2017 26  Change
s s 25 Revpar (£} 82.35 890 85 19%

: Occupancy (%) 76.9 771 02

o Average Room Rate (£) 107.15 104 83 22%

o e am

ocoupaney  London _ o
= Revpar {£) 10998 10718 26%
S QOccupancy (%) 83.0 819 1

2: Average Room Rate (£) 132.47 13083 13%
aee  RestOfEurope , o
E w0115 Revpar (£) 53.66 5383 (03)%
> Cccupancy (%) 70.5 722 a7

:.: Average Room Rate (£) 7616 74 55 22%

Europe RevPAR for 2017 increased by 19%, with a 2 2% increase in
average room rate compensating for a small drop in occupancy
Qur London hotels were resilient, despite a number of terrorist
attacks

Qutside of London, the Group's European region hotels trod water
throughout the year with RevPAR falling by 0 3% compared to
2016 Rome suffered a double digit decline in RevPAR during the
year due manly to o significant drop in occupancy with rates Hat
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UNITED STATES

Chairman Kwek Leng Beng at the re-opening of Hudson
Theatre, Millennium Broadway Hetel New York in Spring 2017

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc -|5
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AUSTRALASIA

M Social Auckland

RevPAR Total US 2017 2016 Change  RevPAR Australasia 2017 2016  Change
P e Revpar (£) 95.79 9091 54% w Revpar (£} 73.06 62 84 16 3%
o Ceeupancy (%) 68.3 650 33 Occupancy (%) 8.2 813 @n
- Average Room Rate (£) 140.23 13994 02% o Average Room Rate (£) 90.01 7731  164%
23 20

Occupancy  NewYork Oceupancy
% Revpor (F) 164.84 15303 77% o
w22 Oceupancy (%) 85.3 779 74 0
&C
® Average Room Rate (£} 19318 19633 (T1&% “

o 20
o e 20 a 2016 2017
Regional U5 . S

ARR ARR
e o Revpar (£) 61.90 50 41 2 5% @ o
. Cccupancy (%) 60.0 586 14 a0
- Average Rocem Rate (£) 103.23 1031 01% :Z
g .

b e Jm7 n o 2017

RevPAR for the US region duning 2017 grew by 5 4% to £95 79, driven
by small increases in both occupancy and average room rate

New York RevPAR increased by 77% The increase can be
attributed to a fult year of operation by ONE UN, now trading

as Millennium Hilton New York One UN Plaza, which was fully
re-opened in Q4 2016 following refurbishment of the east tower
Excluding this property, US RevPAR was up slightly by 1 3% ond
New York RevPAR up by 0 2% Regional US RevPAR grew by 2 5%.
resulting from a mix of strong and weak hotel performances

Australasia RevPAR grew by 16 3% 1n 2017 with significant
contribution from Grand Millennium Auckland which traded
its first full year in 2017 Average room rate increased by 16 4%
against flat occupancy compared to the previous year

In October 2017, the 190-room new M Social Aucklend was
opened Excluding Grand Millenmium Auckland and M Sccial
Auckland, RevPAR for 2017 increased by 77%
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

As an international hotel company
operating in over 27 countries, we remain
committed to making a positive difference
in the places in which we operate ond
consider corporate responsibility in all
aspects of our business

We work hard to train and develop cur
colleagues so that they can provide o
valuable contribution to the industry and
our local communities Our hotels support
local charities and community projects
and we actively seek ways to reduce our
impact on the environment, in our own
operations and through engaging with our
supply chain

This report reviews our current systems
and performance for the financial year

ended 31 December 2017, and 1t highlights
actions we have taken to enhance our
sustainability efforts

Board responsibility

The Board has overall responsibility

for the Group's corporate responsibility
initiatives, with the Interim Group Chief
Executive Officer taking the lead from a
management perspective Underpinning
our commitmeant to sustainability, the
Board supports a number of policies,
collectively referred to as "Responsible
Hospitality,” which are designed to
recognise and manage the Group's
wider impact on the environment and the
communities In which we operate These
policies are reviewed regularly and are
updated as necessary They are aiso

translated into multiple languages where
appropriate A list of these policies can be
tound on our website at https //investors,
millenniumhotels com/corporate-
responsibility/supply-chain-transparency-
statement

Board diversity

Pursuant to the Groups diversity policy, the
Board seeks diversity of skills, experience,
geographical representation and gender
both in its composition and throughout

all levels of our business, more details of
which can be found Tn the Nominations
Committee Report of this Annual Report
and Accounts
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Compliance

Within our operations. we are fully
committed to meeting the highest
standards of legal and regulatory
compliance We adhere to all applicable
lows and regulations, not just the letter of
the law, but the spint of the law

in 2017 we did not receive any material
fines or penalties associated with non-
compliance with any laws relating to the
environment, human rights violations,
labeur standards, anti-corruption or
taxation

No donstions were made by the Group for
politicat purposes during the year (2016
Fril)

Financial statements Further infermanon

In addition, we endeavour to report
transparently on tax policy and
management, more information of which
can be found in this Annual Report and
Accounts

Corporate ethics and business conduct

The Group 1s committed to maintaining
the highest standards of ethics and
integrity in the way we do business

Qur Cede of Ethics and Business

Conduct ("Cede”) sets out our minimum
expectabions for all colleagues and
describes our most important legat
obligations The Code reflects the
responsibility we have, not just to comply
with the law, but alse to do the right thing
We also expect our suppliers and business
partners to align to the standards set

out within the Code and other related
policies including. for instance, our Anti-
Bribery and Business Hospitality and

Gifts policies, over which the Board has
oversight As mentioned., these policies
are tronslated into other languages where
appropriate. including Spamsh and
Simplified Chinese

To raise awareness of key operational
risks and ensure we meet our compliance
requirements, our global online
compliance training platform continues
to deliver training on anti-bnbery. money
laundering in certain jurisdictions and
competition law Our aim is to expand this
to include training on data protection and
preventing tax evasion

The Group's Anti-Bribery policy has been
developed in line with the requirements

of the UK Bribery Act 2010 and 1s routinely
reviewed, with the last review having
token place in April 2016 The Group
maintains a confidential hotline and e-mail
account to encourage employees to report
improprieties or breaches they may have
witnessed A risk assessment is conducted
to identify those categories of employees
who require training on bribery and
corruption, which includes people in areas

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc '|7
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such gs procurement and sales, and on our
other policies

A group-wide Anti-Bribery and Anti-
Corruption Compliance Guide 1s also
made available to all employees This
guide, which is in addition to the policy,
highlights key risks relevant to the Group
and identifies those operations in countries
where corruption 1s perceived to be a
high rnisk The guide sets out @ number
of procedures for managing these risks.
including escalation and whistleblower
mechonisms and precedures for risk
assessments for eperations of potential
business associates or counterparties

We take breaches of these policies
seriously and. If necessary, will consider
disciplinary action for non-compliance by
our employees inthe reporting year, we
are unaware of any staff being disciplined
or dismissed due to non-compliance with
our Ant:-Bribery policy

Throughout cur global activities, we

are committed to respecting the human
rights of our colleagues and others with
whom we engage during the course

of our business operations, including
customers. suppliers and business
partners Our human rights policy reflects
our commitment to certain fundamental
human rights principles, which are
aligned with those of the International
Labaur Orgamsation and the UN Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights
and include freedom of association and
collective bargaining

In accordance with the requirements of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015, the Company has
undertaken a review of its supply chain
Last year we had proposed a number of
improvements to our Modern Slavery Act
compliance framework For instance, in
the UK we implemented regular training
exercises with law enforcement agencies
to better train our hotel teams to spot

the risks of modern slavery and human
trafficking Our contracts are updaoted
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on an ongoing basis with provisions
regarding compliance with the Group's
Human Rights Policy. which was updated
in 2016 to include requirements around
ethical working practices, human rights,
child labour, forced labour and other
similar concerns Our European supphier
intake forms now Include questions about
supplier track records with preventing
slavery and human trafficking, and we
take their answers into account when
selecting reputable suppliers This area
remains a priority for the Board ond we
will look ta make further improvements

in our processes in 2018 The Group has
also adopted o formal slavery and human
trafficking statement which 1s ovaileble
at https #investors millenniumhotels com/
corporate-responsibility/supply-chain-
transparency-stotement

Qur employees

We understand the importance of having
the right people with the right skilts, now
and in the future, to deliver the exceptional
service and expertise which is the basis

of our relotionships with our guests To
deliver that service and expertise, we are
continually improving our tatent pool and
are committed to training and educating
the next generation

Learning and development

Qur employees are encouraged to
develop and manage their own careers
and this is facilitated by providing
relevant job training and, where
appropriate, we aim to fill vacancies
with existing staff where employees

are svitobly qualified and experienced
Qur hotels also help young people

from disadvantaged backgrounds by
providing employment skills traiming and
vocational opportunities For example, our
Nerth American and European regions
have introduced internship programmes
for young hosprtality tatent. often in
partnership with local universities.

We are committed to improving employee
engagement and learning more about

the needs of our workforce In addition

to our traiming anrd development
programmes. we aim to communicate
frequently with our employees We

value highly the commitment of our
employees and recognise the impertant
role communication has in fostering good
working relationships and practices We
seek to ensure that employees are informed
on matters relating to the:r employment
and on financial and economic factors
affecting the business At the same time,
we actively seek feedback ond ideas from
our employees to improve our operations
and where appropriate provide forums to
allow employees to voice their views

We also continue to have in place our
global brand-defhning ‘Outstanding
Service Excellence’ employee development
training programme where our colleagues
are empowered to cdapt and deliver

a tallored service to each guest This
Inspiration-based service approach is
designed to engage both our celleagues
and guests on a personal level,
encouraging a genuine connection and
areating true ‘fans’ of our brand

Diversity

We recognise the importance of, and

the benefits to be derived from, diversity
across our international operations Qur
employment policies not only seek tc comply
with all relevant legislation, but they alse
strive to ensure thot oll areas of our business
embrace diversity. creating an environment
that fosters fairness and equal opportunity
in every aspect For example. when
recruiting, all applicants are assessed fairly
regardless of race, gender, age, disability,
morital status, sexual orientation or religious
belief More information on cur egual
oppoertunity employment policies can be
found in the Directors’ Report of this Annual
Report and Accounts

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group employed an average of 11.602
people worldwide in over 27 countries
(2016-10,996)

b poyees by geracr Ma & Ferowe
Directars 8 1
Senior managers’ 223 15
Other employees 6.159 5096

This 15 based on the participants in the Group's
2017 borius pool and excludes 34 subsidiary
Directors who wete external non-independent/
independent appointments of which 29 were
male ond 7 female

The average number of employees

employed by the Group (including the
Company's Directors) during the year,
anolysed by category, was as follows

2017 2006

Numbers MNumoes

Hotel operating staff 2,020 8,397
Management/

administration 1,439 1,481

Sales and morketing 4581 468

Repairs and mantenance 682 650

1,602 10,996

A safe working environment

Qur overriding commitment in the
workplace continues to be the health.
safety and welfare of its employees, guests
and all those who wisit the Company's
locations, as well as these who carry out
work on behalf of the Group To ensure
therr protection and well-being, our health
and safety functions have comprehensive
processes and procedures in place at

all properties to comply with relevant
legislation Such measures olso support
our hotels to identify and assess key risk
activities with a view to implementing
appropriate controls to reduce
occupational incidents

Heclth and safety s a principal risk and
as such 1s overseen by the Board Risk
Committee Effective training, supervision
and regular communication on health
and safety matters are prowided to

our employees both regionally and at
property level. To support these activities,
a comprehensive schedule of audits,
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inspections and drills are carried out both
internally and by independent bodies to
check awareness and promote continuous
improvements, compliance and readiness
to deal with emergencies.

I the UK region. for example, we have

put in place policies and procedures thot
are certified to OHSAS 18001 (externally
audited by the British Standards Institution)
Management continues the process of
rolling out the system across the whole of
the UK portfolic which is designed to ensure
robust and comprehensive risk assessment
and recognition across the business These
efforts are supported by compliance
management software, resulting in tighter
control of mandatory activities, inspections
and the creation of audit trails

For cdded assurance, quarterly reports
covering health and safety matters are
also presented to the Audit Committee
These provide statistics on incidents and
updates on health and safety matters in all
of our operating regions

Respect for our environment
Energy use

Energy consumption 1s the most significant
environmental impact of our business and
we continue to drive operational efficiency
and invest in energy efficient plant and
equipment i our hotels

Qur LED light replacement programme
continues to be rolled out acress our

estate At a number of our hotels, Lft
modernisation works have been carned
out or are being planned, new boilers have
been installed and building menagement
systems upgraded Moreover, where hotel
refurbishments are taking place, we seek to
maximize energy efficiency opportunities

Inthe UK, as a result of the Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme {"ESOS") undertaken
in 2015, the recommendations identhed
from hotel audits were implemented across
a number of our hotels and as we prepare
for phase two of ESOS, we look forward

Frnancial statements Further information

to the opportunity to identify and achieve
even more energy savings

Cur energy consumption is shown below
This has been restated to exclude the
hotels in the Middle East region ("ME
Region™) as a result of our sale of our joint
venture interest In the operating entity for
the region as of 31 December 2016 While
the ME Region hotels generally continue to
be managed by the same operator, since
it 15 no longer a subsidiary of the Group.
the ME Region data is not included in this
year's calculations

2m7 Il
Apsolute Perroom Aosclute Fer ane
(Wh) kWhy R W
507,724,416 22,195 491032100 2047

Restated to exclude all ME Region sites data

A number of our hotels have also
implemented an environmental
management system that s aligned

with the requirements of IS0 14001
which requires that eoch asset has a
framewark for identifying and mitigating
environmental impact. as well as having
processes for identifying relevant
environmental legislation and ensuring
compliance

Recognitions

In recognition of adopting sustainable
practices, a number of our hotels in
Singapore still maintain Green Mark
awards, an initiative set up by the Building
and Construction Authority of Singapere
to encourage environmentally fnendly
buildings

Since 2017, we have
q CDP been reporting our
roieg s e rromes | ©€MISSIONS performance
annually to the CDP's
clmate change programme {formerly the
Carbon Disclosure Project} As a result of
the Group's efforts in implementing a range
of actions to manage chimate change, both
1IN our own operations and beyond, we
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were able to achieve an A- Leadership
score 1n 2017

Greenhouse gas reporting

This year's reporting covers the period

1 October 2016 to 30 September 2017 This
period has been chosen to allow sufhcient
time to review emissions data ahead of the
year-end and to ensure that verification of
the doto was completed in advance of the
reporting deadlines The data has been
restated to exclude hotels in the ME Region
for the reasons stated above

Last year we also reported thot a new
target had been set to reduce our
absclute Scope 1 and 2 operational
carbon emissions from energy use and
refrigerant losses by an aggregate
amount of 10% by 2020, based on a
2015 baseline year On a Like-for-like
basis between 2015 and 2017, we have
already reduced our carbon emissions
by 1% We are pleased with this result,
as we have achieved the carben
emission reduction target ahead of
schedule We intend to review this in
due course and set a further stretching
target

Our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions, as well

as the underlying energy, refrigerant,
waste, water and travel data, have been
externally verified by on independent third
party, Jacobs U K Limited, in accordance
with [SO 14064-3 2006 Standard A copy
of the Venfication Statement can be found
at https #investors millenniumhotels com/
corporate-responsibility

To calculate our emissions, we have
followed the Greenhouse Gas ("GHG™)
Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard methodology and the
operational control approach to determine
what properties are included within the
coundary Franchise hotels and investment
hotels that are managed by third party
operators have not been included in the
date collation
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Details of our total carbon footprint are
summarised in the table below For this
reporting period, the Groups carbon
footprint was 254,572 tonnes compared to
221,523 last year

Gobalternesof J5 e

2315

2017 206 Bose year
Scope1' 50,024 a6 8N a7 542
Scope 22 144090 1524626 173.510
Carbon intensity
{tonnes of Coye/
room |ncludes scope
one. two and three
emissions) n3 @50 10 32
Scope 3* 60,3584 22086 24289
Eo _of rooms 22,876 23,330 23772 _
Total gross emissions 254,572 2215235 245 34F

Cirect emissions from activibies owned cr

controlled by our organisation that release

emissions INto the atmosphere

Indirect emissions that are a consequence of

our organisation’s activities but which occur at

sources we do not own or cantrol

1 Other indirect emissions that are a
consequence of our activities which occur at
sources which we do not own or control and
which are not classed as scope 2 emissions

4 Well-to-Tank ("WTT") and Transmussion and
Oistribution ("T&D } associated emissicns as

Relative: Carbon Emissions by Source
kgCO.e/m’

180 132

130
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=@—Floor Area (kgC0O.2/m?)

well as all waste emissicns reported for the first
time this year
> Restated to exclude all ME Region sites

In the reporting period. absolute emissions
increased by 15% compared to last year
due to an increase in the number of waste
emission sources on which we now report
Previously reportes emissions data were
limited to waste sent to landhll, however

in line with GHG protocol reporting
recommendations made this year, we

have reported all emissions from waste
management processes including recycling
and compost waste, together with emission
losses from T&D and WTT {emissons
associagted with the extraction, generation
and transport of fuels used)} As a result of
this, emissions per room has increased by
17% to 1113 tonnes of CO%e/room

If we were to exclude WTT and T&D
emission losses, our absolute emissions
total would have decreased by 4%
compared to last year

Waste and resource use

increasing waste diverted from landfill
remains a key focus of our sustoinability
journey By sharing best practice and
innovative ideas among our hotels. waste
reduction and recycling initiatives have

tC0 efRoom

14

12

2014 2015 2016 2017

—ip=Rom (tCO.e/room)

been spread to a large extent across our
portfolio

Qur London hotels continue to work

closely with our UK waste contractor to
improve the recycle facilities in the back

of house areas and conference rooms

For example, glass bottles for drinking
water are provided in the guest rooms and
function rooms, thereby eliminating the use
of their plastic counterparts By introducing
this system, we significantly reduce the
amount of plastic waste that would be
generated as well as reducing the carbon
emissions associated with the preduction,
transportation and recycling of plastic
water bottles

Waste data

For 2017 the reported volume of waste
increased by 3997% on an absolute basis
and by 44% on a per room basis compared
to last year largely due to a change in
how we report our waste. This year where
data on recycling is unavailable, we have
assumed that all such waste 15 landfilled.
so that we account for the highest possible
impact on our emissions This has resulted
in an Increase in the amount of waste
defined as landfilled but also gives us

the oppertunity to work on improving the
quality of this data for future reporting

207 218
Absalute Per room Absolute Pei rcom
{tennes to {tonnes to (tornesio (onras to
landhll) landfilt) lgndly lanam)
10,436 0.4& 7454 032

! Restated to exclude all ME Region sites’ data

Water

Water 15 a scarce resource and we
recognise that demand for water 1s likely

to surge further in the next few decades,
we therefore actively strive and encourage
our colleagues to conserve water usage
throughout our business, particularly where
we operate in water stressed regions
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Based on the World Resources institute’s
analysis of future water stress, we 1dentified
that 8% of our eurrent operations are «n
countnes facing extremely high water
stress by 2040

We conduct risk assessments regarding
water 1ssues as part of our on-going risk
assessment procedures at our existing
hotels

To further minimise consumption through
inadvertent water use, we seek customer
engagement by encouraging the reuse of
towels We also have measures in place
that quickly identify leaks and potential
problems. in addition to providing water
saving devices in guestrooms and toilets

Water consumption data

2017 2014

Absolute Per roam Apso e Por -oom
{m* consumed} (m®consumed) {m consumed? (M consemed)

4,582,223 200 4754440 204

Restated to exclude ail ME Region sites’ dota

Our water consumption data has been
independently verified by Jacobs UK
Limited

Sourcing responsibly

As o globaol hotel company that purchases
food ond beverage items, linens,
amenities, beds and energy, sourcing 15 a
complex and often decentralised process
Qur suppliers extend beyond 27 countries
and span multiple industrnies, with varied
infrastructure and legistical chollenges
We work closely with our suppliers to
ensure that their products and services
meet the demands of our operations and
the expectations of our guests

We therefore expect our suppliers to
demonstrate effective environmental
management of energy use, greenhouse
gaos emissions, water use, waste, pollution,
resource use and biodiversity We

also question whether suppliers have
appropriate corporate governance
arrangements in place to operate in

an ethical and sustainable manner

Finaoncial statements Further information

whilst encouraging diversity and equal
opportunities throughout their business

Qur selection process for suppliers 1s
stringent and we request and review
information on their reduction of
packaging, environmental policies and
sustainable transport plans prior to
contracts being signed Since 2013, it has
been our cum to assess all new European
suppliers based on their environmental,
labour, corruption and human rights
practices

Wherever practical, we purchase products
made from local renewable and ethically
sound sources. Specific focus is placed on
using suppliers that reduce emissions and
air pollution from food miles and our oim

is to use suppliers with o demonstrable
commitment to sustainable production
methods

To demonstrate our commitment to
sustainable sourcing, one of our major
suppliers in the UK thot provides us with a
variety of fresh, cold and frozen foods has
committed to reducing its carbon emissions
by reducing the total distance travelled

by its fleet through the introduction of a
new vehicle which has separote regulated
varying temperatures in each of its storage
compartments. This, combined with the use
of the latest driver performance software
and rainwater-harvesting facilities at therr
new sites represents a direct iInvestment in
the sustainability of its ocperations and in
the health of the environment

Supporting the community

We are committed to making positive

and lasting impacts on the communities

in which we operate. Our investment in
local communities 1s fundamental to our
business both from an ethical perspective,
but also as efforts to improve the prosperity
and wellbeing of our local communities
will contnibute to the stability of the local
tourism industry and therefore to our
resilience as a business

We actively facilitate employee
involvement with charitable partners, as
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laid out in our Group Chanty policy. Our
colleagues have embraced this by heiping
the elderly, homeless. those in hospital and
people with disabilities

Below are a few of the iniiotives from our
hotel colleagues, who are helping to build
brighter futures in their communities

Coptherne Tara, Londen made Volentine's
Day extra special this year by participating
i a fundraising campaign for the Rays

of Sunshine Charity that grants wishes

to children living with serious or life-
threatening ilinesses With every Ask Alfred
children’s concierge package sold. £1 40
was donated to the chanty

A team from the Grand Copthorne
Woterfront, Singapore visited the Red
Cross Home for the Disabled. a residential
home for those with multiple disabilities,
over two occasions to assist with art
therapy sessions Over 30 employees of
the hotel tock time off their busy work
schedule to join residents of the home for
their painting sessions, o creative activity
organised by the home

QOver 170 donors came forward in a blood
donation drive organised by Millennium
Sirih Jakarta, Indonesia together with Red
Cross Indonesio and You C1000 Themed
‘A Drop Of Blood, A Million Purposes’. the
aim of the drive was to encourage mere
donors to come forward, to donate safe
blood for national transfusion needs
Participants comprising hotel stoff and
management, hotel guests and those from
the surrounding offices and communities
came forward to lend an arm for the
cause A total of 115 bags of blood were
collected during the half-doy event

Millennium Hotels and Resorts New
Zealand s proud to support IHC, o New
Zealand organisation providing support
and care for people of all ages with
intellectuol disabilities and thelr families
IHC launched a new programme called
‘Take a break with us" and all of our New
Zealand hotels perbcipate by donating
hotel room nights to nominated full time
carers of people with disabilities
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The Grand Copthorne Waterfront Sales & Marketing teaom supporting painting classes for
residents at the Red Cross Home for the Disabled. Singopore

Earlier this year, the Lakefront Anchorage Hotel, Alaska conducted

its quarterly food drive for the Alaska Food Bank and collected over
400 pounds of food as part of its commitment to community service The
gool for 2017 was to donate one tonne of food for those in need in the
local community

In early September, Grand Copthorne Waterfront,
Singapore and Singapore Red Cross jointly organised
the 'Dancing Colours, Bridging Love’ Charity Auction
at the hotel’s Grand Ballroom The charity auction
showcased 20 paintings for bidding that were
completed by residents of the Red Cross Home for
the Disabled as part of their ort therapy programme,
together with hotel staff The auction raised up to
$$12.000 in suppert of Singapeore Red Cross.

The Grand Millennium Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
partnered with the Food Aid Foundation Malaysia

to support victims affected by the flood disaster in
Penang, Malaysia which saw a continuous downpour
of over 20 hours causing water levels to rise, trees to
be uprooted and homes of residents to be severely
damaged. The hotel supported the charity's relief
efforts by denating over 200 pieces of clothing and
bedding necessities to the flood victims
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OUR RISKS

Like any other business, we are subject

to a number of risks and uncertainties,
which are influenced by both internal

and external facters in this section, we
describe the principal risks that could
affect the Group's ability to deliver against
its strategy together with the controls ond
activities in place to mitigate such risks

Risk factors

Below we provide information on the
nature of each of the Group's principal
risks as identified by the Board Not all
potential risks are listed. some risks that
we are manoging ond monitoring in the
business are excluded because the Board
considers that they are not matenal to the
Group's long term strategy, performance or
viability

in general, the diversity and geographical
spread of the Group's assets provides

a natural hedge against many of the
principal nisks identified on the following
pages However, as with any business,

the Board accepts that risks are inherent
in conducting a global business and that
our processes aim to provide reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the nisks
significant to our business have been

Financial statements Further information

identified and oddressed Addtionally,
there may be risks that are not reascnably
foreseeable at the date of this report

such that the Group can assess fully therr
potential impact on the business.

The order in which risks are presented
below 1s not indicative of the relative
potential impact on the Group

Management of risk

The Board s accountable for carrying

out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Company, including those
threatening its customers, people . values.
reputation. business model. diverse brand
portfolio, future performaonce. solvency or
liguidity To assist the Board in this task,
the Board formed a separate Board Risk
Commuttee in Apnil 2016, which s tasked
with reviewing the effectiveness of the
Groups risk management framework

and overseeing the Groups principal

risks These principal risks are referred

to as “Level 1" risks Below the Boarad Risk
Committee sits the Group Management
Risk Committee, which 1s chaired by the
Group Chief Executive Officer, and 1s
comprised of key executive personnel

and supported by the head of Internal

Board of Directors

Board Risk Committee

Overall accountabilty for strategic risk management

e AN
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Audit The Committee provides input on,
and oversight over, this risk management
framework. including the 1dentification,
assessment and monitoring of the Groups
Level 1 nisks as well os any emerging or
escalated risks

Each business function and regional
operations head, in turn, 1s responsible for
formally identifying and assessing the risks
within his or her remit and measuring them
against a defined set of critena. while
cansidering the Lkelihood of occurrence
and potential impact to the Group These
regional and functienal risk profiles are the
Groups "Level 2" risks

The Group's risk management function,
supperted by an outsourced team frem
Barnett Waddingham, assists the Group
Management Risk Committee, and
ultimately the Board Risk Committee,

in co-ordinating the risk management
processes and producing a consolidated
view The risk management process uses
a standardised approach to assess risks,
including regular risk reviews and the
updating of risk registers, to enable the
highest risks to be escalated The process
also clarifies Board expectations through

Audit Committee

Responsible for oversight of the Group’s
Enterprise Risk Management

Support the oversight & challenge of the effectivenass of the
Group's nternal controls and nsk management with

respoensibibty for the approval of the Group's annual
report and accounts including the pnncipal nsks

\“\-—k

Group Management Risk Committee

Group Internal Audit

Operational accountability for management and contro!. @ w m m w = >

of nsks and implementation of mihgation measures

Review of effectivenass of nternal controls
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OUR RISKS CONTINUED

risk appetite and 15 designed to focus

on key risks, encourage accountability.
helistic thinking. the use of management
information in nisk management discussions
and informed decisions to deliver
improvement and actions where necessary

Risks at the individual hotel and project
level, “Level 3" risks, ore identihed ond
managed by hotel general managers
and financial controllers and the project
owners, with support from the regionol
management teams

Activities during 2017

The Board Risk Committee met four times
in 2017, during which meetings it agreed
a new rnisk management framework,
conducted an assessment of the Group's
principat, or Level ], risks, and received
updates on these principal risks by the
designated risk owners

The Group Management Risk Committee,
in turn, met five times during the year

in addition to supporting the Board Risk
Committee in assessing and monitoring the
Group's principal risks, the Management
Risk Committee conducted more detailed
analyses of several of the key risks Cne
such "deep-dive” analysis focused on

the threat of increasing costs of sale,
particularly through third-party distribution
channels This work included sophisticated
data analytics to help the team better
understand and track its costs of sale
through the varnicus channels, with the
gouol of being able to better manage these
costs

Levell

Level 2

Level 3

Underpinning the work of the Board and
Group Management Risk Committees and
to help instill the new risk management
framework within the Group, the nsk
management team held workshops and
training sessions with key stakeholders aver
the course of the year

The Board understands that risk
management is an iterative exercise. one
which 1s never complete As such. the
members of the Board Risk Commuttee look
forward to continued improvements in the
processes 'n 2018

Risk assessment

Material risks are identified through

a detailed bottom up assessment as

well as a holistic top down review The
bottom up assessment encompasses

the identification, management and
monitoring of risks in each area of the
business, including at the hotel level, and
ensures thot risk management controls are
embedded in the businesses’ operations
The top down review led by the Board
Risk Committee, supported by the Group
Management Risk Committee, evaluotes
the Group's operating environment. as
explained above, with a particular focus,
in conjunction with the Audit Committes,
on the cash flows of the Group

Risk committee

The Nominations Committee reviewed the
structure of the Board's committees and
the Board has decided to amalgamate
the duties of the Risk and Audit Committee
given the commonalties of their remits and

Board Risk
Profile

Regional
Risk Profiles

Profiles Profiles Profile

the establishment within the Group. since
the formation of the Risk Committee, of a
robust risk management framework These
changes will take effect following the
conclusion of the Company's 2018 Annual
General Meeting

Review period

The UK Corporate Governance Code
requires the Company to 1ssue a ‘viability
statement’ declaring whether the Directors
expect that the Company will be able

to continue in operation over a relevant
period and meet its labilihes during

that period after taking into account the
Group's current positien and principal
nsks. The overnding aim Is to encouroge
the Directors to focus on the longer term
and be more actively invelved in risk
management and internal controls The
relevant period over which the Board is to
assess the viability of the Company must be
longer than 12 months, and in this case the
Beoard has selected a three year period

A three year assessment period was
considered by the Directors to be
appropriate for several reasons

* First. the three-year period 1s in line
with the Group's rolling financial
and capital expenditure planning,
particularly as many of the Group's
financing facilites have three-year
maturities

* Second., the londscape of enline
competition has been changing rapidly
and 15 likely to continue to change
further in the foreseeable future It

Functional
Risk Profiles

Hotel Risk _I_ Project Risk Area Risk _|_ Project Risk

Profiles
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

* In accordance with provision C.2 2 of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have carried out a robust assessment
of the principal risks facing the Group, including combinations of those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity. This assessment involved a review of the prospects of the Group over the three year period
to 31 December 2020 taking into account the Group's assets, strategy and the Group's principal risks and how these are
managed over this time period, as detailed above

* The Directors believe the three year period to be appropriate for the reasons stated above. The annual budget and plan and
three year financial and capital expenditure projections are supported by regular Board briefings provided by management
and the discussion of any new initiatives undertaken by the Board in its normal course of business.

+ Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they foll due over the three year period to 31 December 2020

would be difficult to form a reasonable judgment of how the online marketplace will evolve beyond a peried of three years
*  Finally. market dato, used to develop rate and other projections, beyond three years is thought to be less reliable

Viability assessment

In order to assess the viability of the Group over the three year period, the Directors evaluated both the 2018 budget and plan, which s
reviewed and approved by the Board, and three year financial and copital expenditure projections The budget and these projections
were prepared taking into account the Group's strategy ond the current market conditions They alse took into account the pnncipal
risks. and the controls in place to mitigate these risks, and the projections included a sensitivity analysis based on a signiicant decline
in hotel profit due to a combination of those risks, such as the failure of the Group to renew its financing focilities, materiabsing for a
sustained pericd

Having assessed the principal risks, the Directors have determined that they have a reasenable expectation that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meets its hiabilities as they fall due for a period of three years to 31 December 2020
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk

Potentiol Impact

Mitigating Activities

Risk Trend

Quality of
service delivery
and product

Consistent delivery of service and product quality 15 vitally
important to creating and maintaining brand loyalty and
value perception and influencing consumer preference This
is enhanced by the growing influence of customer ratings.
reviews and the power of social media Lack of investment
in the Groups assets or the removal of a significant number
of rooms from inventory in order to complete needed
refurbishment programmes cauld have a sigmficant impact
on those factors and therefore on the revenues that hotels are
able to achieve As supply increases. particularly in our key
gateway cibes, business may be lost to newer hotels and/or
rates may have to be reduced to remain competitive

in addition management of third-party owned hotels under
management agreements, particularly in the Middle East and
China regions, and the use of |oint ventures in certain markets
gives rise to the nisk of non-performance on the part of the
hote!l owners and |oint venture partners, affecting the ability
of the relevant hotels to deliver service and product quality
consistent with the Group brand and operoting standards
especially when the strategic objectives of those parties are
not atways aligned with theose of the Group

Generally the Group operates properties which it owns,
and therefore 15 able to exercise control over the service
and product quality of those hotels

>

For those hotels we own but do not operate, such as

the Novotel New York Times Square and Grand Hyatt
Tarpel. the Group asset monages those preperties to
ensure compliance with its service levels and contractual
requirements

The Group continues to develop property specific

asset manacgement plans which focus on the capital
requirements of each property in terms of regular
maintenance and preduct enhancement to help ensure
the products remain competitive Refurbishments are
phased appropriately in arder to minimise the impact of
those progrommes on operations, to the extent possible

The Group currently endeavours to reinvest one-third of
its EBITCA intoits hotel estate

The Group has in place brand and operating standards
and regularly refreshes those. to provide for consistent
service delivery and product quality among its hotels,
even f they are owned by third parties and/cr cperated
through joint ventures

Management representatives are assigned to monage
the relatonships with joint venture partners and third
party hotel awners

Intellectual
property rights
and brands

Future growth and pricing power and the image and
reputation of the Group in general will. in part. be dependent
on the recognition of the Group's brands and perception of
the values inherent in those brands The ability of the group
to protect its intellectual property rights in those brands 15
instrumental in preventing them from detericrating in vaive

In addition. the proliferation of e-commerce and online sales
chonnels, whether through affiliates. online trave! agencies
meta search websites or otherwise, can give nse to brand
confusion and further dilution if the Group's intellectual
property is not used appropriately and in accordance with the
Group's brand and marketing standards

In 2017 & formal launch of the latest brand offering, M
Coliection, taok place with the promotion of the opening
of M Social Auckland

Substantial investment continues to be made in protecting
the Group's brands from misuse and infringement, by way
of trade mark registration enforcement of intellectual
property rights and domain name protection The Group
utilises third party online brand monitering and protection
ogencies to ossist with the Groups enforcement activities

\ o g
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Risk

Potential Impact

Mitigating Activities

Risk Trend

Increasing
competition

The hotel industry operates within an inherently cyclical
marketplace where competition both eniine and offline,
isincreasing Anincrease in market room supply, without
correspend.ng increases in demand, may lead te downward
pressure on rates which in turn could negatively impact the
Group's performance The secter 15 also seeing a degree of
consolidation in pursuit of scale benefts

With regard to online competition, the Group's hotel rooms
are bocked through a number of distribution channels. ane of
which 1s the online travel agency ((OTA"} OTAs tend to have
higher commission rates than more traditicnal distributien
channels and are taking an increasing share of booxings
across the sector Over ime consumers moy develop
loylties to the OTAs rather than te our brands These trends
may impact our profitability In additien sharing economy
platforms. such as Airbnb. may expand ther market share
and compete with more traditionol business and leisure
accommodations

The Groups asset management teams help to ensure
hotels are appropriately maintained and refreshed to
remain compettive

1)

The Group continues to refresh its digital marketing
strategy ond invest in its e-commerce, customer
relationship management, revenue management and
reservations systems in order to heip increase rotes, retain
existing customers and generate new business

Since 2014 a new advanced central reservations system
has been in place providing a platform for future
enhoncements Additionally the Groups website and
loyalty programme are regularly reviewed andg upgraded
as necessary to help improve brand recognition and
drive more bookings through the Group's own, less costly
distribution channels

The Groups robust financial control and Hexible revenue
management systems help it to control costs and achieve
better yields in volatile trading conditions

Talent
management
ond succession

Delivery of consistent service guality and execution of the
Group's strategy depends on its abilty to attract. develop and
retain employees with the appropriate skills experence end
aptitude This becomes more difficult os world travel becomes
more prevalent and competition in the hospitality industry
Increases

Falure of the Group to properly plan for the succession of key
management roles may impact service quality, consistency
or delay the execution of the Groups strategies and increase
costs and inefficiencies

The results of the UK referendum and ongoing negotiations
cround the UK's departure from the European Union may
affect the availability of EU nationals, which 15 o key source of
talent for frentiine roles particularly in London

The Group has a strong service culture supported by
performance monagement and recognition systems,
compensation ond benefits arrangements, and training
and development programmes Labour relations are
actively managed on a regional and local basis

L)

During 2017 the Group implemented key changes to its
senior management structure and team and several of
its compensation programmes, particularly the incentive
scheme utilised for the global sales team to enhance
employee engagement and performance

Woe have conducted a risk assessment aoround the mpact
of Brexit’ and continue to refine the scenano contingency
and staffing plans whilst monitoring the on-going
developments of the governmental negotiations
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Risk

Potential Impact

Mitigating Activities

Risk Trend

Financial risk

The Group operates in numerous |urisdictions and trades .

The Groups internal Treasury Management Committee

)

management in various internatienal currencies. but reports its financial monitors and addresses treasury matters. including
and financial results in pounds sterling Fluctuatiens in currency exchange investment and counterparty risks 1n accordance with the
controls rates and interest rates may either be accretive or dilutive Groups treasury policy The Board and Audit Committee
to the Groups reported trading results and net asset volue recelve regular updates on treasury matters
The 2016 referendum in the UK to leave the European Linion *  Foreign exchange exposure 1s primarily managed through
resulted 1n a sustained devaluation of the pound sterling the funding of purchases and repayment of borrowings
Unhedged interest rate exposures pose a rnisk to the Group from income generated in the same currency
when interest rates nse resulting in increased costs of funding  « |aterest rote hedges are only used to manage interest
and an impact on overali inancial performance rate risk o the extent the perceived costs are considered
Financial control and accounting is a fundamental to outweigh the benefits of having Hexible varable-rate
expectation impacting shareholder trust and reputation of the debt
Group This ranges from property level to consolidated and «  Each hotel has an accountable fnancial controller who
statutory reports reports into the regional finance team and ultmately the
Group's Chief Financial Officer A cyclical programme
of hotet audits 1s in place to ensure a proper control
environment is being maintained
*  In 2017 the Groups Chief F.nancicl Officer, with the
support of the Audit Committee, reviewed the Companys
financial controls and commenced o project to enhance
the Groups inancial contrel measures
Legal and The Group operates in many urisdictions and i1s exposed to *  The Group continues to monitar changes in the regulatory
regulatory the risk of non-compliance with increasingly complex and environments in which it operates, identify its compliance f

compliance

rigorous statutory and regulatory requirements, including
competition law, anti-bnbery and corruption and data
privacy compliance regimes Non-campliance with such
regulations, which differ by jurisdiction and are an area of
increasing focus by regulators, could result in fines and/

or other damages, including reputational damage being
incurred, particularly in the event a data breach sheould cccur
A particulor area of focus in 2017 was in respect of the Groups
preparation for the commencement of EU General Dato
Protection Regulation {GDPR}. which comes into force in May
2008

In addition, the Group may be at risk of itgation from

various parties with which it interacts, either through direct .
contractual arrangements or as a result of providing services

to customers Significant costs could be incurred where

claims are not insured or ore not fully insured ond litigation
could give rise to reputational dumage being suffered and
management distraction

In certain countries where the Group operates, particularly in
emerging markets, local practices and the legal environment
may be such that enforcement of the Group's legal rights s
challenging

obligations and implement appropriate complance and
traiming programmes The Group has comprehensive
glcbal and, where apphicable regional pelicies cnd
procedures in place to address competibon law, data
privacy ethical business conduct, whistle-blowing,
anti-corruption and bribery, gifts and hospitolity and
charitable donations. among others

In response to the GDPR coming into effect, the Group
has created a task force comprising legal, Information
technolegy. operations and other representatives to
develop and implement plans to achreve substantial
compliance by May 2018

The Group has controls 1n place to manage and help
mitigate the risks assaciated with its various contractual
relotionships, from execution through to termination
nsured and uninsured Litigation and other disputes
Regular thigation reports ore provided to the Boord

The Group maintains in place industry standard insurance
cover to mitigate many potential itigation risks, such as
employment practices bability, workers compensation
and general liability policies
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Risk

Potential Impoct

Mitigating Activities

Risk Trend

Health, safety
and social
responsibility

Health and safety of guests, visitors and employees 1s a
fundamental expectation The Group s further exposed to
a wide range of regulatory requirements and cbligations
concerning health and sofety

As a significant property owner and operator of hotals in
multiple unsdictions the Group must do more than simply
comply with local regulations We must act n a responsiole
woy towards our stakehalders and tne communities 1n which
our hotels operate

Failure to implement and ma'ntain sufficient controls
regarding nea.th and sofety 1ssues could result in sericus
njury or toss of life and expose the Group to significant
sanctiens poth civil and erminal, inancial penalties and
reputational damage

The Group has estabbished and maintans health and
safety and environmental management systems ncluding
policies, procedures drills and tests, self and third party
audits, training, governance and reporting which, where
possible, 1t seeks to align with the requirements of 150
14001 and OHSAS 18001 By using these standards the
Group s committed to working to the highest standards
of health and safety and to an internatienally occredited
system

-«

Following the tragic fire at the Grenfell Tower 'n London
in June 2017 manogement completed an assessment of
cladding used on the Groups hotel estate to help ensure
the safety of hotels guests, visitors and employees

The Group has adopted various corporate responsib lity
initigtives in relotion to ts employees, guests and the
environment The Group's operating regions have
flexibility to tailor such initictives and adopt new ones

to better conform to lecal and regional customs and
practices

The Group maintains i place industry standard insurance
cover to mitigate many risks and Labilities, such as
waorkers compensation and general lability policies

{nformation
Security,
vulnerability to
cyber-attacks
and PCI-D5S

compliance

Increasing reliance on online distribution channels,
transactions over the nternet, the oggregation and storage
of guest and other information electronically, both on
company-controlled servers and networks end in cloud-
bosed environments present heightened nisks of faillures,
breaches and attacks offecting the operation of those systems
and networks and/or a potential loss or misuse of confidential
or proprietary information The occurrence of cyber nisks
could disrupt business, the atility of the Group to take or fuifil
bookings or lead to reputat-onol and menetery damages
litigotion or regulatory fines

In addhon, various aspects of the Groups operatiens are
required to ach.eve compliance with the payment card
industry secunity standards ("PCI-D55™), and failure to do so
could result in penalties and/or withdrawal of credit card
payment facilities

A new Group IT governance committee was formed 'n
2017 comprising the Chief Technology Selutions Officer,
The Chief Financiel Officer and SVP General Counsel and
Company Secretary to enhance IT oversight and focus

)

The Group have in place information technelogy
policies and procedures that have been updated to
reflect mplementation of the latest PCH-D55 compliance
stendards

Periodically. the Group engages external consultancy
firms to conduct security and penetration testing services
in relation to the Group's websites and systems and
implements enhancements where necessary

Software systems are regularly updated to allow for the
latest security updates and patches to be installed

Where the Group outsources crtical infermetion
technclogy systems including .ts point of saw and
property management systems the Group utilises
reputable suppliers that hove industry-standard or
best-in-class data secunty protocols The Group's hotels
utilise Cracle's MICROS property management system, for
example

The regionel information technology teams have
developed disaster recovery plans and guides with
regard to their high-prionity systems, ond tests are
conducted on select missian-cntical systems annually to
verify their recoverability offsite

The Cempany has in place and regularly reviews, cyber
Insurance coverage to protect against certain cyber risks
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Risk Potential Impact Mitigating Activities Risk Trend
Response The Graup 1s exposed to various external events that may +  The wide geographic spread of the Group's properties
ta naturat, reduce travel impact on operations or increase the Group's 15 a notural hedge against the impact of natural,

gecpolitical and
economic events

operating costs Such events dre beyond the control of
management, may be lecalised to a particular community,
city or country or they may have a wider internaticnal impact
Examples of such events include severe weather coneitions
and natural disosters acts of terrorism war or perceived

risk of armed conflict, epidemics, nationalisation of assets or

restrictions on the repatriation of funds. increased travel costs,

industrial action and pelitical and/or social unrest

Notably with regard ta the UK referendum on EU
membership, while we have not seen any immedate or
material impacts from that decision aside from significant
exchange rate fluctuations, we recagnise that the coming
years will be challenging in the UK as uncertainty remains
and we are monitonng political and macro-economic
developments closely

With regard to these risks appropriate insurance coverage
may net be available in the market in some nstances or
coverage may not be available on commercially viable terms

geopolitical and economic events

The Groups flexible financral ond revenue management
systems help 1t ta control costs ond achieve better yields
in volatle trading conditions

The Group has in place disaster recovery. crisis response
and business continuity plans and often has working
relationships with local low enforcement bodies to enoble
1t to respond to major incidents ar emergencies

Management pro-actively monitors geopolitical
developments and seeks to 1dentify emerging risks

at the sarliest opportunity to ensure cleor roles and
responsibilities, iInternal controls and other steps te
minimise these exposures to the grectest extent possible

The Groups insurance requirements are regularly
reviewed by monagement to ensure that the coverages
obtained are appropriote to the company s risk profile
relative to the cost of cover availoble in the relevant
markets

Approval of Strategic Report

The Strategic Report comprises the following sections. Chairman’s statement, Business review and strategy. Key performance indicators.
Financial perfermance and regional performances, Corporate responsibility and Our nisks sections The Strategic Report was approved
by the Board and has been signed on its behalf by

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman of the Board

28 March 2016
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 Kwek Leng Beng

Chairman of the Board and Chair of the Nominations
Committee
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2 Kwek Eik Sheng

MNon-Executive Birector
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3 Kwek Leng Peck
Non-Executive Director
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4 His Excellency Shaukat Ang™”
Independent Non-Executive Director and Senior
Independent Director
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5 Danrel Desbasllets ™ »

Independent Non-Executive Director
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& Susan Farr'”
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee
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7 Gervase MacGregor
Independent Non-Executive Directar and
Chair of the Risk Committee
Gervuse MacGregor was appointad to the Board in
December 2014 He has been a partner in BDO LLP since
1991 where he s currently the Head of International
Advisary Risk and Cuality Services specialising in forensic
nveostigahions and expert withess senices

Priot to joining BDC LLP M MacGregor worked as a
petroleum geotogust m the MNorth Sea Australa and West
Aftica He has experience in the hospitality sector over the

M Desballlets has exiersve “osE ‘ality exoer ence e nas
peen nthe bosp ottty moustry since "$73 bola rg serior

st ors with terLortrentar —otel Zroup Hoden ang
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Independent Non-Executive Director
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¢ Martin Leitch’
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Intreduction

The Directors present therr annual report of the business aond the Group. together with the firanciol stotements and auditors report, for

the year ended 31 December 2017

The Directers Report is required to be produced under the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act’) The Financial Conduct Authority's ( FCA™)
Disclosure Guidance ang Transparency Rules ('DTRs'Y and Listing Rules {'LRs ) also require the Company to make certain disclasures

The purpose of the Directars’ Report 1s to provide shareholders with certain statutory information about the Company. its Directors and
its operations The Strategic Report informs shareholders of and helps them cssess how the Directors have performed in therr duty to

promate the success of the company

Other information that 1s relevant to this report, and which 1s also incorporated by reference. including information required in
accordance with the Act and LR 9 8 4R, can be located as follows

Disclosurs Section Pages
Directors’ emoluments Directors Remuneration Report page 57
Leng Term Incentive schemes Details of the Groups employee share schemes are set out in

Note 23 of the consolidated finanaial statements and also on

pages 65 and &6 of the Directors annuol report on remuneration

Details of the shares held by the Millennium & Copthorne Hotels

plc Employee Benefit Trust can be found In the Directors Report

on pages 35 and 36 and in Note 30 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements on page 135
Interest capitalised by the Group Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements page 108
Barent participation ina placing by o listed subsidiary None
Contract of Significance with a controlling shareholder Nohe
Prowision of services by a controlling shareholder Note 33 of the consolidated financial staterments page 137
Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash Naone
Non-pre-emptive tssues of equity for cosh in relgtion to major None
subsidiory undertakings
Agreements wath the controlung shareholder Corporate governance statement page 46
Employee invalvement and policies Corporote respensioility poge 18
Greenhouse gos emissions Corporate respensibility page 20
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Company status

Millenrium & Copthorne Hotels pleis ©
public imited company incorporated
under the lows of England and Wales [t
has a premium listing on the London Stock
Exchange main market for usted securities
and 15 a constituent of the FTSE 250 index

Strategic Report

This report s prepared by the Directors
and i1s found on pages 4 tc 30 The
Strategic Report is required by the Act to
provide a fair review of the Company's
business including an analysis of the
development and performance of the
Company’s business during the year ond
the position of its business at the end of the
yaar and a description of the Company's
strategy and business model

Board of Directors

The names ond biographical details of the
Directors holding office as at 31 December
2017 are shown on pages 32 to 33

Except for Martin Leitch and Christian
de Charnacé, who were appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Directors with

effect from 22 May 2017 and 16 August 2017,

respectively, ail other Directors who held
office ot 31 December 2017 served onr the
Boord during the entire year

Directors’ shareholdings

Details of the Directors’ shareholdings

at the year-end are shown on page 60
No change to these shareholdings has
occurred between 31 December 2017 and
the date of this report

Appointment and removal of Directors

A Director may be appomted to filla
casual vacancy or as an additional
Director by an ordinary resolution of
shareholders In additton the Directors
maoy appomnt a Directer to filt o casual
vacancy or as an additional Director
provided that the individual retires at the
next annual general meeting

In ine with the Code which provides
thot all directors of FTSE 350 companies

Financial statements Further information

should stand for election or re-election by
shareholders every year, all members of
the Board will retire and seek election or
re-election at this year's annual genercl
meeting The eligibility requirements for
directors to be appointed at a general
meeting are specified in the Companys
Articles of Association

A Director may be removed by the
Company in certain circumstances as set
out in the Company's Articles of Association
or the Director’s appointment agreement,
including by an ordinary resolution of

the Company, upon being given written
notice to resign signed by all of the other
Directors or in the event the Director
becomes prohibited by law from acting as
a Director

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the yeor ended
31 December 2017 are set out on pages 80
to 149

An intenm dividend for the year ended

31 December 2017 of 2 08p per share was
paid on 29 September 2017 The Directors
are recommending a final dividend of

4 42 p per share (2016 5 66p). which, f
appreved at the annual general meeting
on 4 May 2018, will be pard on 11 May 2018
to shareholders an the register on 16 March
2018

Political donations and expenditure

No donctions were made by the Group for
political purposes and the Group did not
incur ony poltical expenditure during the
year {2016 £nil) The Company operates

a politically neutral policy with regard to
any political donations and expenditure

it may elect to make See the Corperate
Responsibility review on page 16 for details
of the Company's non-pobtical charitable
activities

Financial instruments

An indication of the Group's fingncial risk
mondgement objectives and policies in
respect of the use of inancial instruments
and exposure of the Company te price risk,
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credit risk, bquidity nisk and cash How risk
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements

Greenhouse gas emissions

All disciosures concerning the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions can be found
in the Corporate Responsibility Report on
pages 19 to 21

Employee involvement and disabled
persons

We value highly the nich ethnic and
cultural diversity of our people The Group
operates in 27 countries and employs an
average of 11,602 employees wortdwide
We are an equol opportunities employer
and our ocbjective is to ensure that no
employee or other worker or job applicant
receives less favourable treatment, directly
or indirectly, on the grounds of age.
disability, gender reassignment. marital
or civil partner status pregnancy or
maternity. race. celour natiorality, ethnic
or national engin, religion or belief, sex or
sexuol orientation

Further our policies encaurage the
employment, training and advancement
of disabied persons, having regard to
their particular aptitudes and abilties,
provided that they can be emgloyed in

a sofe working environment Suitable
empleyment would if possible. be found
for cny employee who becomes disabled
during the course of emplioyment

The Group values the engagement of

its employees and endeavours to keep
employees informed cbout matters of
concern to them and the performance

of the Company. whether through
management presentations, global

and regional intranet sites and other
communications Likewise the Group
seeks to consult with employees on a
regulor basis so that therr views can be
taken into account The Group cperates
an HM Revenue & Customs compliant Save
as You Earn Scheme in the UK which s ar
all employee share plan for employees

in the UK, and Long Term Incentive plan,
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Executive Share plan and Deferred Share
Bonus plan for certain levels of executives
globally The primary aims of these

plans are to Incentivise and engage our
employees and align their interests with the
Group's perfarmonce Further details on
employee benehts are set out in Note 23 to
the consolidated financrat stotements

Future developments

The Group's strategy and business model
including proposed future developments
can be found in the Strategic Report on
pages 4 to 30

Research and development

Whilst we continue te review woys to
improve our service and product offering
the Group did not conduct significant
resedrch and development activities
during the year

Branches
The Company did not have any branches
outside the UK during the year

Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has edequate resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable
future (which for this purpose 1s o period
of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these hnancial statements)
Accardingly they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consclidated financial
statements of the Group Further details on
this assessment are included on page 87,
within Note 2 to the Group financial
statements

Amendment to the Company’s Articles of
Association

The Company's Articles of Association may
only be amended by special resolution of
its shareholders in accordance with the
Act

R I

Significant agreements

There are no signiicant agreements to
which the Company s a party that take
effect, are altered or terminate upon

a change of control of the Company
following o takeover b1d However. as
mentioned in the "Payment for toss of
office section in this Directars Repart, the
Company's share plans include change of
control provisions

Share capital and related matters

The Company's 1ssued share capital at

31 December 2017 cansisted of 324 760.755
fully poid ordinary shares of 30 pence
each The shares are traded on the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange
During 2017, 25190 new shares were 1ssued
under employee share plans further
details of the changes to the ordinary
1ssued share capital during the year

are shown in Note 29 to the Company’s
financial statements

Rights attaching to shares

Rights and obligations attaching to the
Company's ordinary shares are set out
in the Company's Articles of Association,
a copy of which can be obtained from
Companies House or from the Compony's
wnvestor relations website ot

https //investors millenniumhotels com/
corporate-governance/policies fach
ordinary share of the Company ranks
equally in all respects

The voting rights attached to the
Company's ordinary shares are not
restricted ond there are no restrictions
on the transfer of the Company's shares
aside from certain restrictions which may
from time to time be imposed by laws and
regulations, such as insider dealing laws
In addition, pursuant to the Company’s
share dealing manual, the Company's
Directors and persons discharging
managenal responsibility are required to
seek approval to deal in the Company's
shares

Nane of the Company's shares carry
special nghts with regard to control of
the Company Neither the Company’s
management nor its Directors are aware
of any agreements between shareholders
that could result in restrnictions on the
transfer of shares or voting rights

Employee share schemes

The Company has 1n place a discreticnary
Employee Benefit Trust known as the
Millenmium & Copthorne Hatels plc
Employee Benefit Trust 2006 {the ‘EBT")
which is funded by the Company and

was established to acquire shares in the
Company far the benefit of employees
participating in the Company's share-
based incentive schemes Detalls of
shares held by the EBT at 31 December
2017 are set out on page 135 During 2017,
22.028 shares were released from the EBT
in respect of share schemes for employees
The trustee of the EBT has the power to
exercise all voting nghts in relation to the
Company's shares held within the EBT, but
generally abstains from voting

Payment for loss of office

The Company does not have an agreement
with any Director or employee that would
provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a tokeover bid
However, all of the Company's employee
share plans contain provisions relating to

a change of control pursuant to a general
offer scheme of arrangement or similar
event On such a change of control,
options and awards granted te employees
under the Company s share plans may vest
and become exercisable. subject to the
satisfaction of any applicable performance
conditions at that time
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Further details about payments to be
made to Directors for loss of office can be
found in the Directors’ remuneration report
an page 59

Power of Directors

The Directors may exercise all the
Companys powers that are not required
by the law or the Company's Articles of
Asscciation to be exercised \n @ general
meeting In particular the Directors may
exercise all the powers of the Company to
borrow money, 1ssue shares appaint and
remove directors and recommend and
declare dividends

Allotment of shares

Under the Act, Directors may only allot
shares or grent rights to subscnbe for

or convert any security into, shares if
authorised to do so by sharehotders at
the Company’s annual general meeting
The aquthonty conferred on the Directors
at the Companys 2017 annual generatl
meeting under Secticn 551 of the Act

will expire at the Company's next annual
general meeting or 30 june 2018 whichever
is earlier Atthe Companys 2018 annual
general meeting shareholders will be
asked to renew this guthonty for Directors
to allot equity shares representing at least
one-third of the 1ssued share capital as

at the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of the notice of annual general
meeting Further detaits of this resolution
and other resolutions are contained in the
2018 notice of annual general meeting

Purchose of own shares

The Company was authorised by
shareholders atits 2017 annual general
meeting to purchase its own shares on the
market within certain lmits In the period
since the 2017 annual general meeting, the
Company nas not exercised this authority
The Board will seek shareholder approval
at the 2018 anrual general meeting to
renew this authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s shares

Financial statements Further information

The Co-Operation Agreement {described
further below) contains a provision

that requires the Company ta use all
reasonable endeavours to ensure that any
1ssue of voting secunties for cash (other
than pursuant to an employee or executive
share option scheme) which takes place
while the Company 1s on the Cfhcial List
of the London Stock Exchange s carrned
out in @ manner that provides CDL with an
opportumty to acquire additional erdinary
shares at the time of such proposed 1ssue
for cash ¢ such amounts as are necessary
tc enable it to mamntain its voting nights

in the Company at the same percentage
level as 1s held immediately prior te such
issue These pre-emption nghts are put to
a vote of shareholders each year and most
recently were approved at the Company's
Annual general meeting 1in May 2017

Contrelling shareholder independence
disclosure

As of the date of this report, CDL 1s the
controlling shareholder of the Company
As required under LR 92 2ADR. the
Company anda CDL have entered into the
Amended and Restated Co-operation
Agreement dated 14 November 2014 (the
"Co-Operation Agreement”), which 1s
imtended to ensure that the Company's
controlling shareholder complies with the
independence provisions set out in the LRs

In accordance with LR & 5 4R the Co-
operation Agreement establishes. among
other things that COL and its associotes
shall {{) conduct oll transactions and
arrangements with the Compeony and

its subsidiaries at arm’s length and on
normal commercial terms, (1) not take any
action which would have the effect of
preventing the Company from complying
with its obligotions under the LRs, and

(1) not exercise any voting or other rights
and powers to propose or procure the
propaosal of @ shareholder resclution which
is intended or appears to be intended

to circumvent the proper application of
the LRs The Co-Operation Agreement
wiil continue in operation as long as

the Company's shares are listed on the
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premium segment of the Official List of
the London Stock Exchange and should
terminate shouid CDL ceaseto be a
‘controlling shoreholder’ as defined in the
LRs

The Corrpany confirms that during the year
it has complied with the independence
provisions incluged within the Co-
Operation Agreement and, in so far as

it 1s aware, CDL has complied with such
provisions as well

The Co-Operation Agreement atlows CDL
to appoint up to five Directors to the Board
As at the date of this report, COL has
appointed three Directors

Directors’ indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company
permit it to indemnify the Directors of the
Company or any Group company against
liabilities incurred by them in relatior to

or in connection with their duties, powers
or office, to the extent permitted by law
The Company has provided each of its
Directors with a qualifying third-party
indemnity, as defined in section 234 of

the Act In addition, the Company has
provided qualifying pension scheme
indemnities to the directors of Millennium
& Copthorne Pension Trustee Limited,
which acts as trustee of the Groups UK
pension plan. and quaklifying third-party
indemnities to the directors of its European
subsidiary companies The indemnities do
not apply in the event the relevant Director
1s proved to have committed a enminal
offence or otherwise where indemnification
is prohibited by law These indemmities
remain in force as at the date of this report

in 2017 the Company purchased and
maintained Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance coverage which has been
renewed for the current year No claim
was made under any such indemnity or
insurance policy duning the year
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Annual general meeting

The 2018 arnual general meeting wiil

be held at the Millenrium Hotel London
Kmghtsbridge. 17 Sloane St Kmightsbrioge.
London SWTX 9NU on 4 May 2018 at

10 00a m The Notice of Meeting which will
contain notes explaining the business to be
transacted at the meeting will be sentto
shareholders under o covering letter from
the Chairman and together with a copy of
the Arnnual Report and Accounts

At the meeting, resolutions will be
proposed to, among other things, declare
a final dividend. to receive the Annual
Report and Accounts to approve the
Directors remuneration report, to re-elect

Significant holdings

oll Directors, to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
auditors, and to authornse the Directors

to approve their fees In addition,
sharehoiders will be csked to renew both
the general authority of the Directors to
issue shares and to authorise the Directors
to i1ssue shares without applying the
statutery pre-emption rights In this regard
the Company will cantinue to adhere to
the provisions in the Pre-Emption Groups
Statement of Principles

Essential contracts

The Group has contractual and other
arrangements with numerous third parties
in support of its business activities Whilst
the termination of some of these contracts

As at the date of this report. the Company had been notified, under DTR &1 2, of the
following interests of three per cent or more in its total voting rights

# of ordinary Notified
Significant shareholder shares Interest (%) Noture of holding
City Developments 211,749 487 452 Indirect holding through various
Limited subsidiaries
internatianal Volue 22.8150n 703 Investment advisar
Advisers. LLC
Standard Life 13,724 147 4 22 Discretionary investment manager on
Aberdeen ple behalf of multiple mancged portfolios
MSD Capitel, LP 16 394 202 508 Discretionary investment manager on

beholf of multiple monaged portfolios

might cause temporary disruption, nene
of the arrangements i1s individually.
considered o be essential to the Graup's
business

Re-appointment of auditor

KPMG LLP has expressed their willingness
to be reappointed as cuditor of the
Company Upon the recommendction

of the Audit Committee. resolutions

to reappoint them as auditer and to
authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration will be proposed at the 2018
annual general meeting
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Corporate Governance Statement

in complance with DTR 72 1R, the
disclosures required by DTR72 2R t0 72 7R
are set out In this Report of the Directors
and in the Corporate Governance
Statement an pages 40 to 47 wiich
together with the Directors Statement

of Responsibilities are incorperated by
reference into this Report of the Directors

Statement of the Directors as to disclosure
of information to the auditor

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Act, each Director who held office at the
date of approval of the Directors’ Report
confirms that

So far as he or she 1s aware there is no
retevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and the
Director has token all the steps that he or
she cught to have taken in order tc make
rimself or herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor 1s aware of that
information

Fingncial statements Further information

Approval of Directors’ report

The Directors’ Report and Corporate
Governance Statement were approved by
the Board on 28 March 2018

By order of the Board

Jencthen Grech
Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

P B R "
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

As | remarked in last year s Corporate
Governance Statement an effective
governgnce regime must be practical and
tailored to the needs of each business It
cannot exist in a vacuum, but instead must
evolve and help support the growth of
the business That is why over the course
of 2017 we implemented changes to the
composition of our Board to help refresh.
ond enhance the skills and expernence of.
our Directors

Sustainable governance

This was a year of change on the Board
With Aloysius Lee, Alexander Waugh and
Nichalas George stepping down from the
Board during the first half of the year we
were pleased to welcome Martin Leitch
to the Board in May 2017 and Christian de
Charnacé in August 2017 Both Christian
and Martin have a proven track record
of delivering results and bring a wealth
of experience to the Board As previously
reported. Howard Wu, who joined the
Board in February 2017, stepped down in
August 2017 to lead our U S operations
and aur global information technology
department as part of our executive
manggement team

These retirements and cppointments
created an opportunity for us to examine
and adjust the membership of our Board
committees Susan Farr and Martin Leitch
were appointed to chair the Remuneration
Commitiee and Audit Committee,
respectively, taking over from Alexander
Waugh and Gervase MacGregor Mr
MacGregor took on the chair of the Risk
Committee 1n place of Mr Kwek Leng Peck.
and His Excellency Shaukat Aziz assumed
the role of Senior Independent Director
after Nicholas George stepped down
Christian de Charnacé was appointed as
a member of the Audit Committee effectve
23 March 2018

In 2018 | will work with the Directors
to ensure that we continue to focus on
the challenges we fuce. both internally

and externally, and that the Board and
Group have the proper mix of talent and
resources to allow the Company to execute
its strategy and develop the business

over the coming years New Director
appolintments may be considered as part
of this proposal

Board evaluation

This year we ¢onducted an internal Board
evalugtion which supported the findings
of the externol Board evaluation which
was conducted in 2016 ond we found that
the Board 1s collegiate, transparent and
effective A summary of the key findings
from the internal board evaluation 1s

set out on page 46 of the Corporate
Governance Statement

Board priorities

Given the geopolitical events we are
expenencing around the world. such

as the tensions 1n Korea and proposed
withdrawal of the UK from the Europecn
Union in 2019, and other challenges facing
the Group. including the performance of
our New York hotels ond increasing market
share of online travel agencies, the Board
and management team have spenta
considerable amount of ime considering
the pessible effects these will have on our
business and will continue to keep these
matters under review and assess ways

in which their impacts can be miigated

| believe that cur entrepreneunal and
innovative culture will help the Company
become more resiient and tackle these
challenges in 2018 and beyond

Proposed takeover offer

On 9th October 2017 an announcement
was made in respect of a possible offer by
Agapier Investments Limited o company
indirectly and wholly-owned by City
Developments Limited ("CDL"), for the
entire 1ssued and to be 1ssued ordinary
share capital of the Company not already
held by COL and its subsidiaries (and
persens acting in concert with them)

{the "Passible Offer”) It was disclosed
that prior to this anncuncement an
Independent Committee compnising of all

the Independent Non-Executive Directors
hod been set up to assess the merits of
the approach from CDL After the Possible
Offer was announced. the Independent
Committee received a wide range of
feedback from minority sharehclders,

held constructive dialogue with COL and
continued to carefully consider the merits
of the transaction Following continued
engagement between the parties, on 8
December 2017, a further announcement
was made indicating thot CDL and the
Independent Committee had reached
agreement on the terms of an increased
recommended final ofter of 600 pence per
share in cash, together with an increased
special dwidend of 20 pence per share
The process conciuded on 26 January 2018
when CDL confirmed that the possible offer
had lapsed

The Board therefore has recommenced
examining (ts strategic priorities whilst
taking mto consideration the detailed
shareholder feedback that was receved
during and after the offer period The
Board has determined that the following
are some of the key areas of focus for the
Group, among others

Governance

* Succession planning for the Board and
Committee membership, the Group
Chief Executive Officer and senior
maonagement

= The dedication of more tme to
reviewing and setting the high-level
strategy and priorities for the Group

Operational

* Increased capital Investment to
transform and reposition the Group's
hotel estate

*  Furtherinvestment into and
enhancement of the Company's
website, e-commerce capabilities,
loyalty programmes and its digital
strategy averall. with a particular focus
on business-ta-business iInitiatives
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People
« Strengthening the senior manogement
team in the U5 ond elsewhere

*  Development of a more comprehensive
strategy to deal with the possible
effects of the UK leaving the European
Unior

= The restructuring of key functions such
as the Group's glokal sales team. to
help drive the business forward

Over the coming year the Beard will seek
to devise a more detailed strategy for the
Companys short and long-term priorities

Succession planning

Board and senior management succession
are key considerations for the Board
Succession planning 1s essential to help
minimise or avoid instabibity and ensure
an appropriate level of guality within the
Board and management team Following
the retirement of Aloysius Lee at the

end of February 2017, the Nominations
Committee, together with the Board,
identified that Mr Tan Kian Seng. who first
jeined the Group as Chief of Staff and
interim President of Asia in October 2016,
would be an ideal successor to Mr Lee

Mr Tan was appointed to the role of intenm
Group Chief Executive Officer with effect
from March 2017 and with the support of
the Board set to tosk in reshaping and
strengtheming the sersor management
team A number of key appointments were
made in order to address some of the

skill gaps within the team and challenges
facing the Group Maore information on
the key appointments made to date 1s
availlable on page 6/ of the Nominctions
Commitiee Report

With Mr Tan serving as the interim Group
Chief Executive Officer since March

2077, the Board has been mindful of the
need to appoint a permanent successor
balanced against the need to find the
right candidate with the best skills and
experience to take the Company forward
The search continued through the first

Financial statements Further information

half of the year and was put on hold
pending the outcome of the offer by COL
With the offer having lapsed In January
2018, the Board has determined that
filling the role on ¢ permanent basis will
be a key consideration n 2018, although
the Directars remain confident that the
management of the Group 15 1n safe
hands with Mr Tan in his interim rele in the
meantime

Diversity and inclusion

The Board believes that it is important to
have an appropriate bolance of skills,
experence, knowledge and backgrounds
on the Board and at the senior
management level Thisis vitoi to enable
different perspectives to be brought to
Board and committee discussions We
are mindful of the recemmendations
made by Lord Davies and his Women

on Boards Report, which imittally stated
that there should be at least 25% female
representation on the Boards of FTSE 350
listed companies. but which subsequently
haos been revised to recommend that one-
third of the members of boards of FTSE
350 companies be comprised of females
by 202C The Nominations Committee
acknowledges that there is further work
tc be done in respect of increasing
gender diversity on the Board and this
remains an on-going prionty for the
Nominations Commuttee and the Board

Further information on the Groug's diversity

efforts 1s contained on page /0 of the
Nominations Committee Report

Risk management

In 2016 the Group established o dedicated

Risk Committee to carry out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing
the Company, including those that
would threaten its business model future
perfarmance and solvency In 2017 the

main objectives of the Risk Committee were
to build on the work completed in 2016 and
also to continue developing @ more robust

Group risk management framework This
included a comprehensive review and
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assessment of the Group's principal risks
and the development of a risk framework
below those risks, at the regional,
functional and hotel levels This work s
further described in the "Qur risks ' section
on page 23

Despite all of the change and activity
during the year. | am pleased to say

that the Board has determined that the
Company has complied with the provisions
of the UK Corpeorate Governance Code in
2017, as further detailed 1= this Corporate
Governance Statement

I would like to thank tha Directors for
their diligent efforts over the course of
the year particulerly as they had to take
on additional responsibilities and time
commitments in connection with the
takeover offer As we get ready to head
into the second half of 2018, we remain
focused and ready to make difficult
decisions in order to turn arocund the
Groups U 5 and Singapere regions and
push the performance of our global hotel
portfolic

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ..

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Millenruium & Copthorne Hotels ple ("M&C"
or the Company’) s the holding company
of the Mitllennium Hotels & Resorts group
of companies (the "Group”) M&Cisa
premium listed company with equity
shares traded on the Main Market of the
London Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code™) The
Company has applied the moin principles
of the April 2016 edition of the Code, @
copy of which is avallable ot www fre org
uk . for the year ended 31 December 2017
It 1s the Board s view that the Company
has complied with all of the provisions

of the Code The Board also 1s mindful

of the proposed revisions currently being
contemplated by the Financial Reporting
Council in respect of the 2016 edition of the
Code As the revisions are in consultation
stage and if adopted would apply for
accounting periods on ar after 1 January
2019, the Board 1s not required to repert

in this year's Annual Report and Accounts
as to the Companys application and
compliance with the newly proposed Code
requirements

The Strategic Report on pages 4 to 30
provides Information about the Groups
strategy and outlook, its businesses, the
financial and operating performance
during the year, the principal risks

and uncertainties and its corporate
responsibility iIntiatives A description of
the Group's business model! 1s included on
page 6 as required by provision C 12 of the
Code

The role of the Board and its committees
The Board provides leadership to the
Group It sets the Groups strategy and
oversees implementation of that strateqgy,
ensuring that acceptable rnisks are taken
and mitigated where possible The Board
ensures that adequate resources are in
place in order to debiver long-term value
to shareholders and benefts to the wider
communities in which the Group aperates
The Board's overnding duties are to run the

Company as stewards for the Company's
stakehclders with good governance,
strong values and a safety-dniven and
ethical culture

The actwities of our Audit, Remuneration
and Nominations Committees are set out

in the reports of each committee, which
reports are deemed to be part of this
report Details on the Risk Committee can
be found in the "Qur nisks” section of the
Strategic Report on page 23 The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to oll standing
committees of the Board

There1s a formal schedule of matters
reserved specihcally for decision by the
Board A summary of the matters reserved
for the Board 15 detailed below These cre
matters that are significant to the Group
as a whole because of therr potential
strategic fimancial and reputational
conseguences The Board has four main
committees to deal with specific activities
of the Group's affairs The chair of each
committee provides detailed reports to
the Board on the matters discussed ot
each committee meeting to ensure thot
all Directers have visibility of. and the
opportunity to discuss, the matters being
considered by each committee

* Long term cbjectives and commercial
strategy,

= Oversight over the Groups operations
and internal controls,

* Annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets

*  Extensicn of the Group's activities intc
new business or gecgraphic areas,

* Changes relating to the Group's capital
structure, corporate structure and
listing status.

* The holf-yearly report. interim
management statements and any
prelimnary announcement of the inal
results,

+  The Annuat Report and Accounts,
ncluding the corporate governaonce
statement and

Directors’ remuneration report,

Dividend policy. declaration of the
interim dividend and recommendation
of the final dividend,

Signihcant changes in accounting
policies or practices,

The Groups treasury policies,

Caopital expenditure abeve £6m and
matenal contracts and leases,

Any acguisition of land, property

or any oddition of a hotel into the
portfolio by acguisition or by means of
a management contract.

Major investments, including the
acguisition or disposaol of interests of
more than five per cent of the voting
shares of any company or the making of
ony tokeover offer,

Marketing campaigns or sponsorships
where expenditure exceeds £500 000,

Approval of resolutions and
corresponding decumentation to
be put forward to shareholders at o
general meeting,

Approval of all circulars, prospectuses
and listing particulars

Changes to the structure, size

and composition of the board
following recommendations from the
Nominations Committee.,

Appointments to the board, foilowing
recommendations by the Nominations
Committee,

Membership and charmanship of
Board committees,

Appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor to

be put to shareholders for approval,
following the reccmmendation of the
Audit Committee,
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* Determining the remuneration policy for
the directors. company secretary and
other senior executives. and

* Theintroduchon of new share incentive
plans or major changes to existing
plans, to be put to shareholders for
opproval

Caopres of the terms of reference for each
committee can be found on the investor
relations section of the Group's website at
https /investors millenniumhotels com

The Group Chief Executive Officer,
supported by the regionat heads of
operation and key functional heads 15
responsible to the Board for the Group's
operational performance, including

* implementing the Group strategy as
determined by the Board,

«  mantaining adequate internal
control systems and nsk management
processes

= monitering operctionat performance
against plans and targets and
reporting to the Board any significant
vanances, and

+ maintaining an effective management
team and succession planning

The respective responsibiiities of the
Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Otficer are set cut below and have been
appreved by the Board this year without
sigmficant change The Board currently is
comprised of nine directors including the
Charrman, six Independent Non-Executive
Directors and two other Non-Executive
Directors who like the Chairman, are
appointees of the majority shareholder,
City Developments Limited Each Director
is expected to fulfil his or her duties for the
beneht of ail shareholders

Financial statements Further information

Board and committee attendance

The Board generally hes up to eight
regularly scheduled meetings per year and
convenes ad hot meetings as necessary
The actual number of regularly scheguled
Board ond Committee meetings attended
by each Director during the year 1s shown
below next to the maximum number of such
meetings that each Director could have
attended during the year

In addition to the regularly scheduled
meetings shown above, the Board held
ane ad hoc meeting, the Audit Committee
held one ad hoc meeting and the
Remuneration Committee held twe ad hoc
meetings Attendance for those meetings is
not reported
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Board membership

At the date of this Repaort the Board 1s
compnsed of nine directors, who will each
seek re-election by shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(AGM"), except for Christion de Charnacé
and Martn Leitch who will be seeking
election at this years AGM The Directors
possess a variety of skills and have a mix of
regional and global experience, as can be
seen from the biographical details of the
Directors set out on pages 32 to 33

Audt Reruneraton Narriratiors Risk

Boara Commitiee Committee Comm ttee Committee

Kwek Leng Beng 5(5) - - 2(2) -
Shaukat Aziz 6 (&) - 4 (4) 2(2) -
Christion de Charnaocé 3(3) - - - -
Daniel Desbailtets? 5 {5) 31 2(2) - 2(2)
Susan Farr? 6 (8) 2 () 4 (4) 2(2) -
Nicholas Gearge’ 2(2) 2(2) 1{2) 2(2) 1{2)
Aloysius Lee” o - - - am
Martin Leitch® 4(4) 3(3) — 0{0) -
Gervase MacGregor?? 4 (6) 4(5) 1(2) - 4(4)
Kwek Leng Peck”” 5(8) - - 7(2) 2(2)
Kwek Eik Sheng &6 {8) - - — 4(4)
Alexander Waugh* 22} 2(2) 2(2) 2(D —
Howard Wu’ 2(2) - - - M

1 Chrstigr de Charnacé was apponted to the Boaro with effect from 16 August 2017
2 On 5May 2017 Kwex Lerg Peck steppea down from tne Risk Committee Gervase MacGregor steoped
down from tne Rernuneration Committee and Daniel Despaillets jomed tne Audit Rerrumeration and

Risx Committees

(o0 & S A Y

2017

Susan Farr stepoed down from the Audit Comrmittee on 22 May 2017

Nickolas Gearge and Alexander Waugh retired rom the Board with effect from 5 May 2017

Aloys us Lee retired as the Group Chief Execut ve Officer ard o Director at the end of February 2017
Martin | etch was appoirted ta the Boord and to the Audit and Nominatiors Committees on 22 May

7  Howard Wu served as a Director from 17 Feoruary 2017 untd 3 August 2017 Mr Wu was a membe- of the
Ris<« Committee fram 1/ February 2017 until 5 May 201/
8  Gervose MocGregor was unable to ottend two Boure meetirgs due to a contlict ng gpoointrrent

2  Kwek! eng Pec< wos unable to attend a Board meeting due o a conflicting oppointment

! The respensibilities ass gnea ro Tan Kian Seng asthe ntanm Group Chief Frecunive Officer are suostantially as set out in this repar:
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Division of responsibilities

There 1s a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Senior Independent Directer
The roles of the Chairman, Chief Executive
Cthcer, Senor Independent Director are
cleorly defined s¢ that no single individual
has unfettered powers of decision
Summaries of the roles and responsibilities
of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Senier Independent Director are set
out below

The Chairman

The Chairman provides leadership to the
Board on all aspects of its role His key
duties are to

+ formulate and set the strategic
direction and organisational structure
of the Group. subject to the Board s
approval,

*  setaclear vision for the Group,

*+  mentor the Group Chief Executive
Officer as and when required.

*  balance the interests of management
ond the Board as well as the needs of
shareholders and management,

«  actos o ligison between management
and the Beard os well as between the
Company and its shareholders,

+ manage communicatbions and
information dissemination processes
between the Company and its
shoreholders ond work closely with
the Company's public relations team to
achieve this objective

= estoblish the agenda and manage
Board meetings,

= offer advice to and draw on the
collective wisdom and experience of
Board members,

« take a proactive role in the
appointment of Directors and,
following such appointments, oversee
the development of individual
Directors, and

*  develop the top management team. in
particular the Group Chief Executive
QOfficer. and establish a succession plan
for the Group Chief Executive Officer
position

There have been no moterial changes
to the Chawrmans other significant
commitments during the year

The Group Chief Executive Officer

The Group Chief Executive Officer

reports to the Board and has ultimate
accountability for the day-ta-day running
of the Group He s responsible for leading
the monagement team operational
activities and performance of the Group,
including the effective delivery of the
Company's strategy and business plan, os
agreed by the Board. while managing and
mitigating the principol nsks faced by the
Group

His duties are to

« develop the strategic plan. business
plan and budget and deliver the same
to the satisfaction of the Board,

* lead and act as an advocate for the
executive management team of the
Group

s oversee the execution of the strategic
vision and plans. and ossess the
Group's perfermance and progress in
meeting them.

s promote the growth of the Group.

= develop the management team and
establish a succession plan far key
management appointments,

* act on the feedback of the Chairman,

= be responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business
and affairs and ensure that significant
issues that arise are resolved in an
efficient and tmely manner, and

* iead the management team to Improve
performance n every division

Senior Independent Director
His duties are to

«  Prowvide a channel of communication
between the Chairman and the Non-
Executive Directors,

* Actas anintermediary for shareholders
who wish to raise concerns that were
not able to be raised through the
normal channels of communication,

* Act as asounding board for the
Chairman and serve as an intermediary
for the Nan-Executive Directors, where
necessary.,

s Meet with the Non-Executive Directors
at least once a year to appraise the
perfarmance of the Chairman and on
such other occasions as are deemed
appropriate, and

*  Meet with a range of shareholders
when requested, to develop a better
understanding of their 1ssues and
concerns, and provide their feedback
to the Board

Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors
are responsible for helping to develop
the Company's strategy and providing
rigorous, objective and constructive
challenge to create accountability and
drive performance Among them. the
current Independent Non-Executive
Directors have the appropnate balance
of skills. expenence. knowledge and
independent judgement gamed through
varied backgrounds and experiences,
within the business world and without

The responstbilities of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors include

¢+ Helping management to develop
the Company's strategic objectives
by drawing on their own business
and commercial experience and
challerging assumptions,

*  Scrutinising management's
performance in delivering cgainst the
strategy.
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+ Satisfying themselves on the integrity of
financtal information and ensuring that
the Group's nisk and control systems are
robust, and

= Determining appropriate levels of
remuneration and reviewing succession
planring for Executive Directors and
participating their appointments

The Board cons'ders that each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors
continues to have

*  The time required to undertake the
responsibibties of their roles,

*  Unquestioned honesty and integrnity

* An ability to provide strategic and
pragmatic thought to the relevant
matters,

*  An ability to manage and consider
materality and risk tolerance as key
considerations n decision-making, and

= Anunderstonding of the risk
envirenment of the Group, including
the potential for internal and external
events to impact on health and
safety. environmental, reputational,
regulatory, market and financial
matters

The Independent Non-Executive Directors
In occordance with the Code it 1s the
Company's policy that at least half of the
Board comprises of Independent Non-
Executive Directors The Independent
Non-Executive Directors hove wide
ranging :nternationat experience at senor
levels in areas of hnance, accounting.
hospitality, investment banking media.
branding and international affairs They
bring strong, independent judgement to
the deliberations of the Beard. perticularly
in respect of the Group's corporate
governance regime

On appointment, each Independent
Non-Executive Director receives a letter
of appointment setting out the terms

of therr appaintment, fees to be paid
and matters such as confidentiality of
information. potential cenflicts of interest

Financial statements Further information

and share dealing restrictions Such letters
of appointment are subject to termination
by either party grving one month's natice
Appointment and any subsequent
reappointment of a Non-Executive Director
are subject at all times to the Articles

of Association of the Company and

any necessary shareholder approval or
ratification

Based on the principles cutlined in
provision B11 of the Code, the Board
requlorly assesses the iIndependence of
each of the Company's Non-Executive
Directors, taking inte account whether the
Non-Executive Director 1s iIndependent

in character and wdgement and

whether there are any relationships or
crrcumstances that are Likely to affect, or
could appear to offect, theirr judgement
Since the Chairman of the Board, Kwek
Leng Beng. Kwek Leng Peck and Kwek Eik
Sheng are appointees of the controlling
shareholder CDL, for the purposes of Code
provision B 11 they are not considered to be
independent

The Directors were satished that Martin
Leitch and Christian de Charnacé met

the independence requirements under
the Code upon their gppointments In
addiian, the Board conducted its regular
independence review in December 2017
ond determined that there had not been o
change to the independent status of all of
the Independent Non-Executive Directars
Their diverse business backgrounds, skills
and expenence enable all of them to
continue to bring independent judgement
to bear on i1ssues of strategy, performance.
resources, key appointments, standards of
conduct and other matters presented to
the Board

At least once during the year the Chairman
and Independent Non-Executive Directors
met, without management being present,
to discuss the performance of senior
management, the Board and other matters
of importance In 2017 that meeting took
place in May 2017 following the Company's
annual general meeting
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Diversity and inclusion

The 8oard continues to recognise that
diversity 1s key for introducing different
perspectives into Board debate and

for better anticipating the risks and
opportunities in builcing a long-term,
sustaincble business Whilst relevance of
skills 1s key. a balance between the skills
represented 15 sought to ensure that there
s an appropridte mix of members from
diverse backgrounds This contributes

to minimising the nisk of ‘group think” by
promoting a healthy culture of chellenge
and scrutiny

Director training and information

All Directors have access to the adwvice of
the Company Secretary, who 1s responsible
for ensuring the Board procedures and
applicable corporote governance rules
and regulations are observed In addition.
the Directors are able, If necessary to toke
independent professional advice at the
Company's expense The Non-Executive
Directors olso have the opportumity to meet
separotely with the Chairman during the
yeor

The Chairman in comunction with the
Company Secretary, 1s alse responsible for
ensuring that Directors receive appropriate
training ot the Company's expense where
specihc expertise 15 required In the course
of the exercise of their duties All Directors
receive a Board compendium detailing
matters relating to Boord procedures

A bespoke induction progremme 1s
established for any new directors who

are appointed, based on therr needs and
experience

Conflicts of interest

The Board has established agreed
procedures for managing potential
operational conflicts of interest These
procedures and any potential conflicts
authorised in accordance with section 175
of the Companies Act 2006, as permitted
by the Company's Articles of Association
are reviewed by the Board at least
annually and other potential conflicts
are reviewed as they may arise from
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time to time The Board is satished that
the pracedures for managing potential
conflicts remain effective

Co-Operation Agreement

The Co-Opercticn Agreement between
the Compony and its majonty shareholder
CDL. which onginally had been entered
into at the time of the Company's Listing

In 1996 wos subsequently amended

and restated in November 2014 in order
to ensure compliance with the revised
Listing Rules for the protection of minonty
shareholders which came into force in
May 2014 The primary purpose of the
Co-Operction Agreement 15 to ensure that
the Group 1s able to carry an business
independently of CDL and its associates
and that all agreements and transactions
between the Company on the one hand,
and CDL and/or any of its respective
group undertakings. on the other hand.
will be at arm’s length and on a normat
commercial basis Under the terms of the
Amended and Restated Co-Operation
Agreement. CDL and its associates have
agreed not to take ony actien that would
prevent the Company from complying with
its obligations under the Listing Rules
Furthermore. the Board and Nominations
Committee wiill ot all times consist of
maiarity of Directors who are independent
of CDL Whilst the Remuneration and
Audit Committees shall at all times

be comprised sclely of Non-Executive
Directors CDL is entitled to nominate

for appointment to the Board up to five
Directors As the Board is comprised of a
majority of Indegendent Non-Executive
Directors and the Company's ability to
operote independently of COL is protected
by the Co-Operation Agreement, the
Board considers that there are adequate
safeguards for the protection of minonity
shareholder interests

Evaluation process

The effectiveness of the Board 1s of
paramount impartance to the overall
success of the Group and the Company
undertakes a formal and rigorous annual
review of the Board and its committees

The Board evaluation is an important part
of the corporate governance framework
and both the process and cutcome are
taken sericusly by the Board Pursuant

ta the UK Corporate Governance Code,
the Company was required to undertake
an internal boord evaluatien for 2017

The evatuation was conducted in twe
parts In the first part, Mr Aziz, os the
Semor Independent Director, met with
the Independent Non-Executive Directors
individually to discuss the operation of
the Board generally For the second part.
Lintstock Limited, which had no other
connections with the Company, prepared
a tailored and targeted survey focusing
on key themes identihed by the Lintstock
team following the individual interviews
conducted by Mr Aziz. including

* board composition, expertise and
dynamics,

+  time management and Board support

* the operation of all of the Board
commitiees,

= strategic oversight,

= risk management and internal controls,
and

* succession planning ard human
resource management

The survey was completed by all the
Directors As part of the survey, an
evaluction of the Chairman was completed
by the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and indiwidual performance
reviews were submitted by the Directors as
well as the performance reviews of each
committee.

The Company's 2017 Board effectiveress
evaluation confirmed that the Board and
the Board committees were functioning
affectively, there 1s a geod balance of skills
and experence on the Board and thot the
Board provides constructive challenge to
management A report summarising the
Aindings from the survey was prepared by
Lintstock and circulated to the Directors
and discussed by the Board at its meeting
in March 2018 Some of the principal areas

of facus. arising from the survey results.
included further opporturities for Directors
to meet and hear from management,
particularly on key strategic initigtives.
incredsed awdreness of employee and
customer views and developments with
the Company's peers, and continued

focus on succession planning at the senior
management level

An action plan will be developed to
address these and other areas with
measures to be implemented in due course
to help improve the operation of the Board

Internal control and risk management
system in relation to preparation of
conselidated accounts

The Board 1s respansible for the Groups
internal control and risk management
systems, including oversight over the
processes and procedures that are in
place in connection with the preparation
of the Group's consclidated accounts In
establishing these systems, the Directors
have considered the nature of the Group's
business, the principal risks to which the
business 1s exposed, the likelihood of such
nisks oceurring, their potentiol impoct
and the costs and resources associated
with mitigating or protecting aganst
such risks ln most instances such systems
are designed to manage these principal
risks, rather than elimingte them As such
they can provide only a reasonable, and
not abselute assurance against them
The Group's principal risk factors and
mitigating activities are described on
pages 26 to 30

The main features of the Groups internal
control and nisk management framewaork
are set out below

Strategy

* The Groups strategic direction is
reviewed by the Board. generally on
an annual basis Often as part of that
process, a dedicated Board strategy
session is held with the Group Chief
Executive Officer and other senior
management as appropriate Further
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details about the Group's business
model and strategy can be found on
page 6

Management prepares an annual
budget for each year, in line with the
Group's strategy, and that budget s
submitted to the Board for its review
and approval

The Boord reviews, at least quarterly
management's progress in executing
the Group's strategy and how the
Greoups performance is tracking
against the annual budget

Internal controls

The Company reviews and confirms its
leve of compliance with the Code on
on annucl basis

The matters reserved to the Board
require that signihcant transactions
projects and programmes must have
specific Board approval

if Board approval is not required,
authority levels are prescribed and
delegated to ensure segregation
among management and proper
escalation of approval imits

Group inancial and treasury policies
contrals and procedures are in place
and regularly reviewed and updoted
All inancialinformation published by
the Group 1s subject to the approval of
the Audit Committee and the Board

Risk management

The principal risks of the Group

are assessed annually by the Risk
Committee and confirmed by the Audit
Committee

During the year thereis an ongoing
process for identifying evaluating

ond managing those risks and, if
appropriate, modifying the risks in light
of chenging conditions This process

1s reviewed by the Risk Committee on
behalf of the Board and has been in
place for the year under review and up
to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts

Financial stetements

Op

Further information

eration

Primary respons:bility for the day-
to-day cperation of the internal
control and risk management systems
1s delegated to the Group's Chief
Executive Officer. who chairs the
management-level nsk committee
The heads of the Company's operating
regrons and global functions corry out
regular reviews to ensure appropnate
actions are implemented to meet the
Group's objectives and manage its
principal rnsks appropriately

Assurance

The effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems
15 reviewed by an internal cudit
function and, where appropriate

by the Groups external auditer and/
or external consultants, who repart

to management and to the Audtt
Committee As part of thot process.
the internal audit department
produces individual reports, which
are issued to appropriate members

of the management team who are
accountable to rectify any deficiencres
and implement any recommendations
These reports are summarised and
distributed, as appropriate, to the Audit
Committee members, the Group Chief
Executive Officer senior monagement
and the external auditers and, where
necessary. 1ssues are drawn to the
attention of the full Board

Communications with shareholders
The Beard and executive management

tea

m regularly interact with sharehslders

and analysts in particular

Presentations are made after the
announcement of the Group's final
and half-yearly results During these
presentations analysts have the
opportunity to ask guestions of the
Group Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

Management meets wth nstitutional
shareholders on an ongoing basis

to review the Groups performance,
business madel and objectives In
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addition, the Senjor Independent
Director often conducts meetings with
a range of major shareholders during
the year, other Non-Executive Directors
have the opportunity to attend such
meetings Significant feedback
expressed by shareholders during those
meetings 1s then provided to the Board
In o imely manner

As port of the Companys regular
investor relations activities, the Group
Chief Executive Officer the Company
Secretary and senmior inrance personnet
are available to answer queries roised
by analysts and institutional investors
from time to time

The Groups website provides regular
updates for investors and contains all
announcements made by the Group

At the annual general meeting. all
shareholders have the cpportunity

ta question the Chairman and other
Directors, including the Chairs

of the Audit, Remuneration, Risk

and Nominations Committees

The Company prepares indviduai
resolutions on each substantially
separate 1ssue to be put to
shareholders and does not combine
resolutions together inappropriately.
and the Annucl Report and Accounts

5 laid before the shareholders at the
annual general meeting Notice of the
annual generol meeting and related
popers are sent to shareholders at least
21 working days prior to the date of the
meeting, and the Company encourages
all shareholders to make positive use
of the opportunity tc communicate
with the Board A schedule of the proxy
votes cast ot the meeting 1s then made
avaiable on the Company's website
after the conclusion of the meeting
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Annual chairman's statement

Dear Shareholders,

On 22 May 2017 | joined the board of the
Company as an Independent Non-Executive
Dwrector | was appointed the Chairman

of the Audrt Committee on 4 August 2017
replacing Gervase MacGregor whe stepped
down from chairing. but he continues to be
o member of the Audit Committee in order
for me to be farmiliar with the 1ssues at handg

| had handover sessions with Mr MacGregor,

and discussed relevant matters wath ocur
finance function our Head of Internal Audit.
our Company Secretary, our senior statutory
audrtor and our brokers

This report provides an overview of what
the Committee has done during the year
including the sigmificant 1ssues considered
and shares some of the details frem

the executive updates presented to the
Committee from across the business

Our objectives

Financial reporting

The Committee monitors the integrity, prior
to submission to the Boord of periodic
finoncial statements, annual accounts
reports to shareholders and any other public
announcements concerning the Groups
financicl position corporete governance
statements and statements on the Greups
system of internal controls and reports its
views to the Boord to assist in its approval of
the results onnouncements and the annual
report

The Caommittee performs o detailed review
of the cantent of the annual and halfyearly
results announcements and annual repart
ond accounts as well as trading updates
The Committee has satished itself that
controls over the accuracy and consistency
of information presented in the annual report
and accounts are robust, and has confirmed
to the Board that it believes this annual
report and accounts 1s fair batanced and
understandable The Committee’s review of
the financial statements for the yeor ended
31 December 2017 focused on the following
areas of significance

reviewed the Groups hotel performance
with reference to average room rate
cccupancy and RevPAR,

monitored the Group's performance
against the previous year's results and
budget.

monitored the performance of newly
refurbished haotels

reviewed the copital expenditure of the
Group

reviewed the selection ond testing of
assets for mpatrment purposes,
assessed whether materiol judgemental
assumptions that were used in the
voluagtions were within reasonatile
parameters,

monitored transactions with the
Company's majonty shareholder
reviewed the Group's cash position and
future commitments borrowings, facilities
and covenants, and

reviewed debt recoverability and agree
on write-off if deemed necessary

The key objective of the Committee throughout the year has remained the provision of effective governance over the oppropriateness of the Group's
financial reporting including the adequacy of related disclosures, the performance of both the internal audit function and the externol auditor, and
the oversight of the Group's systems of internal control business risks and related compliance activittes

Our members
The Board belisves that amongst the members of the Committee who are Martin Leitch Chair, Gervase MacGregor, Doniel Desbaillets and Christian
de Charnacé they have suitable broad commerciol khowtedge and significant business experience

The Interim Group Chief Executive Officer. Chief Financial Officer, senior finance managers. Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
glthough not members of the Committee also attend the meetings. as do the senior statutory auditor from ocur external auditor, who are not present
when we discuss the auditor's performance and/cr remuneration.

As part of this process of working with the Board and to maximise effectiveness. meetings of the Committee generally take ploce just prior to
Company Board meetings The Chairman of the Committee reparts to the Boord as part of o separate agenda item, on the octivity of the Committee
and matters of particulor relevance to the Board i the conduct of their work

Our role
The Committee’s terms of reference are available from the Group's website at https. #investors millenniumhetels com/corporate-governance/board-
committees

The Audit Committee holds regular, structyred meetings and consuits with senior management The Committee frequently requests that senior
operatianal and functional heads atiend meetings in order to update the Committee with events in the business Occosionally external business
consultants were alse invited to oftend tha meetings to present specific projscts. These mestings provide the Committee an opportunity to
understand the projects and assess management's decisions

The Commuittee regularly reviews strategic and operationol risks and the associated controls and mitigating factors. The Committee receives regular
reperts and briefings from internal audit and has reviewed the level of internal audit resource available within the Group and believes that t1s
adequate for the size, structure and business risks of the Group and 1s supplemented with appropriote external resources where expertise is needed
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Impairment of hotel assets

MNote 12 to the consolidated financial
statements states that the carrying amount
of assets as at 31 December 2017 15 £3129m
(2016 £3.238m) The Group continues to
engage external valuation experts to assist
with the valuation exercise and impairment
review Financial performance and
sensitivity of the valuation models to the
other key inputs means that the valuation
remains inherently subjective The
property, plant and equipment assets are
carned at historicol cost, which mingates
the nsk of impairment of these assets

During the year, the Committee examined
mancgement s recommendations in
respect of the vaiuatian of the Greups
hotel and property portfolio and agreed
that

* the selection of assets to be tested was
done apprepriately, taking intc account
indicators of impairment risk and
materniality

= there was the approprate use of third
party valuation expervse,

= sufficient robust challenge was given to
management by the external auditors,

=  matenal judgemental assumptions that
were used in the valuctions were within
reasoncble parameters. and

« conclusions have been appropriately
drawn

Valuation and classification of investment
properties

In general the carrying emount of
Investment properties s the fair value

of the preperties as determined by o
registered independent appraiser Fair
values were determined having regard
to recent market transactiens for similar
properties in the same location as the
Groups investment properties Where a far
value cannot be reasonably determined.
the property is held at cost

Financial statements Further information

Classification of an asset as investment
property requires judgement, and

is determined by reference to future
intentions and the Group's business model
The totat carrying amount of investment
properties as at 31 December 2017 1s £577m
(2016 £534m) as shown in Note 14 to the
conscludated financial statements

During the year, the Committee examined
management’s recommendations in

respect to the classificatron and valuation
of investment properties and agreed that

* there wos oppropriate clossification of
assets as investment properties

* there wos apprepriate use of third
party valuation expertise,

¢ sufficient robust challenge was given to
management by the external auditors,

+  matericl judgemental assumptions that
were used In the valuations were within
reasonable parameters, and

*  conclusions have been appropriately
drawn

Internal controls and risks

Accepting that risk 1s an inherent part of
doing business the Committee reviewed
the Group's nsk management strategy to
ensure that any required remedial action
on ony identified weaknesses is taken

Where specific actions are agreed

toc mihgate risks to a level deemed
acceptable, these are agreed with specific
timeframes for delivery and are monitored
clesely until fully implemented

The system of internal controls audited
by internal Audit (ond commented on by
the external auditor from time to time)
encompasses all controls including those
reloting to financial reporting processes.
operational and compliance controls
and those relating to risk management
processes

Millennium & Coptharne Hotels plc
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The Committee ensures that arrangements
are in place for employees to raise
concerns 10 confidence, about possible
fraud nsk or wrong-domng in inanciel
reporting or other matters Where o
whistleblowing incident occurs, this

is investigated by Internal Audit on a
confidential basis and in a proportionate
manner Appropriate actions are
recommended and undertaken which are
reporied to the Committee which then
reviews the recommendations and fecuses
on possible trends and potential systematic
weaknesses

The Committee had discussions with

the external auditor on audit planning,
fees accounting policies, audit indings
internal controls and non-audit services
rendered by them The external auditor
attended all of this year's Committee
meetings Meetings are atso held with
the auditer without management present
The effectiveness of audit was assessed
through the review of audit plans. reports
and conclusions and through discussions
with management and the external
auditor The Committee was satished that
the audit wes effective
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External auditor process

The Committee acknowledges the recent
change in the law requiring mandatory
auditor rotaticn There has been regular
partner rotation, and Jonathan Downer
took over from Steve Masters after
completion of the 2015 audit In February
2016 The Committee 1s satished that
KPMG continues to possess the skills and
expenence required to fulfil its duties
effectively and efficiently

The Committee 1s responsible for
recommending the appointment,
re-appontment and removal of the

external auditor A resolution to re-appoint

KPMG as the Group's external auditar will

be proposed at the Company's forthcoming

Annual General Meeting

Consideration is given each year to an
audit tender process as KPMG LLP has
been the Group's auditor since the listing
of the Company on the London Stock
Exchange in 1996 Under the current
transitional rules, the latest yeor in which
KPMG would be able to undertake an
audit of the Company 1s to 31 December
2022

Non-audit services

In order to ensure the continued
independence and objectivity of the
Group's external guditor, the Group has
strict policies regarding the provisian

of non-audit services rendered by

the external auditer The Committee’s
approval 1s required In advance for the
provision of non-audit services ¢f the

fee exceeds £30.000 for an individual
assignment The Committee reviews non-
oudit fees regularly The Group's external
auditor 1s prohibited from providing any
service that would conflict with their
statutory responsibilites or which would
otherwise compromise their cbiectivity or
independence

In light of new requirements i1ssued in the
revised Ethical Standard for EU auditors.
with effect from financial year commencing
from 1 lanuary 2017 KPMG s further
prohibited from providing tax complance
services and other conflicting non-audit
services directly or indirectly to the Group's
controlled entities in the EU In this respect,
PwC was oppointed to act as the tax
adviser for the European region in 2017
whilst KPMG was retained for the other
regions

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
KPMG's audit fee amounted to £3m (2016
£2m) and KPMG's non-audit fees were £1m
2016 £irm)

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee
The Board 15 satished that Martin Letch
Gervase MacGregor and Chnstian de
Charnacé have recent and relevant
financial experience as required by

the provisions of the UK Cerporate
Governance Cede The other member 1s
Daniel Desbatllets

The Committee s performance 1s reviewed
annuctly through a facilitated evaluation

conducted by Lintstock Limited. the results
of which showed that the Committee was

effective During the year, the Committee

has alsoe undertaken the following

* Discussed changes in accounting
policies and imitial work indicated that
the impact on the Group's financiol
staterments due ta FRS 15 Revenve
from Contracts with Customers s not
significant,

= Continued to receive updates from
executives managrng key areas thot are
loss making such as the US region.

» Reviewed the schedule of Board
reserved matters,

« Discussed the foreign exchange

exposure relating to borrowings,

= Discussed quarterly reports relating to
health and safety. litigaticn. trecsury
and tox, and

*+ Discussed other areas of compliance.
including Preventing Tax Evasion Policy
and building cladding standards

Martin Leitch
Chair of the Audit Committee

JR M e 2018
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual chairman's statement

Dear Shareholders

The Remuneration Committee {the ‘Committee’) did not consider
any significant remuneration 1ssues for Directors in 2017, as the
Company hod no Executive Directors during the yecr opart

from Aloysius Lee, who retired from the Board and as Group
Chief Executive Officer on 28 February 2017 Consideration of

the executive elements of the Remuneration Policy therefore
related to the structure within which any new Executive Director
appointments would be made rather than to their application to
existing Executive Directors

As set out in the 2016 Annual Report & Accounts, the Committee
conducted a detailed review of its Directors Remuneration Policy
in 20146 and modified and enhanced the policy in line with maony
best practice guidelines | am pleased to repert that the rev.sed
Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the Annuacl
General Meeting held on & May 2017 (and will expire at the
Arnual General Meeting to be held in 202G), with 4 6% of votes
for the resolution and 5 4% agasnst No further changes were
made to the policy in 2017 nor are any being proposed

Approach to Remuneration

it1s the Committee’s intention to develop within the Company o
greater culture of performance related reward The Committee
recognises the importance of reward differentiol as a teol thal
can be used to help improve business performance and ensure
that the appraisal and rating of employees takes ploce across
all regions and levels This in turn will have benefits on, amaongst
other things. employee retention and motivation

Matters considered by the Committee in 2017
The primary matters considered by the Committee in respect of
the 2017 inancial year were, in summary

Retirement of the Group Chief Executive Officer

{in conjunction with the retirement of Aloysius Lee at the end of
February 2017, the Committee determined the bonus to be paid to
Mr Lee in respect of his 2016 performance, as reported in the 2016
Annual Report & Accounts To recap hus leaving arrangements

he received his salary, allowences and cash pension contribution
through the end of January 2017, and ne bonus was or will be poid
in relation to 2017 With regard to Mr Lee's Long Term Incentive
Plan gwards over 134,408 shcres (awarded in 2015) and 185,643
shares {awarded in 2018), the Committee determined that these
awards would vest on their normal vesting dates subject to the
relevant agreed performance conditions, time pro-rating and the
rules of the sgcheme

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"}

No awards were made under the LTIP in 2017 The only
outstanding awards under the LTIP are thase made in 2015 and
2016

With regerd to the 2015 LTIP awards, the Committee reviewed
the Company's achievement ogainst the performance measures,
including total shoreholder return ( assessed cgainst the FTSE
250, excluding investment companies, and a hospitality peer
group). growth of the Company's net asset value and dividends
and cumulative earnings per share for the three-year period
ended 31 December 2017 The Commitlee determined that the
Company did not meet the required minimum thresholds and that
accordingly the awards will lapse in full in August 2018

Review of the External Adviser to the Committee

During 2017 the Committee conducted through a tender

process o review of its remuneration adviser and selected
PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP as its next adwviser Further details of
thot review are set out on page 63 of this report

Offer

During the year, an offer was mode by Agapier Investments
Limited, a company indirectly and wholly-owned by City
Developments Limited {'CDL"). for the entire 1ssued and to be
1issued ordinary share capital of the Company not already held
by CDL and its subsidianes (and persons acting n concert with
them} A final offer was announced on 8 December 2017 The
Committee as part of an assessment of the finatl offer considered
carefully how existing share awards should be trected in the event
that the offer were to proceed though the offer subsequently
lapsed on 26 January 2018 The offer obviously created
considerable uncertainty during the year and not o climate, in
relation to remuneration, for new develoepments

In closing 1 would like to thank my predecessor as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, Alexander Wough for his outstending
contribution to the work of the Committee as o member since 2010
and as its Chair since 20711 1 also would like to thank His Excellency
Shaukot Aziz Daniel Desbaillets. Gervase MacGreger and
Nicholas Gearge for their contributions to the Committee s work
over the past year

The remainder of this Directors’ Remuneration Report has been
prepared in complicnce with applicable reporting reguirements
and | hope you find it useful The Committee welcomes any
feedback from our shareholders

Yours faithfully.

Sue Farr
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Committee governance

Membership
Susan Farr chairs the Remuneration Committee and the other
members dre His Excellency Shaukat Aziz and Deniel Desballets

Ms Farr, who has been a member of the Committee since
December 2013, was appointed Chair on 5 May 2017, in place of
Alexander Wough who retired from the Board on that date Also
on 5 May 2017, Daniel Desballlets was appointed a member of
the Committee whilst Nicholas George and Gervase MacGregor
stepped down as members Mr Aziz served as a member of the
Committee throughout the full year

There were four scheduled meetings in 2017 and twe ad hoc
meetings Attendance atthe regulorly scheduled meetings 1s
shown in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 43 In
addition to the remuneration adviser the Chairman of the Board
interim Group Chief Executive Officer ond Chief Financial Officer
are invited to attend Committee meetings as appropriate The
Committee considers their views when reviewing the remuneration
of Executive Directors and other senior executives. however

no Directors are involved in the consideration of their own
remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the
Committee

No member of the Committee has cny personal financial interest
In the matters to be decided by the Committee or involvement in
the day-to-day management of the business of the Group

Further infarmation regarding the Committee’s advisers can be
faund on page 63 of this report

Role

The Commuttee hos delegotea authornity from the Board to
determine. in consultation with the Charrman of the Board and
Interim Group Chief Executive Officer as appropricte. the broad
remuneration policy and indwidual remuneration arrangements of
the Charrman, Executive Directors, Company Secretary and senior
management team It olso oversees the Group's share-based
Incentive arrangements

In addition, the Committee I1s guthorised to

* administer the Company's share option schemes

= oversee mojor changes to employee beneft structures
throughout the Group,

* ensure thot performance related elements of remuneration
form a significant proportion of the total remuneratan of
Executive Directors and are designed to align their interests
wath those of sharehoiders,

* consider whether the Executive Diractors should be eligible
for annuol bonuses ond benehts under long-term incentive
schemes,

+ provide packages needed to attract retain and motivate
Executive Directors of the quality required,

= approve the terms and duration of any service agreement to
be entered inta with an Executive Director,

= consider the compensation commitments payable to Executive
Directors under their service agreements or otherwise in the
event of early termination and

* select and appoint consultants engaged to advise the
Committee

The Commuttee’s terms of reference are available at https /#/
investars millenniumhotels com/corporate-governance/board-
committees
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Summary of the Remuneration Pelicy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the ' Policy”) was opproved by shareholders at the Company's AGM on &5 May 2017 (94 63% cof votes
cast being in favour) There are no proposals to amend the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the AGM on 4 Moy 2018 A summary of
the policy 1s Included for reference to ass:st with the understanding of the contents of this repart The full policy 1s detaited in cur 2016
Arnual Report and Accounts, which con be found https Zinvestors millenmumhotels com/financial/annucl-reports

The following table sets out each element of remuneration and how it supports the Company's short and long term strategic objectives

Bose Salary

Purpcse ard unk to strategy Salar es are g key componen: of the reward package in atiract:rg mot vat ng and reta ning execctives who are
nsirumental n drivirg and grawing the business and del vering the Cempany s strategic goa.s

Operation Sa.er es in the Group are based on the value of the indidua| the level of respons buity experience ard market conditicrs
Saler es are reviewed ot .east anrually but are nat necessarily ncreased The Committee may award salary increases ot
ofker tirres of tne year If t considers s.ch an aword tc be oppropr ate In reviewird sg drnes account is taken of market
cord hons significant changes e role pay ard conditiors elsewhere in the Group, inflaticn ard budgets

Max mum The salary payoble to Executive Directors will normally be copoea ot the upper guartile of the relevant morket penchmark
for the role under rewiew This maximum saiary represents the highes: end of the range at wrich the Committee would
expect the base salary to be se! rather than the actual ameunt to be oaid Salares will be set on a case-ty-case basws o
eflect the ro.e and the experience ana qualfications of the irdiv dual

There is no separate cap on the arual nerease to base salanes However the Committee will nermally determine tne
appropriate evel of morease for Execut ve Drectors laking inte account the gerera level of increase for the orogoer
work‘orce, but or cecas on may reed to moke a more sigr ficant increase to recognise additional respons bisties or ar
ncrease in the scale or scope of the role

Larger ncreases also moy be considered appropriate if a Director intialy haa been appainted ta the Beard on a beow
market salary

Annual Bonus

Purpose and link to strategy Execut ve Directors dre elig ble to participate ir &tr annua. bonus scheme to

* incentivise executives to drive Group strategy ard performonce over the short term and
* ensure that a signficant properhon of the total reward of executives packages s inked to perfermance during the year

Operation The performance pericd for annual bonuses corresponds with the finoncial year Bonus measures, weigntings and targets
are set arnually at the start of tre financikl year by the Corrmittee which retains discretion to revise any calcu.ated conus
downwaras kut not upwards f tis felt to have beceme misalignea with the Group's performence
Payment of the annual benus 1s narmally cont ngent on the employee still be ng employed by the Group at tne time of
payment ana the employee or the Comparny not having served notice of termination
Annual benas 1s not pensionable The Comm tiee may defer and pay a preporuen (up to 100% of the carned annual bonus)
in shares which must be hela for up o three years before vesting No performanrce conditions apply te such deferred bonus
shares oul ther release 1s sunject to continued employment over the vastng pened Deferred banus snare awards would
be eligible ot the Committee’s discretion for o dividend ecuwva.ent

The bonus ptan ncludes clawback and maius orov's ons

Maximum The level of berus cpportunity for Execuave Directors is
« Group Chief Executive Officer * Other kExecutve Directors
« Threshold 0% of base salary < Threskold 0% of base salary
Target /5% of bose salary - Target 50% of bose solory

Maximum 150% o° vase salary + Maxirrurn 1C0% of base salary
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Performance

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Purpose and ln< to strategy

QOpecratior

Maoximum

Performance

Pension

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Maxirrurr
Other benefits

Purpose and link to strategy

Operatior

70% of the ponus opoortun ty will be linked to firancial performance with the remainder tinked te non financal measures
wnich may irclude persora. objectives and other non-finanaial operat onal measures as determined by the Commitiee
such as corporate sociol responsibility performance targets However the Committee nas discretion to vary these
percentages by plus or minus 10% for any yeoer to reflect porticular corperate cbjectives Financiol recsures may include
but ore not umited to operoting profit profit before fox revenuwe ond revenue per ovoloble reoorr

The Committee determires oonus oerformance measures weght ngs and targets annuolly wnich are closey aligned with
the Group s shart-term strategic prionties Targets for f narcicl measures are set by reference to the Group s budget, wile
the persorar eierent of the borus s driven by personal performance obiectives set at the start of the year

The Company s 2016 Long Term Incentive Plon (I TIP ) forms the lorg term var able element of executive remuneration ol
the Company and 1s intended to incentivise lang-term outperformance Tre LTIP aliows for the oward of performance
shares ril cost share options and deferred bonus shares

For the three-year period over which this policy 's ntended to apply { TIP awards will nermally comprise awards of

perfarmance shares which are a med at drving and rewarding sustainable performance over tne long term aligning the
intarests of executives and shareholders and support ng retention

Performonce share awards are made onnuolly and normally vest or the third anriversary of the date of grent subject to the

ach.evement of performance conditions over three years continued employment with the Group and the rules of tre Plan !
LTIP awards may oddit onally be suorect to an additional post-vesting holding pened (of up to two years) There s no i
re-test ng of perfarmance conditions under the Plan The Plan allows divicends or d v dend equivaiients to accrue subect 1o

the Commuttee s discret on

The P.uan includes clowback and malus provisions

The maximum annua. vawe of performance shares and nil cost share options owardea under the LTIP < 150% of base
selary. a.though awards with face volues of uo to 200% of saiary may be owardes in exceptional circumstances including,
but not urmted to the recruitment of @ new Execut ve Director The level of award s otherwise determined by the Committee
at the time of grant details of which wil be disclosed n the relevant Annual Report on Remureration

The performance measares attached to LTIP awards will comprise o btend of measures determined by the Comm tiee from
tme to trme with at least a 50% weight ng on Eornmgs Per Share ('FPS ) A smalt element no: exceeding 10% of any
award, may be based on ¢ discrehionary assessment of the achievement of key strategic objectives sucn as those reloting to
asset management cna the tmely delivery of key projects within budget

Under each measure entry 'evel performance will result in 25% of maxmum vesting for that element, nsirg or a straight-
line basis o full vestng

The prowis on of retirement benefits supports the Company in attracting and reta rung executives and oromoting long-term
retirement planning

A defined cash contnbution may be made into either a Company sponsored oensiar pian or o private pension plan or as
cash in aey of pensian

Up to 20% of base solary

Allows the Company to recruit and retar appropriate executive talent through the prowvision of cos: etfective benefits
consistent with market practice

Executive Directors also may aisc participate @ong with ather employees in the Group s wix advantoged United Kingdom
Save os You Earn { SAYE } or other equivalent savings-based shore schemes to share in the success of the Groun

Standard benefits are offered to ensure they are competitive with market practice by location and the level ang
responsibilites of the individuol These may compr se (olthough are not imited o) o moter vehicle and drver or an
approprate allowanee insurarces for Ufe, personal accident disabnlity and formily medical cover

Special benefits such as relocation remaval, tax equalisation Fouse purcnase/rental allowance and cnildren s edycot on
allowance may be offered to attract the right cardidote n the event that an Executive Dwector s appointed on expatr ote or
international ass:gnment terms
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SAYE/savings bosed schemes are subjact to namadual limits In the UK tne imit :s set by the Cormmittee up ta the L mits
orescr bed by .eg slation

The volue of standard benefits' 1s consistent with retevant marxet practice ond 15 keot under review by the Commuttee but
waould not pe expected to exceed more thar the equivalent of a month s salary other than i exceptonat c rcumstonces
The valLe of any special benefts s reviewea on a case-by-case basis but would rot be expected to exceed more than the
equ valent of three months bose salary other than in exceptional cireurnstances

Witnin five years of being apooirted to tre Boarg Execut ve D rectars are requered o burd up ond retain ordinary shares
n the Company equivalent ir value to 200% of ther base anmuaol solory Should ar Prxecutive Director not hold tne required
evel of shares t~en ot least 50% o' any vesting under a Company ircentive p.an is requrred to be retoned until the
requirement 1s met Provideq that Executive Directors held ana ma niain the cooregr ate level of shares they may sel.
shares supectto the narmal requirement for directors’ dealimgs wrder cpplicable regulotors

Srare interests which do not count towards tne shareholding guidernes include

* unvested performance share awords

® SAYE optiors

* unvested deferred bonus shares ard

* any not cnal accruea avidend eauiva.ent shares with vesting subject to future performance

Directors to whom this reau rement appuees are orohibited fram engagirg n ary heaging transactions witn respect to
Company shares ircluding trad ng in any de-vative securties Tnere are ro farma sharehold ng guidei nes for e

Cha rmar, the Non-Executive Directors and the senior manogemert however they are ercouraged to held shares i~ the
Company ir arder to abgn therr interests with these of shareholders

Ir the case of the Chairman, the Charrman receives o set fee and the fee level s determired by tne Committee Tne
Cha rmar s fee 15 detetrrned taking 1rto account the tme commitment and responsionit es of the role as wel. os the role
ho.der s skils grawvitas ond gualfications to lead the boora

Fees pa d to Non-Execunve Directors are deterrmired by the Boord as a whole taorg 'nic acceunt the time corr mitment and
responsibiliies Tne policy 1s 1o set fees at or around the median for companies of o smitar size and complexity Tner
puroose 15 to attract ard retain Non-Execuuve Directors

Non-Executive Direciors are paid ar addtioral fee for being Senicr Irdependent Director a member of a Board commitiee
ana for char ng a Beord committee

The independent Non-Executive Directors each have rolling letters of appointment which may be terr nated by either party
en one montn s notice Non-Execut ve Directors are not entitled to oonuses benefits ar pension scheme contnbutions or to
partcipate nany snare scheme operoted by the Company Ir addition to ary remurerction payable a Non-Executive
Director moy be paid reasonable travel hotel and other expenses properly ncurred in dischargirg the Director s duties
Fees cease mmediately nthe event the Non-Executive Director ceases to be a Director
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Remuneration on recruitment

Reward packages for new Executive Directors will be consistent with the approved Remuneration Policy Fixed remuneration elements
would be pad only frem the date of employment and any bonus will be pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the year employed The
maximum level of variable remuneration 1s as stated in the policy table above

If. consequent to joining the Group, a new director forfeits elements of vanable reward linked to thetr previous employment, the
Committee reserves the right to make compensatary awards up to the maximum amount of the :ndividual’s actual or estimated loss Any
such awards waould be made taking into account the performance conditions and time horizon of the forfeited awards In the event that
an internal candrdate 1s appointed as an Executive Director. any contractual obligation in respect of a previcus role will be honoured
even f it 1s inconsistent with this policy at the time the obligotion 1s fulhlled

The Committee retains discretion te use Listing Rule 9 4 2(2) (and for this purpase only) to compensate an Executive Directer for long-
term incentive scheme awards forfeited on leaving o previous employer Such buyout awards will have a fair value ne greater than
the awards forfeited The arrangements that exist for current Executive Directors as set out in the Policy Table, would then apply tc the
balance of the indwidual s remuneration package

Termination payments

The Company's normal policy is to bmit payments to Executive Directors on termination to contractual entitlements under their service
agreements and the rules of any Incentive and pension plans There 15 no automatic entitlement to bonus as port of the terminction
arrangements, and the value of any terminating arrangement will be ot the discretion of the Committee. having regard te all relevant
facters This discretion allows the Committee to determine good leaver status, the consequences of which are set out In the table below

Performance Shares Performance conditions Awaord lapses Per‘ormance conditions To disapply the pro rata vesting

opplied taking nto account the
foreshortened performance perod
Atime pro rata reduction is then
cppled

applied taxing inte account the
foreshortened performance
penod

Atime pro rota reduction is then
applied

or decide that the award will vest
on tne normal vesting date

AnnLal Bonus

Performance condit ons No banus payable
cpelied taking into account the
fareshortened perfermarce pericd

At me pro rata recuction is ther

Performance conditions
applied taking into account the
foreshortened performance
pencd

To d sapply pro rata reducnon
and mamtain ongiral sum

applhed Atme oro rata reduction s then
oppled
Deferred Bonus Shares Vest i full Award lapses Vest infull To determ ne the number of

shares that vest up to the volue of
the epglicable benus

Reasons for ‘good leaver” status include death, ill health, retirement with the approval of the Company office of employment ceases to

be a part of the business or any other reason determined by the Committee
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Annual report on remuneration

Audited Information
Single total figure of remuneration for each Director in 2017
The total remuneration for each person who served as a Directer of the Company during 2017 1s set aut in the table below

Chairman

Kwek Leng Beng™ 272 77 - - - - 202 271

Executive Directors

Aloysius Lee? 42 500 1 12 - 10 - - [5) 100 5 722

Nen-Executive Directors

Shaukot Anz® 64 57 - - - - - - 64 57

Chnistian de Charnacé® i9 - - - - - - - - @ -

Dan el Desoalllets 58 15 - - — — - - - 58 15

Susan Farr® 65 &l - - - - - - - 65 &l

Martin Leitch® 39 - - - - - - - 3% -

Kwek F k Sheng® 56 54 - - - - - 56 54

Kwek Leng Peck™ 63 &b - - - - - - - &3 b&

Gervase MacGregor' 69 72 - - - - - - - - 69 72

Past Non-Executive Directors

N cholas George” 26 74 - - - - - - - 26 4

Alexanger Waugh' 25 72 - - - - - - 25 72

Howara Wu* 23 - - - - - - 23

Total a21 1242 1 12 - 10 - - a 100 830 1,464

Notes

T Saanes ord fees are shown rowsive of surs recevaole by the Directors fram the Company end ary of ts supsaary undertakirgs

2 Aloysws | ees poy ord allowonces ceased or 31 fanuary 2017 He rece vea o car allowance and o cash pens or con'r buter of 20% of h s bosic satary up to the end of |oruary 20°7

3 Inocacitortet s bosc fee Kwekl erg 3eng recerved £22 183 in d rector ‘ees from subs.ciiary comparies

4 Kwek Lerg Beng s tre mghest pod Director ris biography on page 32 reports tne direclersh ps and posiions ne g ds nath er pubil Gy-1ad e6 Goul subssid @nes ang associaie Lo puries

5 Shaukar Aziz wos opponied Scrior irdependert D rector or & May 2C17

6 Chr stion ge Cnarnocé was apooirted to ke Boora an 6 August 2017

7 Daniel Despa llets wos oppointed a rrember af the Aua t, R s« and Remureraton Comrm ttees on & May 20 7

& SusarFar-woes appaintea Cha r of the Remurerat on Comm ttee on § May 2017 Sre stepped dawn as o memrber of the Audit Cormmittee on 22 Moy 2017

9 Maryr ' e ich joimed the Board aro was apcointed o memuer ¢f the Auait a~a “ommat ors Committees on 22 Moy 20 7 He becarre Cnarr of the Augit Commitiee or 4 Augus: 2017

"D adot on to ther pasic fee <wek _eng Pec< and Kwek Fik Sheng received £ 7 995 ard £3 68 respect vely in d rector fees from subs o ory carrparies

' Gervase MocGregor was aopo nted Charr of tre sk Commitice ara steoped agwn as a member of tne Remunerat an Committee o1 5 Moy 20 / He stecoea dawr as Char of tne Audit
Committee on 4 August 20 7 cut remains a member of tne Comm tee

2 MNacnolas Gearge ret red from tre 3oara as Sen or \ndependent Director ard os o rrerrper of the Aud ! Risk Remuneration ana Nomrinctions Cormittees on 5 May 2017

3 Awcxander Waugh -etired fram tne Baa-d as Cnarr of tre Remuncratior Committee ard as o member of tre Auc t ana Nomiratiens Cormittees or 5 May 200/

4 Howard W waos appomited to *he Bogra and os a memoer of the Risk Comm itee or 1/ tebruory 2017 He coused o be o member of the R sk Cammittee or 3 May 2017 ara ceased to be o Diveciar

or 3 Aug.st 2017 upon oking Lp senior execut ve auties witn the Comoony
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2017 annual bonus for Executive Directors
No annucl bonus was payable te Aloysius Lee for 2017 There ore therefore no performance measures or performance targets
applicable to any Executive Director who served during 2017

Reporting on 2016 annual benus targets

The 2016 Annual Report and Accounts described the annual performance bonus critena for Aloysius Lee, the only Executive Director
who served in 2016 It was divided into two compoenents financial performance measures which represented 60% of the bonus
opportunity, and personal key performance indicators, which represented 40% of the bonus opportunity The 2016 Annual Report

& Accounts reported that, in relation to the financicl performance measures, one target was bosed on Group Revenue (with o 10%
weighting) and the other Group Profit Before Tax (with a 50% we:ighting) However, the 2016 Annucl Report and Accounts did not show
the specific inancial targets for Aloysius Lee’s inancial performance measures due to their commercial sensitivity The Committee has
now determined that the specific financial targets are no longer commercially sensitive, and as such the financial performance targets
and achievements for Mr Lee’s annual bonus for the year ended 31 Becember 2016 are set out below

Financial Performance Objectives representing 60% of the oppertunity

Group Revenue £902m No payout below threshold of 95% of target nsing or o 10% £926m
stro.ght line basis to maxirum poyout for 105% of target or 773%
more

Graup Proft Before Tax £161m* Na payaJt below threshola of 92% of target sngona 50% £125m*
straight line basis to maxmum payout for 108% of target or ni.
more

“Exclud ng revaluatior ga ns and mpa fment losses excent nrelat an to properies witinn tae CDL Fasprtcnty Trusts portfo o

Reporting on 2015 annusl bonus targets

Wong Hong Ren was Group Chief Executive Othcer and a Director until 28 February 2015 Aloysius Lee was appointed Group Chief
Executive Officer and a Director as from 1 March 2015 The 2015 Annual Report and Accounts described how the annual banuses for
Mr Wong cnd Mr Lee were calculated However, the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts did not show the specific inancial targets
for their inancial performance objectives, due to their commercial sensitivity The Committee has now determined that the specihc
financial targets are no longer commercially sensitive, and as such they are now set out below

Financial Performance Objectives representing 60% of the apportunity

e . - .

Group Reverue £887m No payout below tnresheld of 35% of target nsing ona 10% £847m
straght Line basis to maximum payout for 105% of target or 049%
more

Group Profit Before Tax £192m* No payout below threshold of 2% of target rsingona 50% £i52m*
straight line basis to maximum payout for 108% of target or ni,
more

“Excluding revaluation gairs ond mpairment .osses except in relatior 1o oropert es within the COL Hosg tality Trusts portfolio
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Scheme interests awarded in 2017
No Directar was awarded shares under the Company's LTIP or under any cther Company share scheme during the year

Scheme interests awarded during 2015 and 2016

The 2015 LTIP awards were made on 3 August 2015 and were due o vest on the third anniversary of the award being made, subject
to performance conditions comprising earnings per share ( EPS™) net asset volue ("NAV") plus dividend growth and relative total
shareholder return ( TSR ) over the three-year perniod ended 31 Becember 2017 The anly Director to be awarded performance shares
under the Company's LTIP during 2015 was Aloysius Lee over 134,408 shares

The performance conditions and actual performance against the relevant targets are set out in the table below

EPS 60% Cumulative EPS Nap 1380 820 NI

NAY 20% Arruatgrowth in NAV &% po 13% pa 4 7% pa N

TSR 10% TSR relat ve te FTSE 250 index Inline with the ndex  Outperfarm index oy Underoerfarmed N
(excluding iIrvesimen® trusts) 9% pa index

TSR 10% TSR relatve te comparator group Median Median + 9% pa Below median NI

Overall N

Notes

1 Tne peer growe compnses Accor, Janyan Tree Heldings 3elmonc Choice Hotels lnternat ono, Hongrong i Shangha —otels —ate, Properties  'yat: rdotels !nterCant nental Fotels Group,

Mandarin Onental Marrott rternratioral Mela Hote s nternatioral “WH Hoteis Overseos Jron Enterpnse Reraor Snangralir iorg rterratonc. Snangs Lo As o Storwooa —oteis & Resorts®
Whiread ond Wyndnom Worldw ne
Mergea w tn Marnott Internat ong, on 23 Septerber 2016

Bosed on the Company's cumulative EPS, NAV plus dividend growth and relative TSR performance for the three years ended
31 December 2017 the Commiitee has determined that the 2015 LTIP awards will lopse in full on 3 August 2018

The only person to be awarded performance shares under the Company's LTIP during 2016 was Aloysius Lee That awerd details of
which can be found in the 2016 Anrnual Report and Accounts, was made on 29 March 2016 over 185,643 shares and remains subject to
achievement of the relevant performance measures, ime pro-rating and the LTIP rules

Payments made to past directors

Mr Wong retired as o Director and the Group Chief Executive Officer on 28 February 2015, but continued to be a director of certain
subsichanes of the Company, primarly M&C REIT Management Limited and M&C Business Trust Management Limited {untit 12 Feoruary
2018 in each case), managers of the trusts that comprise CDL Hospitality Trusts and Miltermum & Coptharne Hotels New Zealand
Lirited and CDL Investments New Zealand Limited {until 30 June 2017 in each case) As previously disclosed, as part of Mr Wong's
retirement arrangements, he renounced any fees payable to him inrelation to those directorships for the period between 1 March 2015
and 29 February 2016 Mr Wong wos entitled to retain any subsidiary directorship fees earned in respect of any peried after February
2016, and os such he was paid a fee of NZ$46,667 for serving as a director on the Board of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New
Zealand Uimited and a fee of NZ$40 000 for serving as a director on the Board of CDL Investments New Zealand Limited Mr Wongs
aggregate fees for serving as a Non-Executive Chairman of, and as a member of the Nominating and Remuneration Committees of,
the Boards of M&C REIT Management Limited and M&C Business Trust Monagement Limited for the period from 29 February 2016 to

31 December 2017 inclusive, was $3$125,000

Furthermore on 30 September 2017, CDL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited acquired from Mr Weng, at o purchase price of
NZ3$2 90 per share 604,000 ordinary shares and 302 000 redeemable preference shares in Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New
Zealand Limited Both companies cre subs:diares of the Company
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Payments for loss of office

There were na payments for loss of ofhce made dunng the year

Statement of directors’ shareheoldings and share interests

'

N

'
i

- '
PTG

The interests of the Directors whe served during 2017, and therr persons clasely associated in the ordinary shares of the Company were

as follows

Chairman

Kwex Leng Beng - - - _ N/A
Past Executive Director

Aloysius Lee”? - 320 051 320 05 N/A
Non-Executive Directors

Snaukat Aziz - - - - NSA
Christ an de Cnarrace - - - - NAA
Danel Desboil.ets - - - - N/A
Susan Farr - - - - N/A
Nicholas George 12 500 12 500 - 12,5007 N/A
Kwex Eik Sheng - - - - NAA
Kwe« | eng Peck - - - - N/A
Martin Leitch - N/A
Gervase MocGregor - - - - N/A
Alexander Waugh - - N/A
Howard Wy - - - - N/A
Nates

1 The irterests of the D rectars appo nted by City Deve opmerts | mited 1n that compary and s uhmate parent compary Hieng Leang Investrment Hold ngs Pre (1d ore disclosed i the accounts of

tnose companes

2 'n addiiun to shares or scheme Nterests n e Company Mr Tan K an Seng nolds i shore i edch such subsid vy effective from 18 Febraary 201} Grand Plaza Hotet Corooratior, Royo Realty

Corporation and Harbour _ang Cerporat on These shares were transferred fom Aloys us L ee
3 Mrleessharenclding of 320 G5! shares was effective until ne retired fram the Boord on 78 February 20°7
4 As of 5 May 2017 wher Mr Gearge stepped down from tne Boara

There have been no changes to the Directors interests between 31 December 2017 and the date of this report

Shareholding requirements

As set out in the Company's Remuneration Policy. within five years of being appointed to the Board, Executive Directors are required to

build up, and retain, ordinary shares in the Company equivalent in value to 200% of their base annual satary

As none of the Directors who served during 2017 were Executive Directors, apart from Aloysius Lee. none of them were required to

comply with these requirements With regard to Mr Lee. since he served as an Executive Director for only two years—from 1 March 2015
until 28 February 2017—he was not reguired to have met the shareholding reguirements as of the date of his retirement from the Board
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Unaudited Information

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy in 2018
This section provides an overview of how the Committee s proposing to implement the Remuneration Policy in 2018

Remuneration of Any Executive Directors to be appointed in 2018

The Committee expects that any recrutment benefits or compensation and the salary bonus and share scheme orrangements and
pension and other benehts to be provided to any new Executive Director appointed during 2018 will be 'n line with the Directors
Remuneration Policy last approved by the Company's shareholders as disclosed in the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts

As disclosed in the Nominations Committee report. the recruitment of o permanent Group Chief Executive Officer was put on hald in
August 2017 pending the results of the possible offer. and subsequent final offer, from CDL As discussed earlier in the report the offer
lapsed on 26 January 2018

in the event a new Executive Drrector is to be appointed in 2018 the Committee will be mindful of the guidance set out in the Investment
Association Principles of Remuneration that the use of additioncl holding periods for performance share awards i1s now commaonly
expected by \nvestors so that in total the performance and holding period should cover a period of at least five years In addition, the
Committee anticipates working with its remuneration advisor to develop a more tailored and fit-for-purpose remuneration package for
any permanent Group Chief Executive Officer or other Executive Director to be appeinted, which may include the use of o post-vesting
holding period in the LTIP, and the deferral of a portion of any cash payments under the Company's short-term incentive bonus plan
The Committee believes that these measures could assist in further aligning the interests of Executive Directors with the interests of the
Company's shareholders, and therefore help drive continued long-term value creation

Non-Executive Director fees

Payments to Non-Executive Directors will be in accordance with the current Directors Remuneration Policy Non-Executive Directars
therefore will continue to receve a basic fee for Board membership and separate onnual fees for therr service as a member and, to the
extent applicable. the Charr of a Board committee The Senicr Independent Director will be paid an additional fee, currently of £10 000
per year to serve in such capacity Details of the current additional committee and chatr fees are set out in the table below and ne
changes are being proposed for 2016

Audit Committee £5000 £10000
Remureration Comm ttee £5000 £10000
Nominations Committee £2 000 -
Risk Committee £3000 £5000

The Cha.rman of the Board will receive c set fee determined by the Committee from time to time The current onnual fee 1s £250.000
and will remain the same in 2018 The Choirman also may continue to receve additional fees for serving as a director of certain
subsidiary companies
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Additional disclosures

Performance of the Company and historic remuneration of the Group Chief Executive Officer

The following graph illustrates the total shareholder return of the Company's shares and comparator indexes over the past nine years
As the Company s o constituent of both the FTSE 250 and the FTSE Allshare Travel & Leisure index, the Directors consider these indices
to be the most appropriate broad equity market indices against which the Company's performance should be compared for these
purposes
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. Mllennium & Coptheme Hotels plc ———FTSE 250 excluding investment trusts ——FTSE Allshare Travel & Leisure

The remuneration history of the Group Chief Executive Officer over the same period 1s as follows

. . 7" . P . - P

Total remuneration (£ 000) 797 1243 4404 1495 2,287 1429 1389 832 5]
Annual bonus 25% 100% 63% 3% 65/% 62% 19% 15% N/A
(osa percentage of maximum opportumty}
LIIP vestirg rates 0% 0% 100% 100% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0%
(us o percentage of moximum opportunity)
Nates
T Ricnard “{artman retred os Group Chief Frecutive Offcer and Wong Horg Rer wos dppointed to the post on 27 June 2017 These figures are for ooth gna are restated 1o be corsistert with the other

years

2 Wong Hang Ren stepped down as Group Chief Executive Cfficer ar 28 February 2015 and Aloysius Lee was appointed as Group Chief Fxecut ve O cer Designate from 1 February 2015 ang
assumea the ‘uil role as of 1 March 2015 “hese “gures ase for bath

3 Ingludes the Fnol twe months of payments urder Mr Wong ten Ren s service contract

4 Aoysus Lees pay ollowances ond pension contnbutians reased on 31 Jonuary 2017 Remuneratior for Mr "an K an Seng intenm Chiefl Executive Gihicer has not been inciuded as ne did not serve os
an executive d rector during the year
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Percentage change in remuneration of the Group Chief Executive Officer
The tables below show the percentage change in remuneration {based on salary and fees, taxable benefts and annual bonus)
between 2016 and 2017 for the Group Chief Executive Officer and employees within the Groups bonus pool

Grouo Cnief Executive Officer’ -9 A% -91 % -100%

Empioyees 4% 8%

Al perceniages are basca on converung reeveel .ooal currene g4 10ta pounas sterl g us g Fe overage ates for the resnect ve year

? Grayo Crief Zxeculve OFcer crarge 1s tre percertage change berweer tre rermunerat or po ate Mr ee r 2016 and 201/ Tre sowry ana pere~sno o to Mrlee n 2017 rgue peen grassed up to
equote in afy, year pasen gr nis rose of pay as a° ~.s depari,re cote of 28 Febraary 2017

3 Crange - ncrus relotes to coyments mode r the respect ve year

Relative importance of spend on pay

The toble below illustrates the year-on-year chenge in totol pay for colleagues across the Group (being the aggregate personnel
expenses as set out In Note 8 to the financial statements) and distributions te shareholders {being declared dwvidends) The average
numbper of colleagues employed by the Group in 2017 was 11,602 (2016 10.996)

Emp.oyee remuneratior costs 352 370 S
D widenas d str buted 21 25 2

Statement of voting at general meeting

The following table sets out the proxy voting in respect of the resclutions to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the 2016
Directors’ Remuneration Report which resolutions were put to shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meetings held on b May
2017 and passed on a show of hands The Directors were pleased with the support received from shareholders

Approve the Directors Remunerotion Potcy 256115147 94 63% 16 813 616 537% 5707
Approve the Directors Remuneration Report for the year enced 31 Decemper 2016 306 112 649 97 82% & 817,576 218% 4245

*irc Laes aiscret orary votes

The Company understands that d small numbet of shareholders would have preferred a mandatory post-vesting helding period to be
included in the LTIP As o result, and as noted earlier in this report the Committee will consider including this feature in the package
offered to new Executive Directors

Consideration by the Committee members of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Committee 15 authorised by the Board to appoint external advisers if it considers such an appointment to be beneficiol The
Commuttee decided in December 2016 that it should carry out a tender process for the appointment of the Committee's remuneration
adviser as o matter of good practice given that the incumbent. Mercer Kepler. had been in role for five years

The Committee conducted a comprehensive tender and selection process during which the Committee imvited five firms (including the
incumbent) to submit written proposals Four of thase firms were then shorthisted and made presentations to the Committee At the end
of that process, PricewcterhouseCoopers LLP ("Pw(") were selected as the Committee’s new remuneration adviser, with effect from |
Cecember 2017 Consultants from PwC then commenced a transition exercise and attended the Remuneration Committee meeting of 14
December 2017 before then consultants from Mercer Kepler attended most of the Commuttee’'s other meetings in 2017
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PwC advises the Committee directly on matters within the Committee s terms of reference on which the Committee chooses to consult
PwC lts scope of work includes attending Committee meetings updating the Committee on developments in the market and trends

In remuneration best practices and governance, reviewing this report, carrying out tatal remuneration benchmarking for Executive
Directors, carrying out iFRS 2 valuations for the Company in relation to the Company's share schemes, providing regular TSR monitoring
reports and independently validating the Company's annual LTIP vesting calculations PwC was paid £3,208 in respect of such services
provided in 2017

PwC may also be called upon to advise the Board of Directors of the Company (or those Directors charged by the Board to make
recommendations) from time to time on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman

In terms of PwC's other engagements with the Group, they provided limited advisory services to the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company on matters relating to the share schemes of the Company and the effect on those share schemes of the offer
by CDL The aggregate amount of fees paid to PwC for these services dunng 2017 was £19.665 PwC also acted as the primary tax
adwisor to the Group in the EUJ and provided tax consulting services to the Group in other regions upon request This wark will continue
in 2018

Aside from these services, PwC did not provide other significant services to the Group over the year and currently is not engaged to
provide any services in 2018 other than the tax consulting services. for which PwC has implemented confidentiality barriers between
therr tax consulting and remuneration advisory teams to help ensure that thew remuneration advice remains independent The
Committee also reviewed the potential for conflicts of interest and the Cemmittee 1s comfortable that the PwC engagement partner
and team that provide remuneration advice to the Committee do not have cennections with the Company that may imparir the
independence of therr judgment In addiion, as a founder member of the Remuneration Consultants Group, PwC voluntarily operates
under the Voluntary Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK Finally, as & member firm of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW™), PwC complies with the ICAEW's ethical guidelines As o result, PwC
cperates under rigorous rules on independence complionce and quality assurance

For the reosons outlined above, the Committee has determined that the advice provided by PwC 1s objective and independent

Mercer Kepler served as the Committee’s remuneration advisor until | December 2017 Mercer Kepler's fees were generally charged on
an hourly basis and the aggregate fees paid to Mercer Kepler duning 2017 were £11.918 (2016 £30100) Mercer Kepler alsc provided
advice to the Company on the accounting treatment of share options under IFRS 2, Mercer Kepler provided no other services to the
Group in 2017 Mercer Kepler, as o founding member and signatery to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants, routinely
confirmed via their consultants that they did not have any conflicts of interest and the Committee was satished that their advice was
independent

External appointments

The Company recognises that Executive Directors may be invited to become Non-Executive Directors of other companies and that
such appointments can broaden the executives’ knowledge and experience for the benefit of the Group If an Executive Director
wishes to take on an external Non-Executive Director appaintment, the Company's policy 1s to support an Executive Director with that
appointment provided that there are no conflicts of interest and the role does not interfere with the executive’'s commitment or duties
They may retain any fees paid in connection with such other appeintments. with the approval of the Committee

Since there were no Executive Directors serving on the Board as at the date of this repert, no external oppointments are reported
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Directors service agreements and letters of appointment
It 1s the Company's policy for Executive Directors to have service contracts that prov de for a notice perod for termination of up to 12
manths

The dates an which the Directors initial service agreements or letters of appointment commenced and the current exprry dates are as
follows

Chairman
Kwek Leng Beng Appo ntec since listirg Nominee of controlling sharenalder
Terms of appoirtrert refreshed on 15 February 2017

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Shaukat Aziz 16 June 2009

Danel Despailets 1N August 2016

Susan Farr 12 December 2013

Alexanaer Wough 16 June 2009 through 5 May 2017 Rolling letters of apoo ntrrent terminaple oy ether party or one
N cholas George 16 june 2009 through 5 Moy 201/ mnﬂ?ﬁ ot ¥
Gervase MacGregor 1 December 2014

Martin Leitch 27 Moy 2017

Howara Wu 16 February 2017 threugh 3 August 2017

Christian de Charnacé 16 ALgust 2017

Other Non-Executive Directors

Kwek Eik Sheng 13 May 2011

Kwek Leng Peck Appointed s nce listing Nominees of contrzling shareholaer

Terms of appatrtrent refreshed on 15 February 2017

Executive Directors
Aloysius Lee 10 December 20747 through 28 February 2017

1 Tre cemmencerment date of M Daspatllets aopoirtment to the Boord was 14 Sepiemner 2706
2 Tre effect ve gate of MrWuas appointment was 17 February 2617
3 Mr _ee rormenced ris e a5 a Director of the Company on” Moren 20 5

Letters of appaintments for the Directors are kept at the Groups corporate headquarters ot Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic.
Scarsdale Place, Kensington tondon, W8 558Y

There exist no other cbligations that might give nise to, or impact an, remuneration payments or payment for loss of office which are not
disclosed elsewhere in this report

The Group’s share schemes
In addition to the LTIP, the Group operates two other share schemes for senior employees other than the Executive Directors the
Deferred Share Bonus {"DSB ) scheme and the Executive Share Plan ('ESP”)

Under the ESP awards of conditional shares are made to senior executive management The ESP was approved by the Group on

18 February 2016 to replace participation in the LTIP for this population The Committee determines the size of the awards to be made
taking into account the Group's perfoermance and achievements over a one, two and three-year period The shares are released to
participants in tranches, subject to continued employment and the rules of the plan with 25% vesting one year after grant 25% two
years after grant, and 50% three yeors after grant The awards are subject to malus and clowback provisions under the rules of the ESP

Far the 2017 grant under the ESP. the Committee obtained advice from its remuneration consultant on the appropriate award level The
awards were made in August 2017 to eight senior executives, over a total of 56.838 shares
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The DSB is the deferred element of the Groug's onnual bonus plan Awards of conditional shares are made to senior employees but not
to those who participate in the ESP. and are calculated based on a percentage of o participant’s bonus earned for the previous year
Awards alsc are subject to malus and ctawback provisions under the rules of the DSB

In June 2017 awards were made to 59 employees over 55,750 shares and vest as to 25% ofter one year, 25% after two years and the final
50% ofter three years, subject to continued employment and the rules of the scheme

Satisfaction of perforrmance share awards

Performance share awards are made far nit consideration and are satshed erther by the issue of new shares or through market
purchases of shares Cyrrently the company has in place an employee benefit trust known as the Millennium & Copthorne Hotels ple
Employee Bereht Trusty 2006 (the "EBT™). which was established to acquire shores to satisfy performance share awards that may vest
from time to time  As at 3] December 2017, the EBT held 3.437 unallocated shares {2016 4,345 shares) representing approximately

0 00010% of the Company's 1ssued share copital os at the same date Executive Directors whe participate in the LTIP, tegether with other
employees of the Group who participate in the LTIP and other performance share schemes, are potential benehciaries of the EBT and.
as such, are deemed to be interested in any shares held

Dilution

The Company ensures that the level of shares granted under the Companys share plons and the means of satisfying such awards
remains within best practice guidelines so that dilutian from employee share awards does not exceed 10 per cent of the Company's
issued shore capital for all-employee share plans and five per cent in respect of executive share plans in any ten-year rolling period
The Company moniters dilution levels on a regular basis and the Committee reviews these at least once a year

Share price

The market price of an ordinary share of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 585 pence and the range during the year was
A0 pence to 626 pence

The Directors confirm that this report has been prepared in accordance with the Compories Act 2006, reflects the provisions of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 and was approved ata
meeting of the Board held on 28 March 2018

On behalf of the Board

Sve Farr
Chair of the Remuneragtion Committee

R TR S
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders

| am pleased to present the Companys
Nominations Committee Report for
2017 This report provides o summary of
the Committee’s responsibilities and 1ts
activities throughout the year

During the year the focus of the Committee
was on Board and committee composition,
the role of the Group Chief Executive
Offcer. which currently 1s filled oy Mr Tan
Kian Seng as the Company's interim Group
Chief Executive Officer, and the succession
of senior indwviduals within the business

The progress made in these areos 1s
outlined below and it 1s worth noting

that the Committee olso 1s committed to
embedding inclusion and diversity ot the
Board and executive levels and generally
throughout the Graup These efforts will
continue to be a focus of the Committee
and Board going forward

Beard and committee composition

This was a significant year of change on
the Board With Aloysius Lee. Alexander
Waugh and Nicholas George stepping
down from the Board durning the first half
of the year those retirements created an
opportunity to refresh the cemposition of
the Board and its committees The hrst new
appointment during the year was Howard
Wu i February 2017 Given Howard's
background and experience, it became
clear that he could best support the Group
In an executive capacity On & May 2017 we
announced that he would be leading the
Group's information technology function
and he has since taken on leadership of
the Company's North American operations
as its President He stepoed down from the
Board on 3 August 2017

in addition to Howard's appointment, the
Committee 1dentihed and reccmmended
two additional appointments to the Board,
Martin Leitch and Christian de Charnacé,
who |cined the Board in May 2017 and

August 2017, respectively Martin has
valuable carporate finance experience
in the UK whilst Christion brings deep
international financial and investment
barking experience to the Board
Biographtes of these new directars are
available on page 33

As a result of these retirements and new
appointments, the Committee considered
succession planning within, and changes
to. the Board's commttees First, His
Excellency Shoukat Aziz succeeded
Nichsolas George as the Company's Serwor
Independent Director as from 5 May 2017
Given his experience and knowledge of
the Company, his appointment helped

to bring continuity to the role Second
Susan Farr was apponted os Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and Gervase
MacGregor was appointed Chair of the
Risk Committee, also with effect from 5
May 2017 Both Drrectors had served on
and meaningfully participated in each
respective committee prior to taking on
therr new charr responsikbilities Martin
Leitch assumed the role of Charr of the
Audit Committee on 4 August 2017 Finally
Christian de Charnacé was appointed as
a member of the Audit Committee effective
23 March 2018

Additional changes were made as
announced throughout the year and the
Committee will continue to keep under
review the composition of the Board and
its committees and may consider new
appointments as and when appropriate

Role of the Group Chief Executive Officer
Following the retirement of Aloysius Lee at
the end of February 2017, the Committee.
together with the wider Beard, took time
to consider the role of the Group Chief
Executive Officer Mr Tan Kian Seng who
first joined the Group as Chief of Staff
ond interim President of Asiao in October
2016 was elevated to serve as the interim
Group CEO from March 2017 and has
proven to be competent and a safe pair

of hands as we work to fill the skills gaps
in our regional and functicnal leadership
teams

Whilst the Board believes thot the
appointment of a permanent Chief
Executive Officer 1s vitally important

for the Group. given the need and

time required to find an apprapriate
candidate, it was eritica. to address the
operatianal and other 1ssues impacting
our operations in the U S, New York in
particular, Singopore and elsewhere as
a matter of priority However, recruitment
for the role was put on hotd In August
2017 following the approoch by Agapier
Investments Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of City Developments Limited

{ CDL). with regard to o pessikle cash
affer to acquire all of the remaining shares
in the Company not then held by CDL or
parties acting in concert with it With the
lopse of the final offer in January 2018,
the Commttee has once acgain picked up
this baton and recommenced the secrch
process

Senior management succession

As described above, one of the objectives
assigned to Kian Seng. with the support
of the Commitiee and the Board. was to
review the senior leadership team and
management structure and engage
appropriate talent where necessary, to
help put In place the foundation that
would allow the Group to tockle the
various challenges it faces and drive the
businessto the next level This review
has resulted in, among other things, the
appoiniments of a new President of the
US anew President of UK/Europe, a
new Chief Technelogy and Solutions
Officer. a new Chief Marketing Officer
and a new Global Senior Vice President
of Human Resources The former head of
operations for Europe, who had been with
the Company for many years, tock on a
newly created roie of Chief Commercicl
Officer and has been busy recrganising
the Group's global sales function
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With these direct reports to the Chief
Executive Qfficer largety in place, the
team has been focused on assessing

and filling out the senior team below that
level However this process is an ongoing
exercise that must evolve as our business
evolves

Future pricrities
The Committee’'s primary objectives for the
coming year are to

= Kick-start the process to recruit and
appeint a permdnent Group Chief
Executive Officer.

« Continue to review the balonce of
skilis, experiences and diversity of the
Company's Directors to determine +f
any further changes or appointments
are needed to ensure the Board hos
the talent necessary te help the Group
deliver its strategic cbijectives, and

+ |dentify ways to improve the
effectiveness of the Board and 1ts
committees

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman of the Nominations Committee

28 e h 28
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Overview

The Nominations Committee reviews

the compesition of the Board and its
commitiees and oversees succession
planning of the Company's Directors By
identifying and recommending candidates
as Directors The Committee aims to ensure
that the Board and its commuttees are fit
for purpose and have the apgpropriate
balance of skils, experience and diversity
to be able to meet the challenges facing
the Group

Membership and meetings

The Committee 1s comprised of o majority
of independent Non-Executive Directors
During the year the following Directors
were membpers of the Committee

Kwek Lerg Beng (Chairman}
Kwek Leng Peck

His Excellency Shaukat Aziz
Susan Farr

Nicholas George

Martin Leiteh?

The Company Secretary acts as secretary
to the Commuttee and attends atl meetings
Cther Directors or members of senior
management and external advisers may
attend the meetings at the invitation of the
chair

The Nominations Committee met twice
during the year

Appointment and induction of new
Directors

During the year, the Committee reviewed
rcle requirements and prepared job
specihications for the appointments of
the intenm Group Chief Executive Officer
and new Non-Executive Directors As
part of that process. Committee members
interviewed suitable condidates who
were proposed, either by existing Boord
members, senior executives or by an
external search firm or contacts, and
extensive referencing was undertaken on

Financial statements Further information

each candidate Careful consideration
was given to ensure proposed appointees
had sufficient time avalable to devote

to the roles and that the balance of

skills, knowledge and experience on the
Board would be mamntaimed When the
Committee found a suitable candidate for
a role, a proposal was made to the Board
which has retained the responsibility to
approve all such appointments

On appointment to the Board, each
Cirector undergoes o comprehensive
induction programme as appropriate The
programme 1s tallored to each Director s
indwidual needs. but 1s intended to provide
an introduction to the Group's business,
chatlenges and risks Newly appointed
Directors also receive an averview of

therr duties, the corporate governance
landscape applicable to listed companies
inthe U K and Board processes and
polices Durning the year, Martin Leitch
ond Chrnistran de Charnacé received such
induction programmes

Nominations Committee performance
review

As part of the Board's annucl performarce
review, an assessment of the Committees
performance was commenced in March

in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 The results of the performance
assessment were discussed and presented
at the Board meeting held on 23 March
The key findings of the evaluation were
that the Committee was censidered to

be effective and remains independent in
nature

Tenure

As at the date of this report the Committee
acknowledges that His Excelleney Shaukat
Aziz will, on 16 June 2018 be nearing

his minth anniversary on the Board The
Committee 1s mindful that under Code
provision B11 a term of longer than

nine years is a facter that may impact

a Director's independence, and under

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc
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proposed revisions to the Code, which are
being analysed by the Financial Reporting
Council, a Director would be deemed

to be non-independent once his or her
appointment exceeds nine years However,
the Directors believe that in certain
circumstonces having Nen-Executive
Directors remain on the Board beyond
nine-years could help to provide continuity
and constructive and informed debate,
with the appointment of new Directors
fram time to time providing on cpportunity
to add new perspectives As such, the
Committee may determine that it s in the
Company's best interests for a Director's
appointment to remain in effect for longer
than nine years It1s along these lines thot
the Committee will be rigorously assessing
Mr Azizs appointment around his ninth
anniversary

None of the other Independent Non-
Executive Directors witl reach nine years in
tenure 1n 2018

Time commitment

All Directors are required to commit
sufficient time to fulbl their responsibilities
The Nominations Committee monitors

the extent of the Directors other interests
to ensure that the effectiveness of the
Directors and the Board as a whole s not
compromised The Nominations Committee
is satished that each of the Non-Executive
Drrectors commits sufficient time to their
duties

Role of the Committee
The role of the Committee 1s, among other
things. to

« review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including
the skills, knowledge, experence and
diversity of the Directors,

1 N.crolas George steopea aown from the Board at the conc.us an of the Corrparys arrual generol neeting on S May 2017

2 Marun letch was aopoirted to tne Commitiec or 22 May 2017
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consider succession planning for
directars and other senior executives,
taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Company and
the skills and expertise needed,

identify ond nominate for approval

by the Board candidates to fll Board
vacancies when they arise,

keep under review the leadership
needs of the organisation, with a view
to ensuring the continued abibty of the
arganisation to compete effectively in
the marketplace,

review the time required from Non-
Executive Directors,

in consultation with the Chairmen of
the Board committees. review and if
appropriote recommend changes to
the composition of the committees,
cansider the re-appointment of Non-
Executive Directors at the conclusion
of their specihed terms of cffice, giving
due regard to their performance and
ability to continue to contribute to the
Board

assess the appointment of any Director
to an executive or ather office, and
review the Committee’s terms of
reference from time to time

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT .o

Board diversity

The Board embraces diversity in its
broadest sense believing that a wide
range of experience, background
perspective, skills and knowledge,
combine to contribute towards a high

performing. effective Board. which is able

to support and direct the Company The

Company continues to make good progress

in terms of diversity Including Susan Farr,
the percentage of women on the Board 1s
at 1% The Company acknowledges that
more needs to be done in order to meet
the aspirational target set by Lord Davies
in his report on "Women On Beards” and
the voluntary torget set by the Hampton
Atexander Review, of boords of FTSE 380
companies to be comprised of 33% of
women by 2020 This goal remains a tep
priority for the Naminotions Committee

The Board and Committee also are
committed to strengthening the pipeline
of semor executives within the business
and have taken steps to ensure that there
are no barriers to women succeeding

at the highest levels of the orgamisation
The Company currently has 115 females in
senior management positions

Advisors

The Committee did not utilise any external
aadvisors or agencies during 2017 However,
management did engage recruitment
firms from time to time during the year, as
necessary todentify qualified candidates
to fill senior executive positions within the
Group

Terms of Reference
The Nominations Committee's terms of
reference are available at

www millenniumhotels com/corporcte/
investors html
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for preparnng
the Annual Report ond the Group and
parent Company financial statements

in accordance with applicoblie low and
regulations

Company waw requires the Directors to
prepare Group and parent Company
hnancial statements for each Anancial
year Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards os adopted by the
Europecn Union (I[FRSs as adopted by
the EL) and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent Company
financial statements in accordance with
UK accounting standards, including FRS
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company iaw the directors myst not
opprove the financial statements untess
they are satished that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group
and parent Company and of their profit or
loss for that period In prepering each of
the Group and parent Company financiol
stotements, the directors are required to

= select suitable accounting pelicies and
then apply them consistently.

* make judgements and eshimates that
are reasonable. relevant, reliable and
prudent,

= for the Group financiat statements,
state whether they hove been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the EU,

* for the perent company financial
statements, state whether applicable
UK aceounting standards hove been
followed. subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the parent company financial
statements.

= assess the Group and parent
Company's ability to continue as
@ going concern, disclosing. as
applicable, motters related to going
concern, and

* usethe going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend
te iquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease gperations or
have no realistic alternative but to do
so

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
Componys transactions and disclose

with reasonable accuracy ot ony time

the financ.al position of the parent
Company and enable them tc ensure that
its inancial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are responsible
for such internal control as they determine
1s necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free

from matenal misstatement. whether

due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reascnably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable low and regulations,
the directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement
that complies with that low and those
regulations

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and hnancial information included on

the companys website Legislation in

the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of hnanciol statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors
in respect of the annual financral report

We confirm that to the best of our
knowledge

= the financial statements. prepared in
accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, Liabilities
financial position and profit or loss of
the company and the undertakings
included in the conscolidation taken as
a whole and

* the strategic repert includes a farr
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the position of the Company and
the undertokings included in the
consclidation taken as a whole.
together with a description of the
principal nsks and uncertainties that
they face

We consider the annual report and

accounts taken as a whole, 1s fair,

balanced and understandable and
prowvides the infarmation necessary for
shareholders to assess the groups position
and performance, business medel and
strategy

On behalf of the Board

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairmar

PRI PO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE HOTELS PLC ONLY

1 Qur opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Millenrium

& Copthorne Hotels ple { the Company™) for the year

ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consclidated Stotement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Pasition, the Consclidoted Stotement of Changes in Equity the
Consolidoted Statement of Cash Flows, the Company Statement
of Financial Position the Company Statement of Changes in Equity
and the related notes, including the accounting policies In hote
2 2 of the Group hnancial statements and note B of the Company
financial statements

In our opinion:

— the financial statements give o true and fair view of the stote
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's offairs as at 31
December 2017 and of the Group's profit for the year then
ended.

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with Internatienal Financial Reperting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as
adopted by the EU)

— the Parent Company finoncial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and

— the fingncial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ang, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat
Standards on Auditing {UK} ( 1SAs (UK} ) and applicabie law Our
responsibilities are described below We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
for our opirion Qur audit opinion 15 consistent with our report to
the audit committee

We were appointed as auditor by the company before 1994 prior
to the company becoming a public interest entity The period of
total uninterrupted engagement 1s for the 21 inancial years ended
31 December 2017 as a public-interest entity We have fulhlled our
ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the
Group in accordonce with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Stondard as applied to listed public interest entities
No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided

Overview
Materiality: £/0m (2016 £/ 0m)
group fhinancial statermerts as a whole 4 1% (2016 4 5%) of normel sea profit
before tax
Coverage 95% (2016 92%;) of group proft before
tax
Risks of material misstatement vs 2014
Recurring risks Valuation of notel assets 4p
Valuction of investment odqp
properties
Recoverability of oarent 4p

company s investments
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
and include the mast significant assessed nisks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) Identified by us, including those
which had the greatest effect on the overcll audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team We summarise below the key audit matters unchanged from 2016, in decreasing order of audit significance, in
arnving at our audit opinion albove together with our key audit procedures to address those matters ond, as required for public interest
entities our results from those procedures These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken n

the context of, and solely for the purpose of. our audit of the financicl statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
consequently are inaidental to that opirion and we do not provide a separate opinien on these matters

Tre rns¢

Cur resporse

Valuation of Hotel Assets
(£3129m 2014 £3,238m)

Refer to page 49 (Audit
Committee Report) poge 70
(accounting policy) and page 107
(financal disclosures)

Subjective valuation

The Grouo's nctet assets are swbject to ar annual review Lo assess
whether or not they may te imrparred

Ihe Grouo frst idertifies the hotel assets where there s an
indicat orn of impairment These assets are then sub ected to
detatied 'moairmen: review with reference o erther current
externa. valuations or internai trad ng upaotes from the most
recently avanable external valuation

Certa n holel ossets were considerea ai nsk of Impairment due to
being subject to imparment 'n orevicus years (ond therefore ony
decline in performance may result in a further impairment being
recordea) or because the Group has experienced o difficult
trading emaronment in 2017 particutarty in the US and Asa

Exterral voluations are generally performea on a third party
operator basis This assesses the value of the hotel on the same
basis thot an efficient operater market partic pant would and
therefore assesses the net cask fows tnat an efhcient operotor
believes it could acn eve

This analysis 1s subrective due to the Inkerent yncertainty involvea
n determining approprate assumptions such as exoecled free
cash flows and future market growtn, terminal rate and discount
rates Therefore the review and chailenge of these assumptions
1s one of the key judgmental areas that our cudit s concentratec
on

Assessing values' credentials: we assessed tne independence
professicnal qua. ficat ons comrpeterce ard experience of the
external valuers used by the Group

Test of details- we cnalenged tne Groubs assessment of

the propertes at risk oy reference to impa rmentincicotors
deperding on the asset corcerned using our Lnaerstarding of
the asset s performance in relaton to previous forecos:s ard the
market performance ard assessirg the quortum of ovalloble
hecaroom fromr previous valuatians

Methodology choice: using our valuatian specialists we
challenged the appropriateness of the voulers reports by
assessirg their valuatiens were in accordance with the RICS
Valuatior Profess oral Standards the Rea Book and re.evan:
account ng stundaras

Benchmarking assumptions: we challenged the <ey assumptions
used in external valuotions performed during the year in
particulor forecast free cash flows and future market growth,
term nol and discount rates, by compar ng therr to externally
derved data internal budgets and source data where
applicable Our valugt or speaialsts ass sted i the evallation of
the most subjective and complex assumptions and analyses

Qur sector experience For the properties ot ris< of impairment
tha- were not externally valued durirg the year we ossessed

the tracirg results of the properties and whether any signiicart
changes in key cssumptiors were idennfed from the most

recent external valuotion This neluded comparing the currert
performance of tne assets te the forecasts made in the last
exiernal valualion and assessing unusugl rerds in casn flows
against source dota where applcable Our valuaton speciolists
ossisted im the evoluation of the most subjectve ond complex
assumptions and analyses

Sensitivity analysis: we cerfarmed sensit vity onatysis on the key
assumphiens noted above for the most subjecuve and complex
valuatiors

Assessing transparency we considered the appropnateness

of the Groups disclosures about the smpa rment test and the
sers tivity of the outcome of tne impairment assessment to
changes in key assumpliors

Our results

— We found tha resulting estimate of the voluation of hotel assets
ta pe acceptaple (2016 acceptable)
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The risk

Our response

Valuation of investmant
properties

(E577m, 2016 £534m)

Refer to page 49 (Audit
Committee Report) page 92

{accounting policy) and page 11}
{financial disclosures)

Subjective valuation

Investrrant property s one of the Groups lorgest osset categary
and the models applied to determine the fair value of iIrvestment
propettes are complex and sensitive 1o assurpt ons around
rental rates and future market growth, terminal rate and discount
rates

Mast of the investmert properhies are current y hetd in Asia
where the Group exper enced ecoromic slowdown which may
introdyce increased pressJre and level of urcertainty grouna the
valuation of tnese assets

Assessing valuer's credentials: we ossessed the ndependerce
professional qualifications competence and experence of the
external valuers used by the Group

Methodology choice using our vawaot on specialists we
cha.enged the appropriateness of the voluer s reports by
assessing their valuotions were ir accordance with the RICS
Valuat or Professional Standards the Red Book' and relevant
accounting standards

Benchmarking assumptions we challerged the key ossumptions
used 1in valuabon n particular rental rates and future market
growth terminolrate and discoun: rates by comparing them to
axternclly derived dato internal budgets and scurce data where
appticable Our valuation specialists assisted 'n the evaluation of
the more subjective and comp.ex assumptions and anc.yses

Assessing transparency. we ossessed whether tne Groups
disclosures properly reflected the risks mherentin tne caiculotions
and met the requirements of relevant accounting standards

QOur results

We ‘ound the valuotion of investment properties tc be
acceptable (2016 acceptable)

Woe continue to perform pracedures over classifcation of investment oroperties However given there were no complex signihicant acquisitions of nvestment properties
we have not assessed this as one of the most significant r sks in our current year audit and therefore s not separately idertihed i our report this year

Recoverability of porent
company's investments

{£1970m 201& £1979m)
Refer to page 152 (accountng

policy) ond page 153 (nancial
disclosures)

Low risk, high value

The carrying amaunt of the porent comparys nvestments in
subsidiaries reoresents 97% (2016 98%) of the componys tota.
assats

Ther recoverabil ty 1s not at @ mgh r sk of sign ficant misstatement
or subject to significant judgement However due ta ther
matenality in the context of the parent carmpany financial
statemnents, this 1s cons cered ta be the areo that had tne greatest
etfect on our overall parent company cudit

Tests of detoil: we compared the carrying amrount of 100%
of Investments ta the retevart subsidianes consolidated

trio. bolances to identfy whether their net assets being an
opproximat on of their minimum recoverable emount were in
excess of their carrying amount

Assessing subsidiory audits: we assessed the work performed
oy the subsidiary audit tearrs on all of those suosidigries and
considered the results of that work on thase subsigianes profits
and net assets

Qur results:

We found the grouos ossessment of the recoverability of the
investment In subs.diaries to be acceptabie (2016 acceptoble)
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3 Our applicatian of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial
statements as @ whole was set at £70m
(2016 £70m), determined with reference
to a benchmark of group profit before

tax normolised to exclude impairment on
hotel assets and revaluction adjustments
on nvestment properties as disclosed in
note 12 and 14 of which it represents 4 0%
(2016 4 5%) These tems are excluded due
to their velatility

Materiality for the parent cempany
financial statements as a whole was set

at £6 /m (2016 70m) This s lower thon

the materiality we would otherwise have
determined by reference to net assets and
represents 0 48% of the Company's net
assets (2016 0 52%)

We agreed to report to the Audit
Committee any carrected or uncorrected
identified misstatements exceeding

£0 35m, in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on
gualitative grounds

The components within the scope of our
work accounted for the percentages
illustrated opposite

Of the Group's 5 (2016 6) reporting
companents we subjected 3 (2016 3)

to full scope audits for group purposes
These components are UK, US ond Asia -
excluding Beijing

We did not perform specified nsk-

focused audit procedures or review

of financial information on any of the
remaning compenents in 2017 (2016 we
conducted reviews of financial information
(including enquiry) at two other reporting
components, nomely, Middie Ecst and
Beipng to achieve sufficient coverage)

The remaimng 4% of total greup revenue,
5% of group total prefits and losses

that made up profit before tax and 3%

of total group assets is represented by

2 reparting components (Europe and
Beijing) For these remaining compaonents,
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Financial statements Further infformation

we performed analysis at an cggregated
group level to re-examine our assessment
that there were no significant risks of
matenal misstatement within these

Group revenue Group prefit before tox

The Group cudit team instructed
component auditors as to the significant
areas to be covered including the relevant
risks detailled above and the infermation to
be reported back

The Group audit team approved the
component materialities, which ranged
from £3 5m to £4 5m (2016 £3 5mto £4 5m)
having regard to the mx of size and nisk o
roup total assats
profile of the Group acress the components
The work on 2 of the 5 components (2016
4 of the & compaonents) was performed
by component audttors and the rest
was performed by the Group team The
group team performed procedures on the
items excluded from normalised group
proft before tax The audit of the parent
company was performed by the Group
engagement team

B . ccouc ‘or g ous oL rurncses 2077
B .. scone “or goup auat Lunases 2016

Review eroceores 2016 fnore 20 71

In 2017, the Group audit team visited all
the three component locations subject

to full-scope cudit (2016 3) to assess

the audit risk and strategy Telephone
conference meetings were also held with
these component auditors At these visits
and meetings. the findings reported to the
Group audit team were discussed 1in more
detall and any further work required by the
Group team was then performed by the
compenent auditor

i Resiwuel components

Normalised proht bafore tax
Elitien (2016 F 52m)

Group Materaiity
£7 i (6 & £7 0m)

E7 Om

Who et rore ot
stutemer smale a
(LY 47 O

£4 5m
S tanse wna i verd
i compgeen s 93 S £ 50
For, (206 L5~ A%d b}
i

£0 35m
Msla emcrts eooredic Fe
tee P10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE HOTELS PLC ONLY " n0 oo

4 We have nothing to report on going
concern

We are required to report to you If

— we have anything matenal to add or
draw attention ta 1n relation to the
directors’ statement in note 2 to the
financial statements on the use of the
going concern basis of ccecounting
with no materol uncertanties that may
cast significant doubt over the Group
and Company's use of that basis for o
peried of at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the inancial
statements, or

— the related statement under the Listing
Rules set out on page 25 1s matenally
Inconsistent with our audit knowledge

We have nothing to report in these
respects

5 We hgve nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other
information presented in the Annual Report
together with the inanciol statements

Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and,
accordingly. we de not express on cudit
opinion ar, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclysion
thereon

Cur responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so consider
whether, based on our inanciol statements
audit work, the information theren is
materially misstated of inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit
knowledge Based solely on that work we
have not identified moterial misstatements
in the other information

Strotegic report and directors’ report

Based solely on our work on the other
information

— we have nat identified material
misstaternents in the strategic report
and the directors repert,

— In our opinian the information given in
those reports for the financial year s

consistent with the financial statements,

cmd

— In our opinion those reports have been
prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

Directors remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of principal nisks and longer-
term viability

Based on the knowledge we acquired
during our financial statements audt, we
have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to

— the directars confirmation within the
Viability statement poge 25 that they
have carried out a robust assessment
of the principat nsks facing the Group.
ircluding those that would threaten its
business model, future performance,
solvency and Liquidity.

— the Principol Risks disclosures
describing these risks and explaining
how they are being managed and
mitigoted, ond

— the directors explanation in the
Viability statement of how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group.
over what period they have done so
and why they considered that period
to be appropriate. and their statement
as to whether they have ¢ reasonable
expectation that the Group will be
able to continue 1n operation and
meet its babilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment,
including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary
qualfications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the Viability statement We have
nothing to report in this respect

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to report to you if

— we have tdenthed material
inconsistencies between the knowledge
we acguired during our financial
statements audit and the directors’
statement that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements
taken as a whole is fair, calanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's position and
performance, business modet and
strategy or

— the section of the annual report
describing the work of the Audit
Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us
to the Audit Committee

We are required to report to you If the
Corporate Gavernance Statement does
not properly disclose o departure from
the eleven prowvisians of the LUK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing
Rules for our review

We have nothing to report in these
respects

Bosed solely on our work on the other
information described cbove

— with respect to the Corporate
Governance Statement disclosures
about internal control and risk
management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and
about shore capital structures

— we have not identified material
misstotements therein, and

— the information therein 15 consistent
with the financial statements, and

— in our epinion, the Corporate
Governance Statement has been
prepared in accerdance with relevant
rules of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority
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& We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Under the Compamies Act 2006, we are
reguired to report to you if i our opinion

— odequote accounting records have not
been kept by the parent Company or
returns adequate for our cudit have
not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

— the parent Company firanc.al
staterments and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

- we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit

We have nothing to report in these
respects

7 Respective responsibilities
Directors’ responsibilities

As explaiped more fully in their statement
set out on page 71. the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements including being
sotisfied thaot they give a true and fair view
such internal control as they determine

is necessary to enable the preparation

of finencial statements that are free

from moterial misstotement, whether

due to fraud or error, assessing the

Group ond parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable matters related to going
concern, and using the going concern
hasis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic afternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur objectives are to cbtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financisl

Finanaial stotements Further information

statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or other irregularities (see below).
or error, and to 1ssue our opINIoN N an
auditor’s report Reasanable assurance
1s a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with {SAs (UK) will always
detect a materiol misstatement when

it exists Misstatements can arise from
fraud, other irregulanties or error and
are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements

A fuller description of our responsibilities is
provided on the FRC's website at www frc
org uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and
regulations thot could reascnably be
expected to have a material effect on

the financial statements from our sector
experience, through discussion with the
directors and other management (as
required by auditing standards) and from
inspection of the Group's regulatory and
legal correspondence

We had regard to laws and regulations

in areas that directly affect the financial
statements including financial reporting
(including reloted company legistation)
and taxation legislation We considered
the extent of compliance with those laws
and regulations as part of our precedures
on the related financial statements items

In addition we considered the impact

of laws and regulations i the specific
areas of listing rules anti-bribery. data
protection, employment law. and certain
aspects of company legislation recognising
the nature of the group's activities With the
exception of any known or possible non-
compliance ond as required by auditing
standards our work in respect of these was
imited to enguiry of the directors and other
management and inspection of regulatory
ard legal correspondence
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We communicated dentified laws and
reqgulations throughout our team which
included individuals with experience
relevent to those laws and regulations
and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit This
included communication from the group ta
component audit teams of relevant lows
and regulations dentified at group level
with a request to report on any indications
of potential existence of non-complbance
with relevant laws and regulations
(rrregulanties) in these areas, or other
areas directly identified by the component
tecm

As with any audit, there remained a higher
risk of non-detection of rregularities,

as these may involve collusion, forgery
intentionat omissions misrepresentations
or the overnde of internal controls

& The purpose of our audit work and te
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report 1s made solely to the Company's
members, as a body m accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 QOur audit work has been undertaken
sc that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other

than the Company and the Company's
members, 0s o bedy. for our audit work,
for this report. or for the opinians we have
formed

jonathan Downer

(Senior Statutory Auditer)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Cenada Square

London,
E14 5GL
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
En
Revenue 5 1,008 G924
Cost of sales (431) (395
Gross profit 577 531
Administrative expenses b 45 {382)
Other operoting iIncome 7 30 13
Qther operating cxpense } [Ch)) (55)
QOperating profit 145 167
Share of protit of joint vertures and ossociates 15 22 2%
finance income n 7
Finance expense {31 (32)
Net finance expense 9 (20) (25)
Profit befare tox 5 147 108
Incorre tox credit/{expense) 1Q 12 (0)
Profit for the yeor 159 98
Attnibutable 1o
Equity holders of the porent 124 78
Non-controlling irterests 35 20
159 98
Basic earnings per share (pence) il 38.1p 24 0p
Diluted earnings per share {pence) il 38.1p 24 0p

The financicl results above denve from continuing activities

The notes on pages 87 to 149 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Erm
Profit far the year 159 98
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
ftems that are not reclossified subsequently to income statement:
Remeasurement of defined beneft plan aetuanal net goins/{ osses) 23 4 @)
4 &

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income stotement
Foreign currency translobian d fferences - foreigr aperaticns (102 422
Foreign currency translatior d Hferences — equity eceourted investees 16) 41
Nei ga n/(.ass) an hedge of net investmen:s .n fore gn losses 12 [€X)]

(10&) 430
Other comprehensive (expense)/inceme for the year, net of tex (102} 422
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 57 520
Totol comprerensive nceme attribatable to
Equity howaers of the parert 22 an
Neon controll ng interests 35 109
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 57 520

The nctes on poges 87 to 149 are an integral port of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017

2017
£m
Non-current assets
Property olant and equipment 12 3,129 3238
Lease premium prepayment 13 103 107
Investmenrt properties 4 577 534
Investmert 'n joint ventures and associates 15 324 320
4133 4199
Current assets
Inventories 7 4 5
Developrrent properties i8 93 23
Lease premium prepayment i3 2 2
Trade ard other receivab.es 19 83 95
Cash and cosh equ va.ents 20 354 337
541 532
Asscts held for sole 36 4]
582 532
Total assets 4.5 473
Non-current liabilities
Interest-beanng loars bonds and borrawings 21 M (851
Emoloyee benehts 23 a9 23
Provisions 24 {9 (0
Other non-current blabiities 75 Q3) 4y
Deterred tax laoilites 26 (188) 220}
{1.020) (218)
Current liobilities
interest-beanng loans bends and borrowings Ml (213) <))
Trace and otner payables 27 (208) (214)
Provisions 24 {2) m
Incame taxes payable (23) {35)
(448) (343)
Totol licbilities (1.468) {1 5613
Net assets 3,249 3170

The notes on pages 87 to 149 are an integral part of these consclidaoted financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O
FINANCIAL POSITION © o i

As at 31 December 2017

7
£m
Equity
Issued share copital 29 97 97
Share prem um 843 B43
Translation reserve 30 43 537
Treasury skare reserve 30 (4) [C))
Retained ea-mirgs 1,309 1185
Total equity ottributable to equity holders of the parent 2.676 2 668
Ner controll ng irterests 573 502
Total equity 3,249 3170

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were signed cn its behaolf by

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman

Registered No 3004377
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

Far the year ended 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 january 2017 97 843 537 (4) 1,195 2,668 502 KRV

Profit - - 124 124 35 15¢

Other comrprehensive (expense)/income - - (10&) - 4 (102) - 102)
Total comprehensive {expense)/income - - {106) - 128 22 35 57

Transoctions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions to owners

Dwidends — equity holders - - - - {25) (28) - (25)
Diwdends — non-controlling interests - - - {40y (40)
Changes in ownership interests

Change in interests in subsidiar ez

without loss of control - - - - N i} ()] -
R ghts issue by subsidiary with NC| - - - &9 8%
Return of capital to non-controlling mierests - - - - - - {2 (2)
Total transactions with owners - - - - (14 ()] 36 22
Bolance at 31 December 2017 97 843 an (4) 1,309 2,676 573 3,249
Bolance at 1)anuary 2016 97 843 194 [C)] 1,144 2,276 435 2,N2

Proht - - - - 78 78 20 98

Other comprehensive incomeXexpense) - - n - ()] 333 89 422

Total comprehensive income - - 341 70 an 09 520

Transactions with swners, recorded directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions to owners

Dividends — eguity holders - - - - @n 21 - 20
Dwv dends - non-controlling interests - - - - (35) {35)
Changes in ownership interests

Change ir nterests in subsidiones

without loss of control - - - - 2 2 [C) [}
Return of capitol to non-contraling interests - - - - {4) {4)
Total transactions with owners - - - - 19 9 {43) (62)
Balance at 31 December 2016 97 843 537 {4) 1195 2,668 502 3,170

The notes on pages 87 to 149 are an integrol part of these consolidated financicl statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 3! December 2017

2m7
£m

Cash flows from aperating activities
Profit for the year 159 38
Adjustments for

Depreciction and amaortisation 12 13 75 73
Share of profit of © nt vertures and asscciates 15 (22) (26)
Qther operat rg income 7 (30) 3
Chter operat ng experse 7 47 55
Finance ncome q an oy
finance expense 9 k] a2
income ax (credit)expense 10 {12) 10
Operating profit befere changes in working capital and provisiens 237 222
Movement in 'rventcries trade ond other recevables 9 (20)
Movement ir cevelopment propert es (4) 4
Movement in tfrode ard otner payables 3) 15
Movement in provisions ond errployee benefts 1 0
Cash generated from operations 230 220
Interest paid 21} @n
Interest received 4 4
Inceme :ax paid (33) (33)
Net cash generated from operating activities 180 7a
Cash flows from investing activities

Dwvidends received from joint ventures and assoc ates 2 ?
Proceeds from settlemert of sharehelders loon 12

Proceeds from insurarce clair - 2
Acquisition of suosidiary net of cash acaurea (52) -
Acquisition of property plant and equioment lease premium prepayment and investment properties 142) [(00)]
Net cash used in investing activities (180) 96)
Balance carried forward - 74

The notes on pages 87 to 149 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS T " " oty

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017
£m

Batlance brought forward - 74
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bortowings (308) (339)
Crawdown of borrawings a0e 377
Owv aends pad ta non controlling interests {40y {35)
Return of copital ta non-contro lirg interests @ [C)]
Acquisit.on of non controlling interests - 3]
Cividends paid to equity holders of the parent 28 (25) [ed)]
Proceeds from issue of shore copitol 89 -
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activities 25 (24)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25 50
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of the yeor 337 238
tffect of exchange rate fluctuat ons on cash keld {8) 49
Cosh and cosh equivalents at end of the year 354 337
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents shown in the corsalidoted statemrert of inanciat positior 354 337
Bank overdrafts included in borrowings - -
Cash and cash equivalents for consolidoted statement of cash Hows 20 354 axy

The notes on pages 87 to 14¢ are an integral part of these consolidated financial stotements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Reperting entity

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc (the ‘Company™) 1s ¢ limited company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are publicly
traded on the London Stock Exchange The registered office is locoted at Victono House. Victeria Road, Horley, Surrey RH6 7AF, United
Kingdom These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidianes (collectively the "Group™) The consolidated
financial stotements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 were authensed for i1ssue In accordance with a resclution of the
Birectors on 28 Merch 2018

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepored on the histonical cost basis except for investment properties and. from 1 Jaruary 2005
dervative financial instruments financial instruments held for troding and finencial instruments classified as available-for-sale which are
stated at therr fair values Hotel properties are stated at cost or deemed cost Deemed cost 1s calculated based on the hotel's frozen
valuation as at 1 January 2004 Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying ameunt and fair value less costs to sell
The Groug's income statement and segmental analysis separately identifies cperating profit and other operating income and expense This
15 1n accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ and 1s consistent with the waoy that financial performance 1s measured by
mancgement and assists in providing a meaningful analysis of the trading results of the Group The financial statements are presented i
the Company's functional currency of sterling. rounded to the nearest milion

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framewory’

Basis of accounting
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as required by EU law (IAS Regulation
EC1606/2002) Detals of the Group's accounting policies, including changes during the year are included below

Basis of consolidation

(i} Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group The Group cantrols an entity when it1s exposed to or has nghts to vanable returns from
its Involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity The financial statements of
subsidianes are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

(i) Interests in equity-occounted investees
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests In |oint ventures and associates

An associate 1s an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not contral or joint control over the financicl and operating
policies A joint venture s an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and where the Group has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement rather than nghts to its assets and obligations for its labilties

Interests in [oint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method They are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs Subseguent to mitial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or toss and
other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees. until the date on which sigrificant influence or joint control ceases

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balonces and transactions, and any unreclised income and expenses ansing from intra-group transactions are elminated
Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment te the extent of the
Group s interest in the investee Unreabsed losses are elminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there 1s no
evidence of impairment

Going cancern

The Group's business activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the
Strategic Repaort on pages 4 to 30 The financial position of the Group 1ts cash flows Lquidity position and barrowing facilities are
described in the Strategic Report ~ Financial performance on pages 10 to 11 and in the key performance indicators on page @ In addition,



88 Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic
Arnual Report & Accounts 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS « it o

Note 22 of the financial statements inciudes the Group s objectives, policies and processes for managing its caprtal. its inancial risk
management objectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit nsk and bauidity nisk The
Group has considerable financial resources and plans for refinancing matunng facilities are under way

Cash flow forecasts for the Group have been prepcred for a perod in excess of twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidoted financial statements These forecasts reflect an assessment of current market conditions The forecasts completed on this basis
show that the Group will be able to operate within the current committed debt facilities and show continued compliance with the finoncial
covenants In addittian management has considered various mitigating achons that could be token in the event that market conditions are
worse than their current assessment Such measures include further reduction in costs and m capital expendrture On the basis of the
exercise as described aobove and the available committed debt facilities, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and
Company have cdequate resources to continue In operational existence for at least 12 months from the signing of this annual report
Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis In preparing the financial statements of the Group and the Compony

In assessing whether the Group 1s a going concern, the Directors follow a review process which i1s consistent with the principles set out in the
"Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financicl and Business Reporting 2014" published by the Financial Reporting
Council

2 2 Summary of significant acceunting policies
The Group has consistently cpplied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated financial staterments

A Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted far using the acquisition method The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, measured ot acquisition date fair value and the amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree For each
business combinction, the cequirer measures the non-controlling interest In the acquiree either at fair volue or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and identifiable net assets ccquired are measured of the
acqulsition date far value

When the Group acquires a business, 1t assesses the financial ossets and Labilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisiion date This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree

If the business combination 1s achieved in stages. the acquisiion date farr value of the acquirer's previcusly held equity mterest in the
acquiree s remeasyred to fair value as at that date through the income statement

Any contingent consideration 1s measured at fair value ct the date of acquisition If an obligation te pay contingent consideration that
meets the definition of a financial instrument 1s classfied as equity then it1s not remeasured and settlement 1s accounted for within equity
Otherwise, other contingent consigeration is remeasured ot fair value at each reporting date and subseguent changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration are recognised 1n profit or loss

Goodwill s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group's net identfiable
ossets acquired and habilities assumed. and 1s allocated to each of the Group's hotels that are expected to benefit from the combination If
the consideration 1s lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired. the difference 1s recognised In the Income
statement

After initial recognition goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses For the purpose of imparrment testing.
goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s from the acquisition date. allocated to each of the Group’s cosh-generating units thot are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liakilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operaton within that unit 1s disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation 1s ncluded in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gam or loss on disposal
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Goodwill disposed in these circumstances 1s measured based on the relotive values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained

B Foreign currency
The financial statements of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable te that business

(i) Foreign currency translation
Tronsactions in foreign currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction

Menetary assets and uabiities denominated in foreign currencies at the baiance sheet date are translated into sterling at the foreign
exchange rate at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recogrised in the iIncome statement Non-monetary
assets and Labilities that are measured in tetms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transtated at the date of the transaction
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated 1 foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are tronslated into sterling ot foreign
exchange rates ruling at the date the fair vaiue was determined

(i Finonciol stotements of foreign operations

On consolidation the assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value adjustments arising on consclidation are translated to
sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling ot the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange differences arising
on retranslation are recognised directly in equity in the foreign currency translation reserve When a foreign operation 1s disposed of 1n part
arin full, the relevant amount in the translation reserve s transferred to the iIncome statement

(iii} Net investment in foreign opergtions
Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net Investment in foreign operations, and of related hedges are taken to translation
reserve They are released into the income statement upen disposal or partiol dispesal of the foreign operation

C  Derivative financial instruments
The Group holids dervative financiol instruments to hedge 1ts foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures Embedded dervatives are
separcted from the hest contract end accounted for separately If certain eriterio are met

Dervatives are inibally measured at fair volue any directly attributable transaction costs are recagmised in profit or loss as incurred
Subsequent to initicl recogntion, dernvatives are measured ot fair value, and changes therein are generally recogrised in profit or loss

D Hedges

(i) Cash flow hedges

When e dervative financial instrument is designated as o hedge of the variabiiity in cash flows of o recognised asset or ltability, or a tughly
probable transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss an the derivative financial instrument 15 recognised directly in equity When the
forecast transcction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financiat habilty, the associated cumulative gan
or loss 1s removed from equity and included in the iniial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financicl asset or lability if o hedge of @
farecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability then the associated gains and losses
that were recognised directly in equity are reclassified to the income staterment in the same period or perieds duning which the asset
acquired or hability assumed affects the income statement (1 e. when interest income or expense 1s recognised)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the above pelicy the associated cumulative gain or less 1s removed from equity ond
recognised in profit or loss in the same penod or periods during which the hedged ferecast transaction affects profit or loss The ineffective
port of any goin or loss 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

When a hedging instrument expires or s sold, terminated or exercised, or the enhity revokes designation of the hedge relationship but the
hedged forecest transaction s stili expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss ot that point remains in equity and 1s recognised in
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accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to toke place, then the
cumulative unreabsed goin or loss recognised in equity 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

(it} Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities
When o denvative financial instrument 1s used as an economic hedge of the foreign exchange exposure of a recognised monetary asset or
iobibity, hedge cccounting 15 not appled ond any gam or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recogmsed in the income stotement

(iii) Hedge of net investment in foreign operations

The porhion of the gain or loss on an nstrument used to hedge a net investment in o foreign operation that 1s deterrmined to be an effectve
hedge is reccgnised directly in equity within the translation reserve The ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome
statement

E Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(i) Recognition and measurement

Land and buildings (other than investment properties) are stated at cost, except ¢s ollowed under IFRS 1transtion rules less depreciation
and anhy provision for impairment Al other property plant and equipment Is stated at cost less depreciation and any provision for
impairment Any impairment of such properties below depreciated historical cost 1s charged to the 1ncome statement

Under the transition provisions of IFRS 1 land and builldings which were previously revaiued under UK GAAP were measured on the basis of
their deemed cost, being their UK GAAP carrying value, including revaluations, as at 1 january 2004 being the effective date of the Group's
conversion to [FRS

(i} Depreciation
Freehold lond is not depreciated All other assets are depreciated to their residual values on a straight-tine basis over therr estimated useful
lves as follows

Bulding core 50 yeors or lease term of shorter
Building surface finishes and services 30 years or lease term if shorter
Plant and machinery 15 - 20 yeors

Furmture and equipment 10 years

Soft furnishings 5-7years

Computer equipment Syeors

Software up ta 8years

Matar vehicles 4 years

Na residual values are ascribed to building surface finishes and services Residual values asernibed to building core depend on the nature.,
location and tenure of each property

(iii} Subsequent costs
Copital expenditure on major projects is recorded seporately within property plant and equipment as capital work 1n progress Once the
project is complete the balance is transferred to the appropriate fixed asset categories Capital work in progress 1s not depreciated

Interest attnbutable to funds used to finance the construction or acquisition of new hotels or major extensions to ewsting hotels 1s captalsed
net of tox relief and added to the cost of the hotel core

Operating supplies. which include china. linen, gloss and silverware, were stated at therr deemed costs as ot TJanuary 2008 and
subsumed into the costs of the hotel buildings Subsequent renewals and replacements of such stocks and new supplies upon initial hotel
opening are written off as incurred to the income statement
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F Leases

() Leocsed ossets
Leases where the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases The leased asset s
initially recorded at the lower of fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments

The equivalent iak:ity, categorised as appropriate, s included within current or non-current labilites Assets are depreciated over the
sharter of the lease term and their useful economic lives Finance charges are allocoted to accounting perods over the perod of the lease
to preduce constant rates of return on the outstanding balance

Rentals poyable by the Group under operating leases are chorged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term
even f payments are not made on the same basis In cases where rents comprise a fixed and a vanable element, the fixed element anly 1s
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis with the vanable amounts being charged as they become due Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense

Rentals recevable by the Group as lessor under operating leases including the sub-letting of retail outlets within hotel properties, are
credited to the iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term even if the receipts are not made on such @ basis Costs
ncluding depreciation incurred 0 earming the lease iIncome, are recognised as an expense

(i) Lease premium

The Group makes and receves imiicl payments on enterng into both long and short leases of land and bulldings Where payment for
leased land Is equivalent to the purchase of the freehold interest, the lease 1s classified as a finance lease All other payments for leases of
land are classified as operating leases

On the statement of financicl position, finance lease payment attnbutable to the land 1s recorded as property, plant and equipment and for
aperating leases, the land 1s recorded as a lease premium prepayment Both lease types ore charged to the iIncome statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease Interest attributable to funds to finance the purchase or lease of land 1s capitolised gross of tax
relief ond added to the cost of lease

in the case of lease premiums received. these are reflected on the statement of financial position as deferred Income, appropriately
classified between current and non-current labilities and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lecse

G Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets other than investment properties. inventonies, employee benefit assets and deferred tox assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 any indication of impairment If ony such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount 1s estimated

The recoverable amount of assets s the greater of their net selling price and volue in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset

impairment 1s recogrised In the Income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount Impairment losses are reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount Where permissible under IFRS, an impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, f no impairment had been recognised

In the case of equity Investments classified as avalable-for-sale a significant or prolonged decline in fair value of the asset below its cost 15
considered n determining whather the asset i1s impaired If any such evidence exists for available-for-sole financial assets, the cumulctive
loss — mecsured as the difference between acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financiol asset
previously recognised in the income statement — 1s removed from equity and recognised in the income statement
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H  Investment properties

Investment properties held by the Group are properties which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both
Investment properties are stated at fair value Any increase or decrease in the fair value on annual revaiuation 1s recogrised in the income
statement in accordance with iAS 40 Investment Property In imited circumstances, the determination of fair value 1s uncertain, and these
properties are carned at cost Impairment analysis over these properties s carnied out annually

An external independent valuer having an appropriate recognised professional qualfication and recent experience in the location and
categery of the property being valued. values the portfelio annuclly The fair values are based on market values, being the estmated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and @ willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the porties had each acted knowledgeably prudently and without compulsion

| Inventories
inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable volue Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sellng expenses

] Development properties

Development properties are stated at the lower of cost ond net realisable value They are held for sale in the short term and are therefore
classified as current assets The cost of development properties includes interest and other related expenditure mcurred in order to get the
asset ready for s intended use Borrowing costs payable on loons funding a development property are also capitalised. on a specific
identfication basis, as part of the cost of the development property until the completion of development Payments recerved from
purchasers ansing from pre-sales of the property units prior to the completicn ere included as deferred income under other financial
Lobilities in the stotement of financiol position

K Cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with an ongmal maturity of three months or less

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand end form an integral part of the Greup s cash management are included as o component
of cash and cash equivalents

L Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at farr value. net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method

M  income tax
Income tax on profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recogmised in the income statement except to the extent that #
relates to items recagnised directly 1n equity 1in which cose it s recognised in equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year. using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years

Deferred tox 1s provided for using the balance sheet methed, prowding for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxabon purposes The following temporary differences are not
provided for (1) the imtiol recognition of ossets or labilibes that offect neither accounting ner taxable profit, ana (ii) differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s
based on the expected manner of realisation of settlement of the carrying amount of assets and ligbilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available ogammst which the asset
can be utiised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the benefit will be realised
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Deferred tax assets and lobilities are offset only to the extent that (1) the Group has a legelly enforceable nght to offset eurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities. (1) the Group intends to settle net and () the deferred tax assets and the deferred tox lakilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority

N  Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans
Chbligctions for contributions to defined contnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the iIncome statement

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a number of de‘ined benefit pension plans As set out In Note 23, the calculation of the present value of the Group's
defined benefit obligations at each peniod end 1s subject to significant estmation An apprepriately qualfied independent actuaryis used
to undertake this calculation The assumptions made by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from ¢ range of possible actuanal
assumptions which due to the tmescale covered may not necessarily be borne out in practice The valuation of scheme assets 15 based on
ther fair value ot the balance sheet date As these assels are not intended to be sold in the short term, their values may be subject to
significant change before they are realised In reviewing the work of the independert actuary. management s required to exercise
jodgement to satisfy themselves that appropriate weight has been afforded to macro-economic factors Detoils of the assumphions used are
set out In Note 23

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined beneft post-employment plans, including pens on plans 1s calcutated separately for ecch
plan by estmating the amount of future benefit that employees have earmed in return for their service in the current and prior peniods That
benefit1s discounted to datermme its present value and the fair volue of ony plar assets 1s deducted The calculation is performed by o
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit methed

When the benefits of a plan are improved the porticn of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees i1s recognised
immediately as an expense in the income statement

The Group recognises remeasurement gains and losses within the cansolidated statement of comprehensive income in the penod in which
they occur

The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit babilities {(asset) for the penod by opplying the discount
rote used to measure the defined berefit obligatior ot the beginring of the annual pernicd to the net defined benefit lability (asset). taking
Into aceount any ehanges in the net defined benefit lability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and berefit poyments Net
interest expense and other expenses reloted to defined benefit plans are recognised in the income statement

(iil) Long-term service benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits other than post-employment plans, 1s the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prier periods The obligation 's calculated using the projected unit
credit method and 1s discounted to its present value and the farr value of any plan assets 1s deducted

{iv) Share-based payment transactions
The share-based incentive schemes allow the Group's employees to acquire shares of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels ple

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for awards granted after 7 November 2002 1s measured by reference to the fair
value at the date on which they are granted The fair value 1s determimed by using an appropriate pricing model, further details of which
are given in Note 23

The cost of eguity-settled transactions 1s recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled The cumulative expense recegrised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date untl the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultmately vest The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulotive expense
recogrised as at the beginning and end of that per od
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No expense Is recogmsed for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting 1s conditional upon o
market or mon-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting rrrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition 1s satished.
provided that all other perffarmance and/or service conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expehse recogrnised 1s the expense as if the terms had
not been modified. f the original terms of the oward are met An additonal expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction or 1s otherwise benaficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settled award s cancelled. ¢ is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation. and any expense not yet recognised for
the award 1s recognised immediotely This includes any award where non-vesting canditions within the control of either the entity or the
employee are not met However, if a new oward is substituted for the cancelled oward ond designoted as a replacement award on the
date that it s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a madhication of the onginal oward. as descnbed in the
previous paragraph All cancellations of equity-settled transaction gwards are treated equolly

The dilutive effect of outstanding opticns 1s reflected as additienal share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further
details are given in Note 11)

O Provisions

A provision 1s recognised on the balance sheet when the Group has o present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it 1s probable that an cutflow of ecenomic benefits will be required to settle the obliganon [fthe effect s matenal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate thot reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and when cppropriate, the risks specific to the tability Further details on provisions are given in Note 24

P Revenue and its recognition
Revenue compnses

* Inceme from the awnership and operation of hotels — recognised at the point at which the accommodation and related services ore
provided.,

* Management fees — eorned from hotels managed by the Group usually under long-term contracts with the hotel owner Management
fees include a base fee which 1s generally a percentage of hotel revenue, and/ar an incentiva fee, which is generally based on the hotel's
profitability, recognised when earned on an acerual basis under the terms of the contract,

« Franchuse fees — receved in connection with licensing of the Group's brand names. vsually under long-term contracts with the hotel
owner The Group charges franchise royalty fees as a percentoge of reom revenue, recognised when earned on an occrual basis under
the terms of the agreement,

= Income from property rental — recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, lease incentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the total rental income. and

« Development property sales — recognised when the significant nisks and rewards of ownership have possed to the buyer, which s usuolly
when legal title transfers depending on junisdictions The trigger for revenue recognitton depends on the laws within each jurisdiction

Q  Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a lability in the Group's financial statements in the pericd in which the dividends
are appropnately authorised and approved for payment and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not
meet these critena are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

R Operating segment information

Disclosure of segmental information is principally presented in respect of the Group's geegraphical segments The segments reported
reflect the opercting information iIncluded in internal reparts that the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘{CODM), which (s the Boord,
regularly reviews Further details are given in Note 5

An operating segment 1s @ component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other compeonents Discrete financial
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information 1s reported to and is reviewed by the CODM on @ gecgraphical basis Operating segments have Chief Operating Officers
("CQOOs™) or equivalent who are directly accountable for the functioning of their segments and maintain regular contact with the Group
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the CODM to discuss the operationcl and financial cerformance The CODM makes decisions
about allacation of rescurces to the regions managed by the COOs No operating segments have been aggregated to form the reportable
operating segments

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as wel: s those thot can be allocoted or a
recsonable basis Unallocoted items principally comprise interest-bearing loans borrowings cash and cash equivalents, net finance
expense, taxotion balances and corporate expenrses

S Non-current ossets held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising assets and habilties) that are expected to be recovered primarily through sole rather
than through continuing use are classified as held-for-sale Generally the assets (or aisposal group) are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell Any impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocoted to property plant ond equipment
and lease premium prepayment, and then to remaining assets and labilties on a pro rata basis, except that na loss s allecated to
inventor es, financial assets, deferred tax assets employee benefit assets and investment property, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group s accounting policies Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subseguent gains or losses
on remeasurement are recognised in the Income statement (Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss

T  Other financial assets and liabilities
Trade investments are classfied as avallable-for-sale assets and are included under non-current assets within ‘other financial assets They
are recorded at market value with movements in volue taken to equity Any impairment to value is recorded i the Income statement

Trode and other recevables are stoted at ther nominal amount (discounted iIf material) less any iImpairment Trade and other payables
are stated at their nominal amount (discounted if material)

U Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the porty or exercise significant influence over the party making fingncial and operating decisions. or vice versa or
where the Groug and the party are subject to commen control or comman significant influence Related parties may be indiwiduals or
other ertities

3 Accounting estimates and [udgements
Menagement has discussed with the Audit & Risk Committee the seiection and disclosure of the Group s entical accounting policles and
estimates and the application of these policies and estimates

The preparation of inanciol staterrents under IFRS requires the Group to moke estimates ond assumptions that offect the reported amounts
of assets ard liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies cnd the reported cmount of revenue and expenses during the year The Group
evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis Such estimates and jJudgemenits are based upon historicol experience and
other factars it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, which form the basis for making judgements about the carrying valye of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

Certair critical cocounting poticies among others affect the Group s more significant estimates and assumptions used in preparing the
consolidated financiol statements Actual results could differ from the Group's estimates and assumptions
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31 Judgements

The key (udgements are

Classification of investment properties

The Group holds a number of investment properties and accounts for such properties In accordance with the accounting pelicy set out In
Note 2 2H The Group owns assets which are leased to external third parties with lease rentals and related charges varying according to
the agreement inyolved The Group accounts for such assets in its financial statements in accordence with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2 2H

Where the indicators are such that on balance the Group 1s shown to be o passive investor, the relevant property 1s accounted for in
accordance with JAS 40 and the Group occounts for the fair value change through the income statement as other operating income or
expense Indicaters considered include (1) party that has the power to make the significant operoting and financing decisions regarding the
operahions of the property In a management contract, (2) calculation of the lessor's return, (3) lessor's power of intervention under the
management cantract, and (4) duration of the contract

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than a maojority of vating rights (de facto control}

In 204, the new consolidatan accounting standard IFRS 10 introduced a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has power
over an iInvestee exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ability to use 1ts power to affect those
returns

This required the Group to consider whether it hos de facto control over its investees, particularly when it owned iess than 50% of the voting
nights In 2014, in accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 10, the Group reassessed the control conclusion for its investees and
changed its control conclusion in respect of its investment in COL Hospitolity Trusts ('COLHT ), which was previously accounted for as an
associate using the equity method Although the Group owns less than half of the voting power of the investee, management determined
that, under {FRS 10. the Group has had control over the investee since its inception  This 1s because a 100% owned subsidiory of the Group.
M&C REIT Management Limited acts as REIT Manager with its fees having a performance-based element and therefore the Group has
exposure to varable returns from its involvement wath the investee Accordingly. in 2014, the Group applied acquisition accounting to the
investment from the year it was first established in 2006 ond restated the relevant amounts as if the investee had been consolidated from
that year This judgement was reconsidered this year and continues to be appropriate

Business combination

For each acquisition, the Group has to make a judgement whether to account the transaction as an asset purchase or a business
combination, which results In o different accounting treatment In particular under business combination accounting goodwill and
additional intangble assets may anse and the valuaton of acquired assets 1s complex In odditron, transaction costs can be capitalised in
an asset acquisition, but have to be charged through the income statement for a business combination The classification of each
acquisition and retated accounting 1s highly judgemental Details of acguisitions undertaken by the Group during the year including the
specfic judgements, ore set out In Notes 12 and 14

Land leases classification

The Group holds a number of hotels with leases of land that are determined to have an indefinite economic lfe These are classified as ¢
finance lecse. even of at the end of the lease term title does not pass to the lessee In determiming whether the lease of land should be
accounted for as a finance or an operating lease. the following factors were considered

« transfer of ownership
= purchase options
s present velue of minimum lease payments In companson to fair value of land
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3 2 Estimates

The key estimates are

impairment of tangible assets

The Group determines whether tangible fixed assets are impaired when indicators of impairments exist or based on the annual Impairment
assessment The annual assessment requires an estimate of the recoverable value of the cash generating units to which the tangible fixed
assets are cilocated which s predominantly at the iIndvidual hotel site level Where appropnate externa. valuotions are also undertaken
Estimation of the recoverable value of the hotel assets 1s done with the reference to fair value less cost to sell, ussng nceme approach
which requires estimation of future cosh flows of a third party efficient operctor the time period over which they will occur an approprote
discount rates terminal capital.zation rates and growth vates The Directors consider that the assumptions made represent their best
estimate, and that the discount rate and terminal caprtalisation rate used are approprniate given the risks associated with the specific cash
flows A senstwwvity analysis has been performed over the estimates (see Note 12)

Taxation

In determining the iIncome tax assets ord liabilities recogmised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position the Group is required to
estimate the outcome of multiple tax years remaining open to tax authonty audit in each of the junisdictions in which the Group has
companies As such provisions for tax aceruals require estimates to be made on the interpretation of tax legislation developments in tax
case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals The final resclution of certain of these items may give rise to materal
income statement and/or cash flow variances In making estimates for tax provisioning purposes management makes use of In-house tax
expertise, comparable third party studies prepared by professional advisors and ony other information availoble In the event of an audit
the Group may liaise with the relevant taxation authorities to agree an cutcome

The tax Lability provided for each tax year and junsdiction is reassessed in each peried to reflect our best estimate of the probable outcome
in light of il the Information available A final position agreed with o tax authorty or through expiry of o tax audit penod could differ from
the estimates made by us which would impact the current tax iability of £23m (2016 E35m) recognised in the censolidated Statement of
Financial Position

4  New standards and interpretations not yet adepted
The foliowing standards and interpretations, which have been 1ssued by the IASB, become effective after the current year end and have not
been early adopted by the Group

+ InJaruary 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases The standard s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and was
endorsed by the Europecr Union in November 2017 IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the standard
in @ manner simikar to the way 1n which finance leases are currently accounted for under IAS 17 Leases Lessees will recognise o night of
use asset and a cerresponding financial kability on the balance sheet The asset will be amortised over the perod of the lease and the
financial lobility measured at amortised cost Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as in1AS 17 The Group is currently
assessing the impact of this standard but 1t 1s not practcable to gquantfy the effect as ot the date of the publication of these financial
statements

In May 2014, the IASB 1ssued 'fFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted  The standard was endorsed by the European Union in September 2016 IFRS 15
provides a princ ples-based approach for revenue recognition and intreduces the concept of recognising revenue for obligations as they
are satishied The stondard should be applied retrospect.vely, with certain practical expedients available The Group has started to assess
the requirements of the standard and preliminary find ngs suggest that there will be no material impact to revenue

On 24 July 2014 the International Accounting Standards Board i1ssued IFRS @ Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement which
s effective for periods starting on or after 1January 2018 IFRS 9 addresses the clossification, measurement and derecognition of financiat
assets and hinancial labilities introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for fingneial assets Debt
instruments currently classified as held to matunty and measured at amortised cost wiil meet the conditions for classification at amortised
cost under IFRS @ The Company believes that its current hedge relat.onships will qualify as continuing hedges upan the adoption of IFRS
% The -mpoct of this accounting standard on the Group's accounts 1s considered immaternial
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5 Operating segment information
Disclosure of segmental information s principally presented in respect of the Group's geographical segments

Segment results, assets and llabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated cn a
reascnable basis Unallocated items principally comprise interest-bearning leans, berrowings, cash and cash equivalents net financial
expense. taxation balances and corporate expenses

Geographical segments
The hetel and property operations are managed on a worldwide basis and operate in seven principal geographical areas as follows

* New York

Regional US

= London

= Rest of Europe (Including the Middle East)
* Singapocre

» Rest of Asia

= Australasia

The segments reported reflect the operating segment information included in the internal reports that the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{"CODM"), which 1s the Board, regularly reviews

The reportable segments are aligned with the structure of the Group's internal organisation which 1s based according to geographical
region Discrete finenciol Information s reported to and is reviewed by the CODM on ¢ geographical basis Operating segments have
Chief Operating Officers ("COOs™) or equivalent who are directly accountable for the functioning of their segments and who maintain
regular contact with the Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the CODM to discuss the operational and financial performance
The CODM makes decisions about allocation of resources to the regions manaoged by the COOs

The results of COLHT have been incorporated within the existing geographical regions In addition, CDLHT operations are reviewed
separately by its board on a monthly basis
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Revenue

Hotel 156 144 122 /0 132 176 80 - 8a4a
Property operat ors - 5 - - 3 3 45 - 62
REI™ - 23 & 9 8 b6
Total revenue 156 149 122 93 15 204 133 - 1,008
Hatel gross operating profit 23 3 &0 14 54 60 39 - 283
Hotel Axea charges (33) (26) 23 [4o)] 4) 35 (&) - 037
Hatel operatirg profi(.oss) (o) 5 37 & 50 25 33 - 146
Property opera: ng profit - - - - 5 8 24 - 37
REIT operating profit/(loss) - - - {3 5 7 - 14
Certral costs - - - (35) {35}
Orher operat ng income’ - — - - 27 - - 21
O:her operat ng experse’ {m [€)] - {4) - (&) - - (3
Orher ooerat ng ncome  REH? - - - 9 9
Orher operat ng experse — REIT - - - o) - an - - &)
Operating prefit/(loss) {21} (3) k¥ 2 52 40 73 {35) 145
Share of |oint ventures and assocates profit - 3 19 - 22
Add Deprecigror and arrarusatior g 13 & 2} 13 22 3 3 75
Ada Netreva.wation aehalt & impoirment 1 8 - 9 ¢! 1< - 29
EBITDA* M 18 43 20 65 N 47 (32) r24l
Less Deprec ation omortisat o ret

reva.Jot or aehcit & irpairmeant (104
Net france experse (20)

Profit hefore tax

147
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Revenue

Hotel 138 136 121 76 127 163 55 - a14
Praperty operctions - 4 - 3 9 40 - 56
REIT+ - - - 1 14 19 12 - b6
Total revenue 136 140 121 a7 144 191 107 - 926
Hotel gross operating prefit 21 28 40 15 52 55 25 - 2586
Hotel fixed chorges ()] (23} @M (5 3N “4) - 027
Hotel operating proht/(loss) [C))] 5 39 L) 47 18 pil - 129
Property operating profit/{loss) 1§ 2 8 21 30
REIT operating proft/{loss) - - - 3 5 7 n - 16
Centrol costs - - - - - (26) (26)
Other operating income? - 3 - - - 8 2 - 13
Other operating expense’ 5 (V)] - 1G] (4) ) - - 28)
Other operating expense - REIT- - ) (0 {3 - - {27
Operating prefit/(less) (24) H 39 2 30 28 55 (26) 107
Share of joint ventures and associates profit - - 3 - 23 - - 26
Add Deprec ation and amortisation 8 12 b -] 12 25 2 2 73
Add Net revaluation defait & impairment 15 M - 9 4 7 - 44
EBITDA? (43 16 45 20 56 a1 §7 (24) 250
Less Depreciation amertisation, net

revaluation defic:t & imparment {10
Net finance experse (25)
Praofit before tax 108

FERANE

COILHT operctes the RE'T business

Hatel fxed crarges nclude deprecioton amartsatior of 1leose prenure prepoymerts orocerty rent toxes ond Irsuronce operdting ledse ertds and ranoagement fees
See Nate / ‘or detalls of other operatirg income and expense
EBITDA 's earmings belore interest lax deprecigtion and amortisoton
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2017

Hotel operatirg assets 613 320 496 232 2! 670 181 2533
RE T ooeroting assets - - - 207 568 7 194 16
Hotel cperatirg lobilities 29 39 (3 (363 @1 (68) (10) 218)
RET ooerating liab it es - - - (&) & (3 & (25)
Investment ir oint ventures and asscciates - - - - - 152 - 152
Total hotel operating net assats 584 281 483 395 588 B&éa 359 3,558
Property operat ng assets - 36 - - a4 176 G2 388
Property operat ng liao | tes - [®)] - - {2) [€)3 (2) {53}
Investmentir oint ventures and assceiates - - el 147 172

Totdl property operating net ossets - 35 - K]l a2z 34 20 552
De‘erred tax lab'lities {188)
Income tuxes payable 23)
Net cebt (650)
Nat assets 3,249

DAt

Hatel cperating assets &74 365 502 235 21 69 187 2475

REIT operating assets - - - 61 £06 139 195 1o

Hotel operatirg liabilities (33) [ (4) (34) (8] (69 N (229)
REIT operoting labitities {?) 5] [ &) [¢D)]
Ipvestment ir jaint ventures and assowiates - - - - - 159 - 159

Total hotel aperating het assets &41 3i8 488 240 597 918 343 3,585

Property operat ng assets - 43 - - 85 176 4 398

Property operaung Llaolites - {; - - & & 3 (12)
Investment Ir joint ventures and asseciates - - - 20 - 14 - 1861

Total property operating net ossets - 42 - 20 &0 314 N 547

Deferred tax liab ltes {220)
Income taxes coyable {3%)
Net cetbt {10/}
Net assets

3,170
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Geographic information

et

£m tr

Revenue from external customers

United Stotes 306 276
United K ngdam 195 83
Singapore 151 144
New Zegland 123 o8
o wan 73 &2
South Koreo 47 47
China 26 25
Maldwes 14 14
Malaysia 4 15
France 12 Ll
Australia 10 9
Philipgines [} 6
ltaly [} é
Indonesia 5 5
Other 2t 25
Total revenue per consolidoted income statament 1,008 926

The revenue information above 1s based on the location of the business The £1.008m (2016 £926m) revenue is constituted of £F880m
(2016 £814m) of hotel revenue, £62m (2016 £56m) of property operations revenue and £66m (2016 £56m) of REIT revenue The property
operations revenue compnses £45m (2016 £40m) from New Zeoland, £3m (2016 £3m) from Singapore and £14m (2016 £13m) from other
countries

207
£m s

Non-current assets

United States 943 1053
Urited K ngdom 740 &99
Singapore 692 72
Chira 278 286
Tawan 277 286
New Zealord 231 242
japan 22 215
South Koreo 199 199
Hong Kong 108 13
Cermarny 94 -
Australio &9 122
Maldives 75 94
Malaysia 64 64
Italy 43 42
France 37 36
Netherlands ki 2Q
Indoresia 12 13
Phuppires 8 12
Other - )
Total non-current assets per consolidated statement of financial position 4,133 4199

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, lease premium prepayment, investment properties, investment
in joint ventures and associotes and other financial assets
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2017
Em
Incuded in adminisirat ve expenses 1s the auditors rermunerat on for audit ard ren-acdit services s follows
Aud tors remuneration
Statutory avoit services
- Arrual audt of the Company ana consolidated finarc al stotements 1 1
Agant of subsidiary companies 2 i
3 2
Non-gudit re.ated serv ces
- Toxadwvisory 1 !
Total 4 3
n”
Em
Repairs and maintenance 5t 45
Depreciatian 72 0
Leose premaurr arrortisatior 3 3
Renrtal poa/payable under operat ng leases
«ong and euildings ¥ 1
- olan and machinery 7 S
7 Other operating iIncome and expense
2017
o £m
Reva.wation ga nfoehc) of irvestment prepert es {a)
- REIT properties 3 (27)
M llernium Mitsur Garden Hotel Tokyo 9 8
- Bitmore Court & Tower {3) 3
- Tanglin Snopoing Centre _ &)
imoairment of property plant & eguipmen: (&) (38) {24)
29 44y
Gain onirsurance claim (e) - 2
Reversal of mpaoirment of woan {repaymert of loan) {d) 12 -
an (42)

(a) Revaluation gain/(deficit) of investment properties

At the end of the financial year, In accerdance with the Group s policy its investment properties were subject to external professional
valuction on an open-market existing use basis Based an these valuotions, the revaluction gain or deficit was recorded as cons:dered

approprate by the Directors  Further details on these valuations are provided in Note 14
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(b) Impairment of property, plant & equipment

The Directors undertook their annual review of the carrying volue of hotels and property assets for indication of iImpairment and where
appropriate, external valuations were also obtained As a result of this review. the total impairment charge for the year ended 31 December
2017 was £38m consisting of E1lm in New York, £6min Rest of US £4m in Rest of Eurcpe and £13m in Rest of Asia Also included 1s £4m of
goodwill impaired in relation to the acquisition by COLHT of The Lowry Hotel in Manchester in 2017 For 2014, a total impairment charge of
£24m was recognised in relation to £15m in New York, £5m in Rest of Europe, £2m in Rest of Asia and £2m for Regional US Further
information is given in Note 12

(c) Guain oninsurance claim

In May 2016. a settlement was reached with the insurers in relation to Millenruum Hotel Christchurch which was one of the hotels offected
by the 2011 New Zealand earthguake A gain of £2m in respect of material damage claim relating to fixtures, fitings and equipment was
recognised by the Group in the first half of 2016 The lease for this property has expired and ths 2016 settlement is the last insurance claim
relating to the Christchurch earthquake damage

{d) Reversal of impairment of loan (repayment of loan)

On 37 July 2077, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in Fena in exchange for a token sum and repayment of the shareholder loan, which
had been impaired in earlier years The Group re-instated the loan on its balance sheet as at 30 June 2017 with an income of £12m
recognised in the income statement This amount was settted during the year

8 Personnel expenses
2017
£m
Wages ond salaries 05 277
Compulsory social security contributions 51 49
Contributions to def nea contributior schemes 146 14
Defired beneht pens ar (gain)/cost - recorded ir the statement of comprehersive income (4) 10
Defined beneft pens or cost — recoraed in the income statement 2 2
Equity-settled shore-oosed payment transdct ons - -
7o 352

The average number of employees empioyed by the Group (including Directors) during the year analysed by category was as follows

2017 ’
Number
Hatel operating staff 9,020 8397
Management/administration 1,439 1481
Sales and marketing 481 468
Repairs and maintenance 682 650
1,602 10 996
Directors’ remuneration
2017
£m s
Remunerction 1 2

Receved oy the Directors under
- leng-term incertive schemes - -

— Pensions - -
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9 Net fingnce expense

231

Em

Interest income 5 3
Interest recervable from jcint ventures ara asscoiates - 1
loreign exchange gom 6 3
Finamee ncore n 7
Interest expense (26) @3
Foreign exchange lass 8 )
Finonce expense 3M (32)
Net fFrance expense {20) {Z5)
10  Income tax expense

2r7

£

Current tax
Corporat on tax charge for tne year kL] 30
Release of tax pravision durirg the year an -
Adustmoent in respect of priar years 1 -
Total current tax expense 22 30
Deferred tax (Note 26)
O ginaton and reversa. of timirg differences 14) {2}
[Fect of change in tax raie on apening deferred toxes m 3
Benefits of tax losses recogmised (18) {15}
Underprovision in respect of prior years m -
Totol deferred tax credit {34) (20}
Total income tax (credit)/charge in the consolidated income statement (2) 10
UK 5 <]
Overseas 7) 2
Total income tax {credit)/charge in the consolidated Income stdtement 12) Hal

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has a tax charge of £5m (2016 £10m) excluding the tax relating to |cint ventures and

associates Together witn the release of a total of £17m provision in relation to exposures in Singapore that were finalised in 2C17. the Group

recorded a tax credit of £12m

The effective tax rate reloting to the tax charge of ESm betore the release of provision s 4 2% (2016 12 2%) The effective tox rate has been
affected by o number of factors which include the following items

» Other income and expense of the Group,

= Reduced tax rates applied to brought forward net deferred tax labilities in the US anag
+ Tax adgjustments in respect of previous years

Excluding the impact of tre items noted above. the Group's underying effective tax rate 1s 9 2% (2016 15 4%)

The US enacted a corporate tax reform in December 2017 The future reduction i the US carporate inceme tax rate has reduced the

corrying vaiues of both deferred tox assets and babilites resulting in animmotenal net impact to the currert year results
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 a charge of £7m (2016 £3m) relating to |oint ventures and associates 1s included in the profit before
tax

Adjustments in respect of settlement of prior years’ tax liobilities

The Group's tax charge on crdinary activities 1s the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the Group's total
tex charge necessarily involves o degree of estimation and judgement In respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legol process The final
resolution of some of these items moy give rise to matenal profit and loss @nd/or cash flow variances The geographical complexity of the
Group's structure makes the degree of estmation and judgement more challenging The resolution of 1ssues 1s not always within the control
of the Group and it 1s often dependent on the efficacy of the lega! processes in the relevant tax jurisdictions in which the Group operotes

Income tax reconciliation

pdulied
£m
Profit before income tox in consclidated income statement 147 108
Less share of profits of joint ventures and associates 22y (26)
Profit on ordinary octivities excluding share of |oint ventures and gssociates 125 a2
Incame tax on erdinary activiies ot the standard rote of UK tax of 19 25% (2016 20 00%) 24 16
lax exempt income 23 an
Non-deductible expenses ) 5
Use of brought forward previously unrecogrised tax losses 2 m
Other effect of tax rates in foreign junsad.ctions 3 3
Effect of change in tax rate on opening deferred taxes m {3
Other adjustrmerts (o tox charge in respect of prior years 2 1
Release of tax provision dunng the year an -
Income tax (¢redit)/axpense per consolidated income statement 12) 10
1 Earmings per share
Earnings per share are calculated using the following information
207 oo

{a) Baomc
Profit far the year attributable to nolders of the parent (Frm) 124 78
Weighted avercge number of shares in issue {m) 325 325
Basic earnings per share (pence) 38 1p 24 0p
{b) Diluted
Proht for the year attributable to holders of the parent (£m) 124 78

Weighted average number of shares in issue (m) 325 325

Potennally dilutive share options under the Groups share optior schemes (m) - -
Weighted average number of shares in issue {diluted) (m) 325 25

Diluted earnings per share (pence) 381 24 0p
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Cost

Balarce at | January 206 2847 42 258 289 3434
Adartions — Otners 4 57 2 26 o9
Ad|ustments 16} - 1€}
Transters from nvestmert properties a9 - n - 60
Transfars 2 G2y 2 8 -
D sposals @ - & (3 &)
Wr rien off - - - (16} (16}
Foreign exchange adjustments 405 10 59 64 536
Balarce at 31 December 2016 3299 G7 341 348 4105
Balance at ! junuasry 2017 3,299 97 341 388 4105
Additions Otners 14 & 15 18 53
Adiustments - 3] - - 2
Acquisition throLgh bus ness combirat or 47 2 3 52
Transters 43 (59 4 12 -
Disposals - - @] M {2)
Writen oft - {2 [C)) mn
Fareign exchange adjustments {104} {4) (125 [¢]9)] 132)
Balance at 31 December 2017 3,297 k1] 349 381 4,063
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Balarce at 1 January 2018 378 | 92 201 672
Charge for the year 25 - 13 32 70
lmpairrent 26 - 2 28
D sposals - - (" 3 [G)]
Wr tten oft B - m 05 (&)
Fareign exchange adp.stments 5/ 17 43 nz
Balorce at 31 December 2016 486 ! 122 258 867
Balarce at 1 January 201/ 486 1 122 758 aé7
Charge for the year 27 i5 35 72
Impairment 3 - 3 - 34
Dispasals - - — M m
W tten off - - - N &)
Foreign exchange adjustments {1 - (5) [©)] (2
Bolance at 31 December 2017 520 1 135 278 234
Carrying amounts

At 31 December 2017 2,777 35 214 103 3,129
At 31 December 2014 2,813 6 ne 1o 3238

The carrying value of property. plant and equipment held under finance leases ot 31 December 2017 was £ril (2016 £nil)
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a Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on each cash generating unit {' CGU™ The CGUs are individual hotels
The carrying vatue of indmduaol hotels was compared o the recoverable amount of the hotels, which was derived with the reference to fair
value through crection of discount cash flow models Under this methodology. the fair value measurement reflects current market
expectatiors about the third party efficient opercator s future cash flows discounted to their present value The underlying basis for the
impairment model involves each hotel's projected cash flow for the financial year ending 31 December 2018 extrapolated to incorgerate
individual assumptions in respect of revenue growth (principally factoring in room rote and occupancy growth) and major expense lines
The future cash flows are based on assumptions cbout competitive growth rates for hotels In that areo, as well os internal business plans
These plans and forecasts include management’s most recent view of trading prospects for the hotel in the relevant market Where
appropriate, the Directors sought guidance on value from a registered independent appraiser with an appropriately recognised
professional qualfication and recent expenence in the locatron and category of the hotel being valued

On the basis of external valuations in 2017, the Group recorded an imporment charge of £34m consistimg of £11m 1in New York, £13m 1n Rest
of Asia, £6m for Rest of US and £4m in Rest of Europe For 2016 a total impairment charge of £28m (including the impairment of o REIT
property of £4m) was recogrised in relation to £15m in New York, £6m in Rest of Europe, £2m in Rest of Asia and £2m for Regional US
Further information is given in Note 12

Circumstances ond events that led to the impairment are disclosed in the Financial Performance review on page 11

b Key assumptions used by the external appraisers
The key assumptions used were as follows

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate 1s based on the country in which the hotel is located and 1s adjusted for risks ossociated with the
hotel Discount rates ranged from 6% to 12% in the US. 8% to 12% in Europe and 10% in Asia

Occupancy rote — The occupancy growth rotes ranged from 2% to 13% in the US. 1% te 17% in Europe and 3% to 9% in Asia
Average room rate — The average room rate growth ranged from 2% to &% in the US, 1% to 25% in Eurcpe and 1% te 12% in Asia
Terrminal rate - These rates ranged from 7% to 10% in the US, 6% to 9% in turope and 4% to 6% in Asia

The forecasts cover a five to ten year penod, and cash flows beyond this perod are extrapolated using a growth rate ranging between 2%
and 3%, which is based upon the expected trading growth for each hotel ond inflation in the country

c Sensitivities

The Group's impairment review is sensitive to changes in the key assumptions used, most notably the discount rotes and revenue growth
assumptions Based on the Group's sensitivity analysis, @ redsonably possible change in a single factor could result in impairment In certan
hotels in London, Regional UK, Regional US, Asia and Austraiasia as their foir value currently exceeds their carrying value only by a small
percentage

d Land and buildings

Land and buildings includes long leasehold building assets with o book value of £669m (2016 £645m) The net book value of land and
buildings held under short leases was E105m (2016 £109m}). in respect of which depreciation of £3m (2016 £2m) was charged durning the
year

No interest wos capitalised within land and buldings during the year (2016 £mil) The cumulative capitalised interest within land and
buildings 15 £5m (2016 £5m)

e Pledged assets
At year-end. the net book value of assets pledged as collateral for secured loans was £458m (2016 £526m) The secunty for the loans 1s by
way of charges on the properties of the Group companies concerned
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f Business combination

On 4 May 2017 the HBT Group acquired 100% of the shares and voung interests in The Lowry Hatel Ltd (LHL") (tre "UK Acquisition”) for a
total consideration of £53m The HBT Group cequired LHL which owns The Lowry Hatel in Manchester (the UK Property”) The UK
Acquisition 15 expected to benefit the holders of Stapled Secunties by broadening the Stapled Group's earnings kase and will aiso have the
benefit of Improving the geograph.cal diversification of the Stapled Group's portfelic The acquisitien was accounted for as a business
combination as the HBT Group had accquired vanous operational processes together with the UK Property

From the dote of acquisition to 31 December 2017 LHL contributed revenue of £9m and net profit before tax of £1m to the MBT Group's
results If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, the HBT Trustee-Manager estimates that the HBT Group's reverue would have
been £38m and the HBT Group's net profit before tax for the year would have been £4m in determiming these amounts BT Trustee-
Manager has assumed that the ‘air value adjustments, determined prov sionatly, that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same / the acquisttion had cccurred on 1 ]anuary 2017

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following tabie summarises tre recognised amounts of assets acquired and licbilities assumed at the date of acquistion

Property p.ant ang equipment 52
Trade and other recevobies 2
Cash at pank ?
Trade and other payaoles (3)
Shareholder's loan (22)
Deferrec tax liakbbities (4
lotal dentihabie net assets 27

Measurement of fair values
The valuation technigues used for measuring the far value of maternial ossets acquired were as follows

Property p ant ana equipment Mar<et companson technique and discounted casn flow technique The market compor son techrigue nvelves the anoiysis
of corrporable sa.es of similar assets and adjust ng the sale onces to that reflect ve of the UK Praperty Tre discounted casn
f.ow method ihvolves ‘orecasting the UK Property s income stream for 10 years and discount ng the income stream at 8 25%
Goodwill

Goodwill ansing from the UK Acquisition has been recagrised as follows

fatal Consideratior tronsferred 53
Fair value of identihab.e net assets @2n
Shareholders loan assumeo (22)
Gooawil, 4
Imoarrment loss on goodwill (4

The HBT Group hos undertaken an impairment assessment of the goodwill orising fram the UK Acguisition The recoverable amount was
estmated using the fair value less costs to sell approach, taking 'nto consideration the farr value of the underlying property based on the
valuation techrigques and assumptions described in the table above {Level 3 fair value} Based on this assessment, the goodwilt was fully
impaired The ‘mpairment loss was recogrised in Other operating expense” in the consolidoted income statement Refer to Note 7
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Consideration transferred

Cash poid 53
Effect of the acquisition of LHL on cash flows

Totol consideration for 100% equity interest acquired 53
Add Acquisition-related costs 1
Less Cosk at bank of subs aiary acquired @
| ess Acquisition-reiated costs not yet paird

Net cash gutflow on acquisitor 52

Y ne uded i tash Hows from nvestirg acbivit ¢4

Acquisition-related costs

The HBT Group incurred a one-off transaction cost of £1m comprising of legal and due diligence costs These costs have been included in

the consolidated income statement

13 Lease premium prepayment

Pl
Em

Cast
Balonce at | january 2017 129
Foreign exchange adjustments @
Balance at 31 Decemper 2017 126
Amortisation
Baiance at | January 2017 2
Charge for the yeor 3
Foreign exchange adjustments (2)
Balence at 31 December 2017 7
Carrying arnount at 31 December 2017 105
Analysed between
Arrount due after more than one year included m nor-current assets 103
Amount due w thin one year included in current assets 2

105
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14 Investment properties
Completed investment properties comprise Tanglin Shopping Centre. Billtmore Court & Tower, CDLHT properties and Millenmium Mitsui
Garden Hotel Tokyo Investment properties under construction represents the land site at Sunnyvale

Movements In the year analysed as

Bolarce at 1 January 2014 499 / 506
Transfers (6C) - [(18))
Adatiors 2 - 2
Ad|ustment to fa r value {12y - [
Foreign exchange ad,ustment B 2 98
Balance at 31 December 2018 525 ? 534
Batance at | January 201/ 525 9 534
Transfer to current asset be.d for sale 4n - 4n
Addtions 7 2
Acquisiticn of property 24 - 4
Adjustment to fa r value G - 9
Foreign exchange adjustment {21 @0
Balonce at 31 December 2017 568 9 577

In general, the carrying amount of investment property other than those under construction s the foir value of the property as determined by
aregistered independent appraiser having an appropriate recogrised professional gualification and recent experience in the location and
category of the property being valued Fair values were determined having regard to recent market trarsactions far similar preperties in
the same locaticn as the Group's investment property

Only the land site ot Sunnyvale, California. 1s classified as investment properties under canstruction at 31 December 2017 as the project of
bullding a hotel and an apartment complex s still in progress This asset 1s carned at cost on the balance sheet

The Group's investment properties were subject to external professional valuation on an open market existing use basis by the following
accredited independent valuers

Tangun Shopping Centre Sirgapore Edrrurd Tie & Campany (SEA) Pte Ltd
Biltmore Court &t Tower Los Angeles Seauoio Hotel Agvisors LLC
Land s e at Surryvale Calformia Seauoa Hotel Aavisors LLC
Millenmum Mitsu Garden Hote, Tokyo Jones Lung LaSalie KK
CDLHT - Singapore property CBRF Pte 1 td
CDLH! - Australia progsert es Janes Lang LaSolie Property Censuttants Pte Ltd
CDILHT - Maleives property CBRE Pte LtH
CDLHT - Germany property CBRE Ple Lid

Based on these valuations together with such considerations as the Directors consider appropriate Millernium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo
and Biitmore Court & Tower recorded a revaluation gain of £9m (2016 revatuction gam £6m) and a revaluation deficit of £3m (2016
revaluation gaoin £3m) respectively Tanglin Shopping Centre recorded an immateral revaluation deficit (2016 revaluation defict £4m) In
addition, the REIT properties recorded a net revaoluation surplus of £3m (2016 revaiuation deficit of £27m) All the other investment
properties recorded no charge and no imparrment was identified
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Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement for investment properties not under construction of £568m (2016 £525m) has been categorised as a Level 3
fair value based on inputs to the valuation technique used

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs
The following table shows the valuation technigue used In measuring the fair value of investment property, as well as signiicant

unclkservable inputs used

The technique opplied in the valuation of the Targlin
Shopping Centre 1s based on market comparnson of
sales of simiiar propertres 1 the vicmty Further
adjustments are made to this value te account for
differences tr location size tenure view accessibilty
conditicn and other factors

Biltmeore Court & Tower and Millenmum Mitsur Garden
Hotel Tokyc were volued using ¢ discounted cosn flow
technique based on expected rental income and
discount rate apprepriate for the property

Investment properties held by the REIT were volued
using the discounted cash flow capitclisation or
comparison techniques

Tanglin Shopping Cantre
Open market values for other properties

Biltmore Caurt & Tower
Discount rate of between 8% to 10 5% and
caopitalisation rate of 7 5% to 9%

Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo
Discount rate of 4 "% and capitalsation rate of 4 3%

CDLHT investment properties Discount rate of
between 6% and 10% captalisation rate of 5% to
8% and terminal yie.d of 5% to 8%

The estimated farr value would increase/ {decrease)
i

Expected marxet rental growth were k.gher/(lower)
and

R s< adjusted discount rate wos lower/ {higher)
copitalisabion rate was b gher/ (lower} ano terminal
yeld was lower/ (higher)

Further details in respect of iInvestment property rentais are given in Note 31

Acquisition of property

On 14 July 2017, the H-REIT Group acquired 94 9% of the shares and voting interests in NKS Hospitality | BV ("NKS") and Murnich Furniture
BV ("FurnitureCo”) (collectively. the "German Acquisition”) for a total consideration of €101m (£89m) The H-REIT Group acquired NKS and

FurnitureCo which own Pullman Hotel Munich (the "German Hotel”) and its office and retail components (collectively, the ‘German

Property) The acqguisition was accounted for as an acquisition of assets
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The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and uabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

n3

Investment property 107 94
Deferrec tox assels - -
Irade and other recervakles -
Cash at pank 3
Trage and other payables -
Borrow ngs (45) (40
Total identihab.e net assets 65 55
Less Non-controlirg interest bosed on tneir propertionate interest ir the recognised amounts of the assets and labilities of the acquiree {3) (3
Idenuhable net assets acguired &2 52
Consideration transferred
Cash paid joll 89
Effect of tne acquistior of NKS ard Furriturelo an casn Hows
Total cons geraticn for 94 9% eguity interest acquired 59 57
Ada Borrowirgs assumed 43 38
Add Acguisition-relcted costs 3 3
less Casr at bank of subs gianies acoured 3 &)
Less Consideration not yet paid 2 @
Net cosn outflow on acguisition 100 88
lincwded 0 cash fiows o nvest ng oct vit es
15 Investments in joint ventyres and associates
The Group has the following investments in jo1nt ventures and associates

17
Joint ventures
New Urity Holaings Lim ted { New Unity ) Horg Korg - 50% H0%
Fena Estate Company L mited { Fena') Tnailard - - 50%
Fergurser Hotel Managemert Limited Horg Kerg 50% H0%
Associate
First Sponsor Group Limited ('First Sponsor } Pecple s Republic of Ching =te} 3&8% 36%
Prestons Road Limitea New Zealard 13% -
CDL Hotels japar Pte Ltd Singapore - 40% 40%

The Group has 50% in New Unity which operates the Group's hotel business in Hong Kong First Sponser is a property company which is

tsted on the Singapore Excrange and has interests in China anad the Netherlands it is also involved in the Chinese property financing

business which carries addittonal nsk of recoverability of certain assets

QOn 31 July 2017 the Group, via its subsiciary company City Hotels Pte Ltd. disposed of its 50% interest i1n Fena Estate Co Ltd i exchange
for o token poyment Fena is the owner of Pullman Bangkok Grande Sukhumwit (formerly Grand Millennium Sukhumwvit Bangkok') There
was no carrying book value on the Group s balance sheet for this iInvestment which had been imparred in previous years In canunction
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with the transaction, there was repayment of a shareholder's loan which had alsc been fully impaired The Group re-instated the loan on
its balance sheet during the year and an income of £12m was recognised in the income stotement This amount wos setiled during the year

Share of net assets/cost

Balance at 1 Jaruvory 2016 69 166 255
Share of proht for the year 4 22 26
Dividends received - {2) (2)
Foreign exchange adjustments 20 21 41
Bao.ance at 21 December 2016 n3 207 320
Ba.ance a1 ]anruary 2017 na 207 320
Share of proht for the yeor 5 17 22
Dinidends receved - @ )
Foreign exchange adjustments (10) (6) (16)
Balance at 31 December 2017 108 216 324

The following is summarised finoncial information for First Sponsor and New Unity based on therr respective financial statements prepared
in accordance with IFRS These are considered to be the most significant investments in joint ventures and associates

207 i 2017
£m v £m
Non-current gssets 508 262 340 14
Current assets 467 749 94 108
Nen-current ligbilities (356) (200) 24y (206)
Current Llabilities (21 {230) {29 28)
Totol cssets less total liabilities 608 581 281 268
Less Non-controlling interest (&3] (3 (88) (62)
Net assets (100%) 404 578 215 226
Group's share 216 207 108 n3
Revenue 2186 1o}l 128 118
Operoting profit 463 52 25 24
Interest iIncome 5 1l {2} U]
Income tax expense (16} (2) (4 6]
Prefit for the year 52 ) 1% 18
Non controlling interests (3 {0} (10} 9
Profit for the year after non-controlling interests 49 0] 9 9
Other comprehensive Income (12} @7 - -
Profit and total comprehensive income (100%) 37 a3 ? 9
Group's share of profit and total comprehensive income 13 12 5 4
Dividends received by the Group 2 2 - -

At 31 December 2017, the Group's share of the total copital commitments of jaint ventures and associates amounted to £18m (2016 £15m)
At 31 December 2017, the Group s joint ventures and associates had no contingent liabilives (2016 £nil}
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16 Other Anancial assets

Financial statements

There are no financial assets as at 31 December 2017 (2016 Erul)

17 Inventories

Further informotion
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1S5

Cons.maoles 4 5
18 Development properties
“ J|‘l
£
Development orooert es comprise
Development .ana for resale
- New Zealond wandban« .13 &6
Development proverties
- Zenth Resdences 27 27
93 93
19 Trade and other recervables
25
Trade receivab.es 41 39
Other recevapies 1% 27
Prepayments and accrued iIrcome 28 29
a8 95

Trade receivables are shown net of an impairment allowance of £3m (2016 £2m) relating to the likely insolvencies of certain customers and

non-recoverability of debts

The Group's exposure to credit and currency nisks and impairment losses related to trade ond other recevables are disclosed in Note 22

20 Cash and cash equivaients

4017

Em
Cuask at nank and n hana 209 223
Short-terr deposis 205 194
Cask pocl overdrafts [0 (80)
CasF and cask equivalenits on the statemert of finarcie, posit-on 354 33/
Overdrafts incwuded in corrowirgs - -
Cash and cask equivalenis snown nthe cash flow stotemen: 354 337

The Groun's exposure to interest rate risk ard o sensitivty analysis for inancial assets are disclosed in Note 22

As at 31 December 2017 £1m (2016 £nil) of the cash balance was restricted
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21 Interest-bearing loans, bonds and borrowings
2017
£m
Included w.thin ron current habilities
Bank loans 553 628
Bonds poyable 238 323
0l 951
Incluaed within current iabilities
Bank loans ang overdrafts 146 73
Bonds payable &7 -
212 93

Further details in respect of financial labilities are given in Note 22

22 Financial instruments

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments

* credit risk,
+ liquidity nsk. and
¢« morket rigk

This note presents information about the Group s exposure to each of the above risks, and the Group's policies and processes for measuring

ond managing nsk

(a) Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk of financiai loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to ¢ financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and anses principally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment securities

Exposure to credit nsk 1s monitored on an ongoing basis, with credit checks performed on all clients requinng credit over certain amounts

Credit Is net extended beyond authorised limits, established where appropnate through consultation with a professional credit vetting
organisation Credit granted is subject to regular review, to ensure it remains consistent with the client’s current creditworthiness and

appropnate to the anticipated volume of business

Investments are ollowed only in lguid short-term instruments within approved limits, with investment counterparties approved by the Board.

such that the exposure to a single counterparty 1s mnimised

The maximum exposure to credit risk s represented by the carrying volue of each financial asset on the balance sheet. these being spread

across the vartous currencies and |urisdictions in which the Group operates
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The maximum expasure to credit risk at the reporting date was
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17

m
Cash at pank and n hand {see Note 20) c9 223
Short-term cepaess (see Note 20) 205 194
Trade recewaicles {see Note 19) 4 39
Other rece vaoles (see Note 19) 9 27
474 483
The maximum exposure to credit nsk for trade recewvables at the reporting date by geographic region was
PRl
£m
New York 7 b
Regiona, US 4 4
Rest of Europe 7 /
Singapore 7 8
Rest of Asig n 8
Australasia 5 [+
41 39
The ageing cf trade recevables at the reportirg date was
Uty RN 7
ir Fro £m
Nzt past due 27 2 - 27 71
Past due 0 - 30 days 0 10 - - 10 10
Pastdue 3 60 aays 3 3 - 3 3
Past due 6l - 90 days 1 3 - - 1 3
Mare than 90 days 3 4 {3} [¢2) - 2
44 a @ @ a1 39
The movement in the aliowance for imparment in respect of trade recevables during the year was as follows
T
£
Bularce ot 1 january 2 2
Imparrment recegnised 1 -
Balorce o1 31 December 3 2
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Financial Assets

Fixed Rote
Sterling - -
US dolia- 13 13
Korean Wor b b
Singapore dollar 20 Q0
New Tawan dollar 8 8
Australian dollar 5 5
New Zealand dolla- 65 65
Malaysian Ringgit 18 18
Euro 1 1
Chinese Renminbi 17 17
Qthers 1 1
Non-interest Bearing
Sterling 29 29
US doliar 2 32
Singapore dolior 8 18
New Tawan deliar 1 i
Malaysian Ringgit 1 1
Euro 17 7
Japanese Yen 14 14
Qthers 13 13
Interest Bearing Cash Pool deposits
Singapere dodar 53 53
lopanese Yen 2 2
Totci cash and other tinancial assets 414 414

Interest Bearing Cash Pool Cverdrafts

Sterling (24 {24)
Hang Kong dollar (22) 22y

Non-Iinterest Searing Cash Pool Overdrafts
Sterling (14) {14)
Total everdrafts (Nota 20) &0 {60)
354 354

Represented by,
Cash and cash equivalents {(Note 20) 354

354
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Financial Assets

Fixed Rate
Ster ng 24 24 - - -
US deliar 24 24 - - -
Korear Won 5 5 - - -
Singopore dollar a7 87 -
New Tawar collar 12 2 - - -
Australiar dollar 4 4 - -
New Zealand dolior 55 35 - - -
Maoystan Ringg t 15 '5 - - -
Eure 3 3 - -
Chinese Renminoi 17 17 - - -
Non-Interest Becring
Ster. ng 21 21 - - -
US dellar 22 22 - - -
Singopore dollar 21 21 - -
Malaysian Ringgit 1 1 - - -
Euro 14 4 - _
Japarese Yen Hl 1i - - -
Otkers 1l T - - -
Interest Bearing Cash Pool depeosits
Singapore dollar . 70
Total cash and other financial assets 417 417 -
Interest Bearing Cush Pool Overdrafts
Stering 33 (33 - - -
Eura &) {6) -
Horg Xong dollar 28 28) - - -
Non-Interest Bearing Cosh Pool Overdrafts
Steri ng 13 013 - - -
Totol overdrafts (Note 20) {80y [(s16)) - - -
337 337 - -
Represented by.
Cask and cask equvalents (Note 20) 337

337
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{b) Liquidity risk

Ligudity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet is financioi obligations as they fali due The Group's epproach to managing
liquidity 1s to ensure as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient hquidity to meet its labilities when due under both nermal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabities including estimated interest payments using the interest rates prevailing
as at the reporting dote

Floating rote financial licbilities

Secured loans &5 68 3 3 42 - -

Unsecured loars 423 449 29 84 51 285

Secured bonds 39 39 - - - 39 -

{nsecured bords 149 159 2z 2 77 78 -

Overdraft - - - - -

Fixed rate financial liobilities

Unsecured loars 210 2 39 2 91 89

Unsecured bonds &7 &8 t 6/ - - -

Secured bonds 51 Sl - - - 51 -

Trade ond other payables

Trade payables 27 27 27 - - - -

Cther creditors & al &l - -

Non-current liabilities

Other non-current iabit es i3 13 - - - 2 n
1108 1156 162 158 281 544 n

I

sk . L t

Floating rate financial liabilities

Secured loans 72 78 & ? A bb

Unsecured toans 387 399 26 62 151 150 -
Secured bonds 19 25 1 1 ? 21

Unsecured bonds 163 170 1 1 2 166 -
Fixed rate financial ligbilities

Unsecyred loans 281 279 3 3 b6 207 -
Unsecured bonds &7 68 - - 68 - -
Secured bonds 75 80 1 1 1 7 -
Trade and other payables

Trade payabies 35 35 35 - - - -
Cther creditors 59 59 53 <] - - -
Non-current liabilities

Other non-current habilit.es 14 14 - - - 3 n

1152 1207 126 76 294 700 n
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Undrawn committed borrowing facilities
At 31 December 2017, the Group had £556m (2016 £546m) of undrawn and committed facilities available, comprising committed revelving
credt facibties which provide the Group with financial flexioility Maoturities of these facilities are set out in the following table

The conditions precedent to the availability of these faclities are all satisfied at the bolance sheet dote

1u?

£m
Fxpiring r one year or less 295 209
Exoiring after mare than one year out rot mare than two years &9 153
Exoiring ofter mare than two years out ra. mare tnar fve years 192 a4
Exoir ng after more than five years - -
Total urdrown comm tted borrow ng fac lities 558 546
Totol urdrawr uncorrmitied borrow ng facilities 43 51
Totol urdrawr borrowing fac lites 599 597

Security
Included within the Group s total bank loans and overdrafts of £703m (2016 £721m) £65m (2016 £72m) are secured loars and overdrafts
Tota! bonds and notes payable of £216m (2016 £230m) are unsecured

Loans bonds and nates are secured on land and bulldings with a carrying value of £458m (2016 £526m) and an assigrment of insurance
proceeds In respect of iInsurances over the mortgaged properties

Of the Group's total facilities of £1 603m, £599m matures within 12 months compnsing £t unsecured bonds and notes, £186m committed
revolving credit facitities £38m uncommitted facilities and overdrafts subject to annual renewal, £370m unsecured term loans and £3m
secured term loans Plans for refinancing the facilies are underway

(c) Market risk
Market nsk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreigr exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments

The primary objectives of tre treasury function are to provide secure and competitively pnced funding for the octvities of the Group and to
identify and monage financiol nisks, including exposure to movements in interest and fareign exchange rates arising fram those activities I
approphiate, the Group uses financial instruments and derivatives to manage these nsks, as set out below

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to fareign currency risk on revenue, purchases, barrowings and cash deposits denominated in currencres other than
the functicnal currencies of the respective Group entities The currencies giving rise to this nisk are primanly US dollors. Singapore dollars,
New Zealcnd doliars, New Tamwan dollars Korean won Chinese renminbr, Japanese yen and Furo

The Group's principal policy wherever possible, 15 to maintain a ratural hedge whereby labilites are matched with assets denominated in
the same currency Foreign currency investment exposure (s also minimised by borrowing in the currency of the investment

Te mitigate foreign currency translation exposure, an appropriate proporticn of net assets are designoted as hedged against
correspond'ng financial Llabilities in the same currency
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Net investment hedging

The Group has US$163m (2016 US$162m) US dollar leans and overdrafts and €/m (2016 €61m) Euro loans and overdrofts designeted as
hedges of corresponding respective proportions of its net investment in foreign operations whose functional currencies are US dollars and
Euros The risk being hedged is the fereign currency exposure on the carrying amount of the net assets of the foreign operation upon
consolidation The fair value of the hedging instruments as at 31 December 2017 was £128m (2016 £188m)

An analysis of borrowings by currency and their fair values os at 31 December 1s given below

31 December 2017

Baok value Fair value

£m £en
Sterling 120 120 66 bb
Singapore do.dar Fil N 240 240
Australia dollar - - 55 55
US dottar 432 432 ik 415
New Zealand dollar a5 35 37 37
Chirese renminby 30 30 34 34
|apanese yen m m 17 7
MNew Taman dollar 4 4 n n
Karean Won 24 24 23 23
Eure kY 37 46 a6
1,004 1,004 1044 1.044

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency loans during each accounting period are recognised as a component of equity to the
extent that the hedge 1s effective The foreign exchange exposure ansing on the Group's net investment in its subsidiaries 1s expected to be
highly effective in offsetting the exposure arising on the Group's foreign currency borrowings However durning the year there was an
immaternicl amount (2016 £nil) recogrised in the consolidated income statement that arose from hedges of net investments in fareign
operations that were considered to be ineffective

Foreign currency transaction exposure 1s primarily managed through funding of purchases from cperating income streams ansing in the
same currency

Hedging of transaction expasure 1s undertaken with approved counterparties and within designated bmits, using spot or short-term forward
contracts to buy or sell the currency concerned. ence the timing and the underiying amount of exposure have been determined Foreign
exchange dervatives may also be used to hedge specific transaction exposure where appropriate There are no foreign exchange
dernvohives in ploce at 3] December 2017

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

mz 2 2007
US dollar 1.290 1355 1.33%9 1228
Singapore dollar 1.782 1879 1.796 1781
New Tawan dollar 39.338 43700 40 083 39 479
New Zealard dollar 1.814 1 952 1.894 1772
Malaysian ringgit 5 544 5640 5.473 5503
Korean won 1,455.88 1676 43 1,438.03 1 486 46
Chinese renmini 8722 9008 8.779 8537
Eura 1143 1231 t127 1174

|oparese yen 144,678 147 961 151 569 144 311
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Sensitivity analysis

With respect to the Group's fore.gn currency exposure and assuming that all other vanables, in particular interest rates remacin constant it
is estimated that o 10% strengthening of sterling against the following currencies at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016 10%) would have
increased/{decreased) equity and profit betore tax by the amounts shown below

11 Decamber 2017

Preft

Tqur. beforstas
i £m
US doliar 33 4 38 1
Australian actiar (8) m (3
Singapore dolla- S [S3] 5 !
New Tarwor aollar - [4}] - 1
New Zecland dellar m ) ® E
Furo 3 - q -
Chinase renminb (4) @) 4
Heorg Keng dollar - [4}] - I
Japarese Yen 2 2 2 1
Tha Baht - M -
30 a2 4] 8

A10% weakening of sterling against the above currencies at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016 10%) would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other vanables remain constant

(ii} Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

The Group adopts a policy of ongeoing review of 1ts exposure to changes in interest rates on its borrowings. taking inte account market
expectations with regard to the perceived level of risk associated with each currency the matunty proflle and cash flows of the underlying
debt, and the extent to which debt may potentially be erther prepoid prior to its maturity or refinanced ot reduced cost

The Group's policy s te mantain a mixture of its financial kabilities on a fixed and floating-rate basis with a greater emphasis on floating
rates presently as this flexib ity s considered to be appropnate mn the context of the Group s overall geogrephical diversity investment and
business cycle and the stability of the income streams, cash balances and loan covenants

Interest rate derivatives are used to manage interest rate sk, to the extent that the percewved cost 1s considered to outweigh the benefit
fram the flexibility of variable rate borrowings, and the Group actively monitors the need and timing for such denvatives Where used,
interest rate denvatives are classifred as cash flow hedges and stated at foir value within the Group's consolidated statement of financial
positton Further details of interest rate denvatives in place at 31 December 2017 are provided hereafter

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Assuming that all other vanables in parteular foreign currency rates remain constant a change of one percentage point in the averoge
Interest rates applicable to vanable rate instruments for the year would have increased/{decreased) the Group's profit before tax for the
year as shown below

M- e 2T17

ETTRCERS Ve dneramnr

Varab.e rate ironcial ossets 2 [v3} ? %
Vanob.e rate finarcial skl bes {0 10 ()] 1
Cash flow sens tiv ty (ne”) ()] 8 () 9
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(d) Fair value
Set aut below 15 a companisan of the fair and book values of all the Group's financial instruments by category Four volues ore determined
by reference to market values, where available or calculated by discounting eash flows at prevailing interest rotes

201/ 2037 -
Beok vafue Fair valoe

£ £Em v
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivolents
Cash at bank and in hand 209 209 223 223
Shori-term deposits 205 205 194 194
Caish pool overdrafts (60) (60) (80} (80)
Loans and receivables
Traode recervables 4 4 39 39
Other recevables 9 19 29 29

414 4i4 405 4G5
Financial liabilities
Overdrafts and borrowings (1.004) (1,004) (1044) (1044)
Trade paychbles @n @n (38} 33
Cther creditors (1) o1 59 (59
Other non-current Lablaties 3) a3 a4 4y

(1.105) (1,105) $.152) {152y

Estimation of fair values
The following summanses the major methods and assumptions used m estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected in the
table

Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts ore either marked to market using listed market prices or by discounting the controctual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate For interest rate swaps. bank valuotions are used

Interest-bearing loons and borrowings
Fair value 1s colculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cosh flows

Finance lease liabilities
The fair value 1s estmated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market interest rates for smilar lease agreements The
estimated fair values reflect changes in interest rates

Trade and other receivables /payables
For receivabies/payabies with a remaining life of less than one year the notional amount is deemed to reflect the far volue All other
recevobles/payables are discounted to determine the fair value.

Interest rotes used for determining fair value
Prevailing market interest rates are used to discount cash flows to determine the foir value of financial assets and ligbilivies

Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2017, the Group held certain financigh instruments measured ot far value
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The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique
Levell guoted (Uuradusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities

Level 2 other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable. ether directly or
mdirectly

Level 3 techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not based on observable market data

During the year ended 31 December 2017 there were no transfers betweenr Level | and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers
inta and out of Level 3 fair value measures

Copital management

The Board s policy s to maintain a strong copital base so as to mantain investar, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business The Company s objective far managing its capital 1s to ensure that Group entities will be able tc continue as a
going concern while maxirmising the return to shareholders as well os sustaining the future development of its business In arder to maintain
or adjust the caprial structure the Group may alter the total amount of dividends paid to shareholders return caprtal to sharerolders 1ssue
new shares, draw down additicnal debt or reduce debt

The Group's capitol structure consists of debt which includes the loans and borrowings disclesed i Note 21, cash and cash equivalents
disclosed in Note 20 and the equity attributable to the parent compnising share capital reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the
consol.dated statement of changes in equity The Group seeks to mantain a baiance between tne higher returns that might be possiole
with higher levels of borrowings ond the advantoges and security afforded by o sound capital position

Onre of the Group's subsidiaries CDLHT which 1s o stapled group compnsing COL Hosprtality Real Estate Investment Trust ('H-REIT™) and
CDL Hospitality Business Trust ("HBT™) @ business trust. 1s required to maintain certain minimum base capitai and financial resources

H-REIT s subject to the aggregote leverage Lmit as defined in the Property Fund Appendix of the Code on Collective Investment Schemes

( CIS Code”) 1ssued by Monetary Authorty of Singapore The CIS Cede stipulates that the total borrowings and deferred payments (together
the ‘Aggregate Leverage”) of a property fund should not exceed 45 0% of its Deposited Property except that the Aggregate Leverage of a
property fund may exceed 45 0% of its Deposited Property (up to a maximum of 60 0%) if a credit rating of the property fund from Fitch inc |
Moody's or Standard and Poor's is obtained and disclosed to the public The property fund should continue to maintain and disclose a
credit rating so long as its Aggregate Leveroge exceeds 45 0% of its Deposited Property

For this financial year, H-REIT has o credit rating of BBB- from Fitch Inc The Aggregate Leverage of H-REIT as at 31 December 2017 was
32 6% (2016 36 8%) of H-REIT's Deposited Property This complied with the aggregate leverage imit as described above

HBT. H-REIT and CDLHT have complied with the borrowing limit requirements impaosed by the relevant Trust Deeds and oll externally
imposed capital requirements for the financial years ended 31 Decemizer 2017 and 2016

Except far the above, neitrer the Company nor any of its subsidiarnies are subject to externally mposed capital requirements
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23 Employee benehfts

Pension arrangements
The Group operates various funded pension schemes which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices within the
countries concerned The most significant funds are described below

United Kingdom

The pension arrangements in the United Kingdom operate under the 'Millenmum & Coptharne Pension Plan’, which was set up in 1993 The
ptan operates a funded defined benefit arrangement tagether with a defined cantribution plan both with different cateqgories of
membership The defined benefit section of the plan was closed tc new entrants in 2001 and at the same tme nghts to @ guaranteed
minimum pension ("GMP ) under the defined contribution scheme olso ceased The plan entitles a retired employee to receive on onnual
pensioh payment

The contributions required are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of tnennial valuations using the projected unit credit methad
The last full actuarial valuahon of this scheme was carried out by a quolified independent actuary as ot 5 April 2017 and this has been
updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2017 The centributions of the Group during the year were 24% (2016 24%) of
pensionable salary

As the defined benefit section 15 closed to new entrants, the current service cost. as a percentage of pensionable payroll s likely to increase
as the membership ages althcugh it will be applied to a decreasing pensianable payroll The ossumptions which have the mast significant
effect on the resuits of the valuation are these relating ta the discount rate and the rates of increase in salaries and pensions

South Korea

The Group operctes a defined benefit pension plan for its employees 1n South Korea The contributions required are determined by an
external qualfied actuary using the projected unit credit method The most recent valuation was carried out on 31 December 2017 The
assumptrons which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuatiohs are those relating te the discount rate and rote of
increase 1N salares

Taiwan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan for its employees In Tawan The contributions required are determined by an external
qualfied actuary using the projected unit credit method The most recent valuation was carried out on 31 December 2017 The contnbutions
of the Group were 6% (2016 &%) of the employees’ earnings The cssumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuations are those relating to the discount rate and rate of increase In salanes

The defined benefit plans are administered by pension funds that are legally separated from the Group The boards of the pension funds
are required by low to act in the best interests of the plan porciponts

These defined benefit plans expase the Group to actuanal nsks, such as longevity risk, currency nisk, interest rate risk and market investment
risk

The above plans are substantially funded by the Group's subsidianes The funding requirements ore based on the pension funds’ actuanal
measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plans
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The assets of each scheme have been taken at market value and the habilities have been caleulated using the following principal
assumptions

127

407 LT 27

Uk Savtn Kared Ta1war
Inflatior rote 3 5% 3.0% - 35% 30% -
Mscouni rate 2.5% 3 0% 1.0% 27% 28% 1 0%
Rate of salary increase 4.0% 3 0% 30% 40% 4 0% 30%
Ruote of pens enircreases 3 5% - - 3I5% - -
Rate of reva.uot an 2.5% - - 25% -
Annudi exoected return or p.ar assets 2.5% 30% 10% 2 7% 2 8% 10%

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible cctuanal assumptions which due to the

timescale covered, may not necessarly be borne out In practice The present values of the schemes’ Llabilities are derved from cash flow

projections over long penods and are inherently uncertain

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions holding other cssumptions consistent,
would have aitered the defined benefit obligation by the amacunts shown below

Lo~ned cenekt obl gatian

201” 2017
rrenas e orense
Em £
0 scount rate (% mavement) 4) 14 an n
Rate of salary increase (1% movement) 2 @) 2 2)
Although the analysis does not take account of the full distrbution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does provide an
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet are os follows
200
2017 Su.th 2017 2017 2007
(L4 Korea T2 man Ltter Tatye
£ b £n £ro Er
Present vase of funded obligatiors 74 s n 2 94 75 5 n 2 33
Fa rvolue of puasn assets (&63) (&) 5) - [2X)] (=0} [6)] |G (G}
Plan defic t 1 - L] 2 19 15 - & 2 3
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows

M7
2017 South 2017 2017 20t
Uk Korea Terwan Other Total
Em Em £m £m Em v
Ba.ance at | january 75 5 n 2 93 61 a Q i 75
Current service cost - - - - 1 - - 1
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 2 - 1 - 3
Benehts paid deaoth ir service insurance
premiums and expenses @) (O] [Q] - {4) {2) M @] - (€]
Remeasurerment losses/ (goirs) ansing from
- Financial assumptions 1 - - - - 4 1 - 15
-~ Demographic assumptions - - - - 1 - - - - -
- Experence adjusimen: ) - - - (2) - - - -
Foreign exchange adjustments - 1 1 - 2 M 2 1 1 3
Batance at 31 December 74 5 n 2 92 15 5 n 2 ?3
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows
2017
207 South 2007 2m? '

UK Kores Tawan Tatal -

£m Em £m Em
Bolance at] january &0 5 5 70 55 4 3 62
Interest income 2 - - 2 2 - ?
Group contnibutrons - 1 1 2 - 1 2 3
Renehits poid @ m o “ @ o [0) )
Remeasuremrent gains ansing from
~ Return on plan ossets excluding interest ncome 3 - - 3 5 - - 5
Fareign exchange adjustments - - - - - 1 1 2
Balance at 31 December 63 5 5 73 &0 5 S 70
Actual return an plan assets 5 - - 5 / - - 7
The fair values of plan assets in each category are as follows

017
2017 South 07 2ms '

UK Korea Tarwan Total '

£m Em £m £m e |
Equities 22 - - 22 9 - - 9
Bonds 4 5 - 9 1 4 5
Cash and cash equ valerts 37 - 5 42 50 1 5 56

63 S S 73 60 5 5 70
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The expense recognised in the income statement Is as follows
2017
2717 So.rr 2017 201F 207
LK LTS} Tarman Jthor Tat-
£r £ En Emv £
Current service cost - 1 - - 1 N - - 1
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 ? - 1 3
Interest Income (2) - - - @ &) - - 2
- 1 - - 1 1 - 3 2
Total cost 1s recognised within the following items in the income statement
T
£
Cost of sa.es - !
Admir strative expenses 1 1
1 2
The goins or losses recogrised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows
v
207 Soute 20 KR <017
(7L Kates Ta wan Oher Tatzl
£m Emr Em £ £m
Actua. return .ess expected return on plan
assets 3 - - - 3 5 - - 5
Remeasuremert (losses)/ ga ns ansing from
- Finarciol assumptions ] - - - m (14) - 0] (15)
- Demographic assumaotions - - - - - - - - -
txper erce adjustment 2 - - - 2
Defirec benefit plon
remeasuremert gams/ {l¢sses) 4 - - - 4 (&) — Q)] [du)}
e
' £m
Cumulative as at 1 lonuary 27 17
Remeasurement (gains}/ osses recogrised dur ng the year (1) 0
Cumulotive os at 31 December 23 27
The life expectancies underlying the value of the accrued labilities for the UK Plan based on retirement age of 65, are as follows
1m0m
Vaar
Males 24 25
temrales 26 27

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit cbligations as at 31 December 2017 was 25 years (2016 26) The Group expects £1m

in cortributions to be paid to the defined benefit plans in 2018
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Shore-based payments
The Group operates a number of share option schemes, o majority being designed to lirk remuneration to the future performance of the
Group Details of these schemes are given in the Remuneration Committee report

In aecordence with the Group's accounting policy 2 2N(v) on share-based payment transactions, the fair value of share options and
long-term incentive awards 15 recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value 1s measured at
grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the share options and long-term
incentive awards

The charge te the income statement for the year was £nil (2016 £nil}

The Group has applied IFRS 2 to its active employee share-based payment arrangements from 1 January 2005 except for crrangements
granted before 7 Navember 2002

() Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")
Performance Share Awards under this scheme are aworded to [xecutive Directars and senior management of the Group

Awards

autstarding
't . ' as at ' .
31 Dec 2117 '

04 04 2014 450,668 - - {450 558} - - - - 0404201/
0308 2015 232 086 - - (12724) - 219,362 - - 03082018
1009 2015 11 867 - - - - n,8&7 - 10 09 2018
2903 2016 185,643 - - - - 185,643 - - 29032019
880 284 - - (463 4123 - 416,872 - -

(i)  Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc 2006 and 2016 Sharesave Schemes

Share options under this scheme are granted to UK based employees

e o Awards . o

" sutstanding . b
H P as gt ' ' "

, o [T . . . - © 3Dl 2017

1904 200 41800 1,284 - - - (1264) - - - 108 2016-31 0F 2017
1904 2012 34800 5178 - (5,178) - - - - - 0t 08 2017-31 01 2018
1904 2013 4 4800 26 533 - {1 446) (25087 - - - 0108 2016 3101 2017
1904 2013 44800 2,677 - - - - 2,677 - - Q0108 2018-31 01 2019
0605 2014 4 4600 350563 - (12 ?07) (6 415) 15,731 - - 0108 2017- 31 01 2018
06 0b 2014 4 4600 3431 - - (2 690} - 241 - - 01 08 2019-31 Q1 2020
14 04 20156 4 6900 36 410 - - (669} - 29.721 - - 0108 28-31 01 219
14 04 2005 4 6900 6 649 - (1 2/8} - 5,31 - 0108 2020-31 01 202
1204 2016 33000 1223 - {1969 {13 628) - 106,17 - - 01 08 2019-31 01 2020
1204 2016 3 3000 4545 - (3638) - 909 - - 01 08 2021- 31 0! 2027
104 20/ 36600 - 46,550 - (2,752) - 43,798 - - 0108 2020-31 01 2021
1104 2007 36600 - 1228 - 8359 - 2,887 - - 0108 2022-31 01 2023
23827 51776 (21 500) {64 531 (1.264) 208,732 - -

The weighted average share price ot the dates of exercise of share options in the year was £5 59 (2016 £4 26)
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The options cutstanding at the year-end have an exercise price in the range of £3 30 1o £4 69 (2016 £3 30 to £4 69) and a werghted
average contractuot life of 2 07 years (2016 2 40 yeors)

(iii) Annual Bonus Plan {(“ABP™)
Under the ABP. deferred share awards are granted annually to selected employees of the Groun Shares in Millennium & Copthorne Hotels
ple are transferred to participants as follows if they continue to be employed by the Group

» 2015 awards. at the enc of three years, and
« 2016 and 2017 owards. 25% after years one and two and 50% after three years

The foir values for the deferred share awards were determined using the market price of the shares ot the date of grant The share price for
deferred share awards granted 1n 2017 waos £4 62 (2016 weighted average share price of £4 39)

08092015 54 352 - - (0 278) - 46,074 - 08 09 2016

06112015 4325 - - - - 4,328 - - 06112018

1305 2016 60 939 (13 030 (12 065) 15,904 - - 13052017769

12 08 2016 2377 - (595) - - 1,782 - - 1208 2017/6/9

GO T 2006 977 - (745) - 732 . 091 2017/8/9

14 06 2017 - 55 750 - (8772) - 46,978 - - 1406 2008-9/20
124 970 55750 (i3 870) (31,055) - 135,795 -

(iv) Executive Share Plan (“ESP™)
The ESP was approved by the Company on 18 February 2014 to replace porticipation in the LTIP by semior executive management These
awards will vest over a three year period (25% after years one and two, 50% after three years), subject to the rules of the £5P

The farr values for the awards were determ:.ned vsing the market price of the shares at the date of grant The share price for awards
granted in 2017 waos £4 65 (2016 £413)

2903 2016 37 572 {6158) 4 950} 24,464 2903 20:7/8/9
1508 2017 - 56 638 - - - 56,838 - - 1508 2018/9/20

37 572 56 838 (8.158) (4 950 - 81,302 -
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Awards/optiohs granted
The following awards/options were granted in the current and comparative years

Executive Share Plan 1508 2017 - 14 210 4 65 - 457 100 - 17% -~
Executive Share Plan 1508 2017 - 14210 465 - 450 200 17%

Executive Share Plan 1508 2017 - 28 418 465 - 442 300 - 17% -
Sharesave Scheme (3 year) 1104 2017 - 46 550 447 366 105 33 26 0% 17% 02%
Sharesave Scheme (5 year) 11 04 2017 — 11 22& 447 366 109 53 24 0% 17% 0 4%
Deterred Share Awards 14 04 2017 - 55750 4 62 - 462 300 - 17% -
LTIP - EPS 2903 2016 111 386 413 394 300 - 1 6% -
LTiP — TSR (FTSE 250) 29Q3 20156 18 564 - 413 - 114 263 22 6% 16% a5%

15 5% to

LTIP — TSR {(hotels) 2903 2016 18 564 - 413 - 141 263 52 4% 1 6% 05%
LTIP - NAV 2903 2016 371729 - 413 - 394 300 16%

Executive Share Plan 2903 2016 - 15781 413 - 4 07 100 - 1 &% -
{xecutive Share Plan 2903 204 - 15 7861 413 400 200 - 18% -
Executive Share Plan 2903 2014 - 31 562 413 - 394 300 - 1 6% -
Sharesave Scheme (3 yecr) 1204 2016 - 125034 4 26 330 108 355 221% 15% 0 6%
Sharesave Scheme (Byear) 1204 2016 - 4,545 426 330 P21 555 23 1% 1 5% 09%
Deferred Snhare Awards 13435 2016 - 76,798 440 - 440 300 - - -
Deferred Share Awards 12 08 2016 - 2377 42 - 421 340 - - -
Deferred Snare Awards 0911 2016 - R 4 40 - 440 340 - - -

Measurement of fair value

The LTIP and Sharesave awards, which are subject to an EPS performance condition, were valued using the Black-Schales valuation

method The LTIP awards which are subject to o share price related performance condition (1 @ TSR] were valued using the Monte Carlo

valuation methed
The option pricing model involves six variables

¢ Exercise price

¢ Share price at grant

= Expected term

= Expected volatility of share pnce
* Risk-free interest rate

+ Expected dividend yield
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Balarce at 1]aruary 2017 1 10 1
Recogn sed during the year ] _ ]
Fareigr exchnange adjustments - m O]
Balance at 31 December 2017 2 9 n
Analysea as

Non-current provisicn - 9 g
Current prov.s on 2 - 2
Total provision 2 9 n

Provision far legal fees as ot 31 December 2017 of £2m (2016 £1m) relotes to disputes in severai hotels The Beijing indemmity of £9m {2016
F10m) relate to the tax indemnity to the farmer shareholders of Grang Miliennium Hotel Beiing in which the Group acquired an additiona)

A0% interest in 2010

25 Other non-current Lab:ilities

277
£m
Other Lab Uties 13 4
26 Deferred taoxation
Movements in deferred tax labilities and assets (prior to offsetting balances) dur ng the yeor cre as follows
at ar
Tymnuary 3 Gezempar
2017 2037
£m £m
Defarred tax liabilties
Property assets 283 08y {2y (5) 5 - {14) 23¢9
283 08) {2 (i5) 5 - (14) 239
Defarred tax assets
Tax losses (54} 17 {3) (18) [0 n {48)
Emp.oyee venefis? (&) 1 - - - - (4)
Otrers (3) ) 5 - - - . ]
63 7 7 (15 W 1 n &h
Net deferred tox liabilities 220 &) (33) 4 1 {3 188

fropery ossets cor prise piant orepeny and equipment lecse premium prepayr ent and investrent properticy

2 Erployee ber of 1s comonse def nea bereft pension scherres ard snare vased caymert arrangererts
Flay

Deferred tax assets ond licbilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght te set off current tax assets against current tax
liab lites and when deferred taxes relate to the same taxation avthority

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised i respect of the following items because it s not probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the Group can utiiise the benefits
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£m
Deductible temporary differences ] 1
Tax «wsses 2 -
Ad\ustments due to
- Deductible temporary differences in respect of prior yeor - !
— Tox losses in respect of prior year 15 14
8 15
The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation The tax [osses are subject to agreement by the tax
authonties and compliance with tax regulations 1n the respective countries In which certain subsidianies operate
The gross tax losses with expiry dotes are as follows
017
£m .
Expiry dates
- witn n 1tg Syears 14 8
— after 5 years & 2
- no expiry cate 76 &7
9& 77

At 31 December 2017, o deferred tax Llabilty of £13m (2016 £12m) relating to undistnbuted reserves of overseas subsidiaries and joint

ventures of £1.000m (2016 £958m) hos not been recognised because the Group determined thot the distnbutions will not be made and the

hatility will not be incurred in the foreseeable future

27 Trade and other payables

17 .
£m
Trade poyables 27 35
Other creditors including taxation and sacial securnty
~ Sociol security and other taxes 12 12
Value added tax and similar sales taxes 13 13
- Other creditors 3N 29
Accruals 100 0
Deferred income 20 19
Rental and other deposits L] 5
208 214
The Group’s exposure to currency and Liquidity nsks related to trade and other payables are disclosed in Note 22
28 Dividends
2017 s 207 ‘
pence N £m .r
Final ordinary dividend paid 5.46 434 18 14
Interim ordinary d videna po o 2.08 208 7 7
Total dividends pad 774 642 25 21
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Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the Directors declared the following final dividends, which have not been provided for

<m” : Pl

nencs £rm
tina. ordmary dividena 4.42 566 14 8
All dvdends paid during 2017 ard 2016 were in cash
29 Share capitsl
Balarce at 1 january 2017 324 735 565
Issue of ordirary snares on exercise of snare oot ons 250
Bolance at 31 December 2017 324,760,755

All of the share capital 1s eguity share capital Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to ime and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company All rights attached to the Company's shares held by the Group are
suspended urtl those shares are reissued

At the year end options over 208 732 ord'nary shares remain outstanding under the Sharesave Scheme and are exercisable between now
and 31 January 2023 at exercise prices between £3 30 ond £4 69 Awards made under the LTIP of 416,872 ordinary shares and ESP of

81 302 ordinary shares remain unvested and may potenticlly vest between 3 August 2018 and 29 March 2019 for awards under the LTIP
and between now and 15 August 2020 for awards under the ESP Lastly, 135 795 options under the ABP may potentiolly vest between

8 September 2018 and 14 June 2020

During the year Mitlenmum & Copthorne Hotels plc issued invitations to UK employees under the Sharesave Scheme to enter into o three-
year savings centract or a five-year savings contract with an option to purchase shares at an option price of £3 66 on expiry of the savings
contract

30 Reserves

Cash flow hedge reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the far value of cash flow instruments related to the
hedged transactions that have net yet occurred (net of tax)

Translation reserve
The transiation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financiol statements of foreign
operations, as well as from the translation of liabibties that hedge the Group s net investment in foreign operations (net of tax)

Treasury share reserve

An employee benefit trust established by the Group held 3 437 shares at 31 December 2017 (2016 4 3435) to satisfy the vesting of awards
under the LTIP During the year 23 221 shares (2016 mit shares) were purchased by the trust at £4 68 per share At 3t December 2017 the
cost of shares held by the trust was £16 575 (2016 £25.017), whilst the market volue of these shares at 31 December 2017 was £20 106 (2016
£20 004) Shares purchased by the trust are treated as treasury shares which are deducted from equity ard excluded from the calculations
of earnings per share
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31 Financial commitments

2017

£m
(a) Caonal commitments at the end of the financial year which are contracted but not provided for 70 37
The Group's share of the capital commitments of jcint ventures and associates 1s shown in Note 15
(b} Total commitments under non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable by the Group as follows
2017
£m
— tess than one year 12 12
— between one and five yeors 3s 37
- more than five yeors 1467 17
a7 220

() The Group ledases out certain of its properties under operating leases The future minimum lease rentals recevable by the Group under
non-cancellable leoses are as follows

017

£m
— less thon one year 35 35
- between one and hve years 105 108
- more than five years 93 59
233 202

Future minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable leases includes all future rentals recevable up to the period when those
leases expire or become cancellable

During the year ended 31 Decemier 2017, £50m (2016 F47m) was recognised as rental income in the income statement and £2m (2016 £2m})
in respect of repairs and maintenance was recognised as an expense in the Income statement relating to investment properties

32 Contingencies and subsequent events

In the course of its operations the Group 1s routinely exposed to potential babilities for elaims made by employees and controctual or tortious
cloims made by third parties No material losses are anticipated from such exposures There were no contingent licbilities or guarantees
cther than those arising in the ordinary course of business ana on these no material losses are anticipated The Group has insurance cover
up to certain imits for major risks on property and major claims in connection with legal labilities ansing in the course of iIts operations
Otherwise the Group generally carries its own risk The Group believes that the accruals and provisions carned on the balonce sheet are
sufficient to cover these risks

Other than the above transactions, there are no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosure
within these consolidated financial statements except for those stoted below

} On 11 January 2018, COLHT completed the divestment of two hotels in Australia, the Mercure Brisbane and bis Brisbane for A$77m
{£45m) to on independent third party

2 OnHanuary 2018, a partnership camprised of a subsidiory of FSGL together with subsidicres of CDL and another substantial
shareholder of FSGL acquired a 300-room hotel currently operated by a tenant as the 'Le Mendien Fronkfurt” situated in Frankfurt for
€79m (£70m). excluding certain transaction related expenses
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3 OnlFebruary 2018, FSGL together with four other co-investors acquired all the 1ssued shares of Hotelmaatschappy Rotterdam 8 V
which owns the 254-room Hilton Rotterdam Hotel in the Netherlands for €51m (£45m) Following the completion of the transaction,
FSGL owns 24 7% interest in the target company

4 OnlFebruary 2018 the Group acquired the 42-room The Waterfront Hetel in New Plymouth New Zealand., for a purchase
consideration of NZ$11m (E6m)

5 On7February 2018, the Group has provided an irrevocable undertaking to take up its full ertitlement of F5GL's proposed nghts 1ssue
of new perpetual convertible capital secunities for a total cost of $858m (£32m) and o proportion of the excess rights not subscribed by
other shareholders for o cost of up to 553Tm (E17m)

33 Reloted parties

Identity of related parties

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consclidation and are not disclosed in this note  Detanls of
transactions between the Group ond other related porties are disclosed below All transactions with related portres were entered Into in
the normal course of business and ot arm’s length

The Group has a related party relationsh:p with its joint ventures, associates and with ts Directors and executive officers

Transactions with ultimate holding company end other related companies

The Group has a related party relationship with certain subsidiaries of Hong Leong Investment Hoeldings Pte Ltd ("Hong Leong™) which s
the ultimate holding and controlling company of Miliennium & Copthorne Hotels plc and holds 65 2% (2016 64 99%) of the Company's
shares vic COL the intermediate holding company of the Group Duning tne year ended 31 December 2017, the Group bad the following
transactions with those subsidiaries

The Group deposited certain surplus cash with Hong Leong Finance Limited a subsidiary of Hong Leong, on normal commercial terms As
at 31 December 2017, £4m (2016 £4m) of cash was deposited with Hong Leong Finance Limited

Fees paid/payable by the Group to CDL and its other subsidiaries were £3m (2016 £2m) which included rentals paid for the Grand
Shanghai restaurant and Kings Cenire, property management fees for Tanglin Shopping Centre. charges for car parking, leasing
commission and professional services

Transactions with key management persennel
The beneficial interest of the Directors and their connected persons in the ordinary shares of the Compeny was 016% (2016 016%)

in addition to their solaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Directors and executive officers and contributes to @ post-
employment defined contribution plan depending on the date of commencement of employment The defined contribution plan does not
have a specified pension payoble on retirement and benefits are determined by the extent to which the mdvidual's fund can buy on
annuity In the market at retirement
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Executive officers also participate in the Group s share option programme

The key management perscnnel compensation is as follaws

Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Group s Sharesave schemes

017

Em
Snort-term employee benefts & b
Share-based payment - _
& [

Directors 1
Executives 5 5
] ]

34 Related undertakings

The full st of the Company’s related undertakings as ot 31 December 2017 are set out below

Arrcoa Fguity Interests Inc
Aircoa GP Corparation
Aircoa LLC

All Seasons Hotels & Resarls Limited

Anchoroge | akefrort Limited Partnership
Archyeld Limited

ATOS Holdirgs GmbH

Aurora inn Cperating Partnership L P
Avon Wyrheld Inn Ltd

Avon Wynheid LLC

Beiing Fortune Hatet Co Lta

Biltmore Place Operations Corp

Birkenhead Heldings Pty Ltd

Birkenhead Investments Pty Ltd

100%

100%

100%

6%

100%

100%

10G%

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

%

6%

Indirect subsid ary
Indirect subsid ary
Indirect subsidiary

Indirect subsrdiary

Indirect subsidiary
Indirect subsidiary
Direct subsidiary

Indirect subsidiary
Indirect subsidiary
Indirect subsidiary

Indirect subsid ary

Indirect subsidiory

Indirect subsidiary

Indirect subsid ary

UsSA
LUSA
USA

New Zealond

UsA

United Kingdom
Austria

USA

LSA

USA

Peaples
Republic

of Chno

USA

Australia

Australia

1345 28¢h Street

Boulder, CO 80302

1345 28tn Street

Bollder CO 80302

1345 26th Street

Boulder CO 80302

level 13 280 Queen Street
Aucxano 1010

New Zealand

1345 28th Street

Boulder €O 80302
Vieteria House Victor ¢ Road
Harley Surrey RH6 7AF
Schuthof /15t i 1010 Vierna
Austna

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302

1345 28%h Street

Boulder CO 80302

1345 281th Street

Boulder CC 80302
Bullding No 5 7 DongSantuan
Middle Roaa,

Chaoyang District

Bejing, PR China 100020
1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302

Suite 7B Zerith Residences
82-94 Darlinghurst

Road Potts Pornt,

Sydney 2011 Australia

Suite 78, Zentth Residences
82-94 Darlinghurst

Road Potts Point,

Syaney 2011, Australio

Holding Company
Hotel ownership
Holding Company

Darmant

Hotel owner

Hatel owner

and operotar
Investment hoding
Hotel ownership
Hotel ownership
Hotel owner

Hotel owner

and operator

Liquor licence hoider

Holding company

Property investment &
Maragement
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Bosterar Hotel Lirrited Portnerskip
Buffale Operating Partnership L ©
Buffuo RHAM Operat ng LLC

COL (New Yori) LLC

COL (NYL) Lirrited

Co frtertarrert 8 Leisure Pte t td

Dy Hespitaity Trusts
COL Hatels (Chelsec) L mied
CDOL Hotels (Korea) Ltd

CDL Hotels {Labuan} L m zed

CDL riotels (Malaysia) Sdn Bha

CDL Hotels (U K) Limited

CDL Hotels Holdirgs fapar Limited

CDL Hotels Holdings New Zeoland Limited

CDL Hotels Japan Pte Ltd

CDL trotels USA Irc

CDL Invesimenis New Zealand Limited

COL Lard New Zealand Limited

CDL Wes 45tn Street LLC

Chicaga Haotel Hoidings Inc

180%

100%

100%.

1C0%

100%

1C0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

40%

100%

50%

50%

100%

100%

ind rect subsidiary
‘ndirect subsidiary
ind rect subsidiary
:nd rect suksidiary
nd rect subsidiary

ind rect subsidiary

Assoc ated
wnaertokings
md rect subsichary

ind rect subsidiary

.nd rect subsidiary

ind rect subsidiary

Ind'rect subsidhary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Assocated
wngertakings

Ind rect subsidiary

ind rect subsicdiary

Ind rect subsidiary

Ind reet subsrdiary

Ind rect subsidiary

USA
Usa
Usa
USA
USA

Republic of
Sirgopare

Republic of
Srgopore
United K ngdom
Republic

of Korea
Malaysia

Malaysio

Unired K ngdom
Harg Kang
New Zegland
Republic of
Sirgapeore

LJSA

New Zealond

New Zealand

LISA

LISA

1345 28th Street
Boulder CO 80307
1345 28th Street
Boulder CO 80302
1345 28th Streer
Soulder CO 80302
1345 28th Street
Bouloer CO 80302
1345 78th Street
Boulaer CO 80302
34 Rob nson Road
#04-01 City House
Sirgapcre 068877

See note below

Victona House Victerio Road
Horley Surrey Rbé 7AF
Jung-gu Sewols 50 Seoul
Soutn Kerea 04637

T ara Labuar, Jalan

Tan ung Batu,

87000 FT Lobuan Maloysio
Level 8 Sympneny House
Pusat Bagengar Danal
|otar PJU 1AL

47301 Petalirg Joya

Selargor Darul Fhsan
Victeria House Victeria Rood
Horley, Surrey Rb6 /AF

2803 Creat Eagle Centre

23 Harbeur Road

Warchar Hong Kong

Level I3 280 Cueen Strect,
Aucklond 1010 New Zealand
36 Robinson Rood

#04-01 City House
Singapare 068877

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80307

Lovel 13 280 Cueen Street
Auckland 1010 New Zealand

Level 13 280 Cueen Street
Ayrkland 1010 New Zealand

1345 28th Street
Boulder €O 80302
1345 28th Streat
Raulder CO 80302

Hotel owner

Hotel ownershio
Hotel owner

Hotel owner
Investrent rolding

Provis.on of
rranagemert
serv ces and
rryvestment
holairg

See note below

Hotel owner
and opergtor
Hotel owner
and operotor
Hatel owner
ond operotor

Hotel owner
and operator

Hotel owner
and opercior
Investrrent holding

Investrrent holding

Investrent Folding

Hotel investment
haldirg
company
-rvestment and
property
ranaggemnent
company
Progerty
irvestmen; and
deve.opment

Hotel owner

Hotel ownershin
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Cinainnati § | Co 100% lndirect subsidiary USA 1345 28th Street Hotel owner
Boulder CO 80302
City Century Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsid-ary Republic of 34 Robinson Road Restaurateur
S ngavore #04-01 City House
Singapore 068877
Crty Elite Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robinson Road Restaurateur
Singapore #04-01 City House
Singapore 068877
City Hotels Pte Ltd 100% indirect subsid ary Republic of 34 Robinson Rood ttote! operator
S ngopore #04-01 City House
Singapore 068877
Context Securties L.mited 6% Indirect subsidiary New Zeclond Level 13 280 Queen Street Investment halding
Auc<lard 1010 New Zeoland
Copthorne (Nominges) Limited 100% Ingirect subsid ary United Kingdom  Victena Hause Victone Roag  Investment hoding
Horley Surrey RHE JAF
Copthoerne Aberdeen Limited A3% Indirect subsd ory United Kingdom  Victorio House Victona Roaa Hotel management
Horley Surrey RHS 7AF .
Copthorne Hotel (Birmingham) L mited 100% Indrect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victerna House Victor.o Road  Hotel owner
Heorley Surrey RHE 7AF and operator
Copthorne Hotel (Cardiff) Limited 100% Indirect subsid ary Unitec Kingdom  Victona House Victona Roas  Hotel owner
Haorley Surrey RHE 7AF and operator
Copthorne Hotel (E“fingnam Park) Limited 100% Indirect subsidiory Umited Kirgdom  Victonia House Victora Road  Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RH6 JAF and operator
Copthorne Haotel {Gotwick) Limited 100% Indirect subsid ary United Kingdom  Victono House Victorna Road  Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RH6 /AF and operator
Coptharne Hotel (Manchester) Limitea 100% Indirect subsid ary Uritea Kingdom  Victoria House Victono Road  Hotel owner
Harley Surrey RH& 7AF and operator
Capthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) Construction Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Urited Kingdom  Victona House Victoro Read  Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RH6 /AF and speratar
Copthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) L mited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victono House Victorio Roaa Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF and operater
Copthorne Hotel (Newcastle) Limited % Indirect subsidiary Unmitea Kingdom  Victorio House Victorio Roca,  Hotel awner
Horley Surrey RHé 7AF and operator
Copthorne Hotel (Plymouth) Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdam  Victorio House Victor o Rood  Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RHE JAF and operator
Copthorne Hoel (Slough) Limited 100% Indirect subsid ary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victoria Road  Hotel owner
Heorley Surrey RHé 7AF and operator
Caopthorne |otel Holdings Limited 100% Direct subsidiary Umtea Kingdom  Victona House, Victenia Read  Investment holding
Horley, Surrey RHb 7AF
Copthorne Hotels L-mited 100% Indwect subsidiary United Kingdorm  Victoria House Victora Road  Hotel investment
Horley Surrey RHb JAF nolding
Copthaorne Orchid Hatel Singapore Pte 1td 100% Indirect subsidiary Republic of 34 Robinson Rood Property owprer and
S ngooore #04 01 City House developer
Sngapore 068877
Coptherne Orchid Penang Sdn Bhd 100% indirect subsiciary Malaysia Levet 8 Symphony House Hotel owner
Pusat Dagangan Dana
1, Jatan PIU TA/46,
47301 Petaling Jaya,
Selanger Barul Ehsar
Diplomat Hotel Hold ng L mited 100% indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victona Road  Investment hoiding
Horley Surrey RH& 7AF
Durham Operating Partnership L P 100% Indirect subsid.ary UsA 1345 28th Street, Haotel ownership

Boulder, CO 80302
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Elte Hatet Management Services Pte Lid

Ferguson Hoter Manogemen: L ted

Sirst 2000 Lirrtec

First Sponsor Croun Lirrited

Five Stor Assurance Inc

Four Peaxs Maragement Company

Gateway Mo.aings Corporazar |

Gateway Hotel Holdings Inc

Gateway Regal Ho.dings LIC

Grond P.aza Hotel Corporation

Harbour Land Corgoaration

Haorbour View Hotel Pte Lto

Harrow Ertertainment Pte Ltd

Horg Leorg Ginza TMK

Haorg Leong Hotel Develepment L m ted

Hong Leang Hotels #te l 1d

Hong | eang internationa. Hotel
{5 ngapore) Ple Ltd

Haospitatity Group Lirmited

100%

50%

100%

36%

100%

100%

100%

T00%

100%

&6

100%

100%

0%

84%

100%

%

5%

ind rect subsidiary

Associoted
wndertakings

ind rect subsidiary

Assoc ated
wndertakings

Ird rect subsidiary
nd rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidhary
Ind rect susidiary

Ind rect subsidiary

Associoted

ungertokirgs

Ind rect subsidiary

Ingrect subsidiary

Indrect subsidiary

Indirect subsidiary

indrect subsidiary

nelrect subsdiary

ndirect subs:diary

Republic of
Sirgapere

Hong Kong

t1orng Kong

Coyman ls.ands

usA
USA
USA
USA
USA

Phiippines

Phitippines
Republic of
Sirgapore

Republic of
Sirgapore

Japan

lwan

Cayman 's.onas

Repuklic of

Singapore

New Zealand

36 Rob rson Road
#04 01 City
House Singapore 0686877

Un.t 606 61k F oor

Al ance Buidirg,

133 Cennaougnt Road
Centra. HergKorg
2803 Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Rood
Woanchar Hong Korg
190 Elgir Avenue

George Town

KY1-9005 Grand Cayman
Caymran is.anas

1401 Eye St NwW Suite 660
Washirgron DC 20005
1345 28th Steeet

Boulaer CO 80307

1345 28th Streat

Boudlaer, CO 80302

1345 28th Street

Boulger, CO 80302

1345 76th Street

Boulger CO 80202

10 Fleor Hertage Hotei Man la
EDSA corner Roxas Boulevard

Pasay C.ty Phoppires 1300

!0Flcor tiertage tlotel Man.la
EDSA corner Roxas Boulevard

Fasoy City Phuppires 1300
36 Rooinson Rond

#04-01 City House
Sirgopore 06887/

36 Rowoinson Road

#04-01 City Mouse
Sirgapore 068677

4-1 Niharbask 1-chome
Cruo ka,

Tokyo taprr

2 Song Shou Roaa

Xy [istrict

Ta per 101 Tamwar

PO Box 309 Ugiord House
Grand Coyman KY1-1104
Coyror lslaray

36 Roonsen Road

#04-01 C ty House
Sirgopore (68877

Level 13 280 Queen Street

Auckland 101G New Zealund

Hotel maragement
consu.tancy services

Investrrent holding

Investrrent halding

tnvestrrent Howing

Cantive irsurarce
compary

Arizorc congom nium
management
Hold ng companry
Hotel ownershio
Hotel owner

ond cperator
Heotel owner

ond operator

ard irvesiment
holdirg

carmpany

{and owner

Hzotel operator

Irvestment Folding

Property owner

Haotel owner

and operator

Inyestment kolding
cemrpany

Investrrent Falding

Holding company
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Hosp tality Hold'ngs Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsid ary Republic of 3& Rebinson Read tnvestment holding
Sngaopore #04 O City House company
Singapore 068877
Hosortahty Leases Limited 76% Indirect subsid ary New Zealana Level 13 280 Queen Street Lessee company
Auc<lard 1010 New Zeowand
Hospralty Services Limited 76% indirect subsidiary New Zeawand Level 13, 260 Queen Street, Hotel aperation/
Auckland 1010 New Zeo.ona mgnagement
Hosp tolity Ventures Pte Lra 100% Indirect subsid ary Republic of 36 Robinsan Read Investment hoiding
Singapore #04-01 City House
Singopare 0686877
Hote. Liverpoal L mited 100% Indirect subsid ary United Kingdom  Victana Hause, Victor a Roaa Property etting
Horley Surrey RHG JAF
Hotel Liverpool Management Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Unitea Kingdom  Victona House Victoria Read  Operoting company
Horley Surrey RH6 7AF
Hatelcorp New Zealand Pty Ltd 7&% Indirect subsid ory Austraia Suite /B Zenith Residences Holdng company
82-94 Darlinghurst
Reod Potts Point
Sydney 2011, Australa
International Design Link Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsid ary Republic of 36 Robinson Road Property project
Sngapore #04-01 City House design
Singapore 066877 consultancy services
{currently dormant)
KIN Holdings L mired 7% Indirect subsidiary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Street Holding company
Aucklana 1010 New Feciona
¥ings Tanglin Shepping Pte Lid 100% Indirect subsid'ary Republic of 38 Robinson Road Property owner
Sihgaopore #04 0] City House
Singapere 068877
Kingsgate Holdings Pty Ltd 6% Indirect subsidary Australia Surte 788, Zerith Residences tlolding corrpany
82-9d Darunghurst
Road, Potts Point,
Syaney 2011 Australia
Kingsgote Hotel Pty Ltd 5% Indirect subsidiary Agstralia Surte 7B, Zenith Residences Dormant
82-94 Darunghurst
Road, Patts Paint
Sydney 2011 Australia
Kingsgate Hotels and Resarts Limited 6% Indirect subsidiary New Zeglaro Lovel 13 280 Queen Streat Franch.se holder
Auckland 1010 New Zec.and  {Kingsgate)
Kingsgate Hotels L mited 6% Indirect subsidiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Dormant
Aucklang 1010 New Zeclona
Kingsgate Internatrenal Carporation Limited 8% Indirect subbsidigry New Zeciwaro Level 13 280 Queen Street Investrment hoding
Auckland 1010 New Zealand
Kingsgate Investments Pty Ltd %% Indirect subsidiary Austrolic Sutte 7B, Zenith Residences., Investment campany
82-94 Do-lirghurst
Road. Potts Point,
Sydney 2011 Australio
Lakesiae Operatng Partnership L P 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 1345 28th Street Hotel ownership
Boulder CO 80302
London Brtanma Hotel Lurited 100% Indtrect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victaria House, Victor.a Roaa,  Hotel owner
Harley Surrey RHG 7AF and operalor
London Tara Hotel Limited 100% indirect subsid'ary Unitea Kingdam  Victona House, VictenaRoad  Hotel owner
Horley Surrey RH& 7AF and operator
M&C Asia Fingnce (UK) Limited 160% Direct subsidiory Urited Kingdom  Victetia House, Victoria Read  Finance company

Heriey, Surrey RH6 ZAF
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MEC Asia Hold ngs (UK) Limitec

M & C(CB) Limitea

MEC(CD)Limtea

M & C Management Services {LUSA) Inc
M CNZ Limiteo

M & C Reservanors Services Limited

M&C Bus ness Trust Maragerrert Limitea

M&C Coloroac | totel Corporatior
M&C Crescen: Corporatior

M&C Crescent Inzerests, LLC

M&C Finance (1) Limited

M&C Hold ngs {Tnaillard) Lid

M&iC Hold ngs Deloware Partnersh.p
MaC Holdings LLC

MEC Hotel Erterprises (Asia) imited

MeC Hotel Interests 'nc

M&C Heotel Investments Pte Ltd

M&C Hotels Frarce Managerrert SARL
M&C Hotels France SAS

MaC Hotels Holairgs Juvan Pte ctd

M&C Hotels Holdings Lirted

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0%

100%

196%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Direct subsicdiary

Indrect sulbsichary
Ind rect sLibsidiary
Indirect sckesidiary
Ind rect subsidiary

Ind rect subs:.chary

Indirect subs.ciary

Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subs:diary
indrrect subsidiary
ind rect subsdiary

indirect subsichary

ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary

Ind rect supsidiary

Ird rect subsiiary

Ind rect subsidiary

Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsicdhary

Ind rect subsichary

Direct suosideary

United K ngdom
United K.ngdorr
United K ngdorr
USA

Unitea K ngdom

Urited K ngdom

Republic of
Singopere

LISA
Usa
UsA

United K ngdom

Tnadang
UsSA

USA

Hang Keng
USA
Republic of

Sir gapare
Fraree
France

Rep.blic of
Sirgapare

Linited K ngdom

V ctorig House Victona Read
Haoriey Surrey RHS 7AF
V ctoria House Victonao Roao
Horley Surrey RH& JAF

V ctorio House Victor o Roaag,

Horiey Surrey R-16 JAF

1345 28th Street

Bouloer CO 80302

V clong House Victero Road
Horley Surrey RH& 7AF
Vetana House Victer.@ Read
Horley Surrey RHES 7AF

36 Roo nscn Road

#04-01 City House
Sirgapcre 068877

1345 28th Street

Boulaer CO 80302

1345 28th Street

Boulaer CO 80402

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302

V ctona ouse Victeria Road
Horley Surrey RHb 7AF

25 Whe Group Tower

i 1n Fleor SonRugsa
Sukhumvit 42 Road Kwaeng
Phrakancng Khet
Klongtoey Bangkek

1010 Tharana

1345 28tk Street

Boulder CO 80302

1345 28th Street,

Boulder CO 80302

2803 Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Road Wancha:
Hong Kong

1345 28th Street,

Boulaer CO 80302

36 Rooinson Read

#04-01 City House
Sirgapore 068877

12 Boulevard Haussmarr
5009 Pans Frarce

12 Baulevard Houssmarn
15009 Pans trarce

36 Rowmson Reud

#04-01 City House
Sirgapare 068877

V etong Heuse Victoria Road
Horley Surrey RHG AR

nvestrrent bolding
investrrent company
investment kolding
Managemert services
comrpany

Hold ng company
Provider of reservotion
services to hotel
owners

ard operators
Provision of

property ‘und
managemen: serv.ces
Hold ng compony
Investrment Folding
Progerty owner
Firance company
Investrrent

hola:rg and
hote. management

Property investmens
Hald ng company
Investrent Folding
Hotel maragement

SCrv Ces Companry

Investrent holding

Managemert
company
Hotel owner

Investrrent holding

Investirent rolding
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MaC Hotels Hold'ngs USA Limited 100% Direct subsidiary Caymanislands PO Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman,
K¥1-104 Cayman Islands
M&C Hotels jopan Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robinson Road
Singapore #04 01 City House
Singapaore 0686877
M&C Hotels Partnership France SNC 100% Indirect subsidiary France 12 Boulevord Haussmann
75009 Pans France
M&C Hospitaaty Ho.dings (Asia) Limited 100% Indirect subsid ary Hong Korg 2803 Graat Eagle Centre
23 Horbour Road Wanchal,
Hang Karg
M&C Hospitalty International Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Hong Kong 2803 Great Lagle Cenire
23 Haroour Road Wancha
Hang Xang
M&C Managemenrt Ho.dings Lim tedt 100% Direct subsidiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victor a Road
Horley Surrey RH& /AF
MEC REIT Management | mred 100% Indrrect subsid ary Republic of 36 Robinson Rood
S ngaoore #04-01 Cty House
5 ngapore 068877
M&C New York (Tirres Square), LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 1345 26th Street
Boulder, CO 80302
M&C New York Finonce (UK) Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victerna House Victeric Road
Harley, Surrey RHE JAF
M&aC New York (Times Square) EAT 1 LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary usa 1345 28tn Street
Boulder CO 60302
MaC Singapare Firance (JK) Limited 100% Direct subsidiary Unites Kingdom  Victoria House Victorna Road
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
MeC Singapore Holdings (UK) Limited 100% Direct subsidiary Umted Kingdom  Victona House Victor a Roaa
Hortey Surrey RHG 7AF
MeCarmick Raneh Operating Partrership L P 100% Indirect subsidiary usa 1345 28th Street
Boulder CG 80302
MHM e 100% Indirect subsid-ary USA 1345 28tn Street
Boulder <O 80307
Millenmium Bostoruan ine 100% Indirect subisid ary UsA 1345 28tn Street,
Boulder CO 80302
Millermum & Copthorne (Austrian Holdings) Limited  130% Direct subsidiary Unitea Kingdom  Victoria House, Victor a Road
Horley Surrey RHS JAF
Millesimum & Copthorne (lersey Holdings) Lirrited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victana House Victor a Road,
Horley Surrey RH& 7AF
Milenmiym & Copthorne Hotel Holdings 100% Indirect subsidiary Hang Kong 2803 Great Luyle Centre,
(Flong Kong) Limted 23 Harbour Road Wonchai
Hong Kong
Millenmurm & Coptnarne Haotels (Hong Kong) Limited  100% Indirect subsidiary Hong Korg 2803 Greot Eag.e Centre
23 Harbour Road, Wancha)
Hong Keng
Miltennium & Copthorne Hotels Limited 6% Indirect subsidiary New Zea.ard Level 13 280 Queen Street
Auckland 1010 New Zealand
Millermium & Copthorne Hotels 100% indirect subsid ary Peoples #1205, No 511 Wei Hoi Rood
Monagement (Shanghar} Limited Republic Shangha 200041 PR Ching

of China

Investment holding

Investment hoiding

lnvestment ho.ding

Investment holding

Investment holding

investment holding

REIT investmenrt
mandgement services

Investment holding
Finance company
Hotel owner
Finance company
Investment hoding
Hotel ownership
Hotel management
Holding company
Investment holding
Holding company
nvestment gnd
development of
hotels ond hotel
management
Prawision of hate.
management and
consultancy services

Name-holding

Hotel management



Srategic Report Governance

Financial statements

Further informatian

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc
Annval Reoar! & Accounts 2017

145

Millenniurr & Copthorne Hotels
New Zeoland Limted

Millermurr & Captherne Hotels Pty Lid

Millenniur & Copthnerne Internaticna, Lim tea

Millernmurr & Copthorne Persion Trustee L m ted

Millerniurr & Capthorne Share Trustees Lir ted
Millerniur CDG Pons SAS

Millerniur Hotel Hold ngs EMEA L m ted
Millerniur Hotels & Rescris Services Limitea
Millennium Hotels turope Hola.rgs Lim:ited
Millenmiur Hotels stoy Hold ngs Sl
Millennmium Hotels Lim ted

Millennrum Hotels Polace Marogement Srl
Mulennum Hotels Property Sri

Milenn:um Hotels (West Leraor) Lirited
Milenr ur Hotels (West Lorador)
Maragemrent 'mted

Milenmiurm Hotels Lordor Limited
Miilenrwm Opera Paris SAS

New Urity doldings Ltd

New Yors Sign LLC

Newbury Investmerts Pre Lid

Fark Plaza Hotel Corporation

6%

6%

100%

'00%

100%

100%

100%

Q0%

100%

00%

100%

00%

0%

100%

0%

100%

106%

50%

50%

100%

100%

Ind rect subsidiary

ind rect subsidiary

Ind rect subsidicry

Directsuosidiary

Directsupsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Direct supsidiary
Ird rect subsidiary
Direct suosidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Ind rect subsidiary
Direct subsidary
Ind rect subsidiary
Assocrated
ungertakings

Assoc ated
unaertak ngs

Ind rect subsidiary

Ind rect subsidhary

New Zealand

Australia

Republic of
S.irgopore

United K rgdom

United K ngdem
Frarce

Urnited K ngdem
United K ngdom
United K ngdom
Itaty

Uniied K ngdom
Italy

Italy

United K ngdem
Urnited K ngdom
United K ngdam
France

Bv!

LISA

Republic of
S rgopore

LISA

Level 13, 280 Cueen Street
Auckland 1010 New Zeaiand

Suite 7B Zen:r Residences
82 94 Darunghu-st

Rood Potts Pont

Sydney 2011 Austrol g

36 Roo'nser Rood

#04-01 City t fouse

Srgopore 068877

V ctoria Hause Victoria Road
Hortey Surrey Rt 16 7AF

V ctoria House Victernia Road
Harwey Surrey RH& 7AF

2 Aliée du Verger 95700
Raissy France

V ctoria House Victoria Road
Horley Surrey RH6 7AF

V ctorna House Victornia Road
Hartey Surrey RH6 JAF

V ctoria House Victoria Road
Harley, Surrey RHS 7AF

Vo Vitter g Vereto n 70
Roma 00187 Itawy

V gtora House V.ctoria Road
Horley Surrey RH& JAF

Vo Vittora Veneto n 70
Romg 00187 laly

Va Vittor a Veneo n 70
Roma 00187 lawy

V ctoria House Victona Road
Harley Surrey RHS 7AF

Vctoria House Victona Road,

Horley Surrey RHG JAF

V ctona House Victerna Road
Harley Surrey RHG JAF

12 Boulevard Haussmarr
75009 Paris Frarce

PO Box 144 Rogd Town
Tortols Botish Mirgin Is.ands
1345 28th Street

Bouloer CO 60302

36 Row nsen Road
#04 01 City Hoose
Sirgupuore C68877
1345 28th Street
Bouwer CG 80302

Heotei investment
kolairg
CC”‘pf]nY

Name noldirg

Hotels and resorts
ranagemen?t

Pension trust acting
or benalf of compary
trustees

Snare trustee
company

Hetel aneraror
Investirent heldirg
Management contract
holairg company
Investment Folding
Holding compaony
tnvestrrent Folding
Hotel goera.or
Praperty owner
Property letting
totel voerator
'nvestment holding
Hotel coeratar
Investiment bolding
To lease

ranage, ara
otherwise deal
win cerlon
advertising
sighage space

at the Novotel hate,
Investrrent balding

Helding ecmpony
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Prestons Rood Lim ted 13% Indirect Associate New Zealord 167 Mair North Road Serv ce providet
Christchurch 8140
New Zea.and
PT Millenniurm Hotels & Resorts 100% indirect subsid ary Indanes a jawan Fochrudin 3 Maragement services
Joxarta 10250
Indonesia
PT Miliennium Sir h jakarta Hotel 100% Indirect subsidiary inrdonesio Jalen Fachruain 3 Hotel owner
Jakarta 10250
Indonesia
QINZ (Anzac Avenue) | imied 6% Indirect subsidary New Zea.ord Leve! 13, 280 Queen Street Hotel owner
Aucklard 1010, New Zealana
QINZ Holaings (New Zealand) Limitea 6% Indirect subsidiary New Zeolara Level 13 280 Queen Street Holding company
Aucxlana 1010 New Zealand
Quantum Lirmited 6% Indirect subsid ary New Zeaana Levet 13, 280 Queen Street Holding corrpany
Avckland 1010 New Zeaiard
Regal Grand Holdings Corooraton | 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 1345 28th Street Holding company
Boulder CO 80302
Regal Harvest House LP 100% indirect subsid ary USA 1345 281 Street Hotet ownership
Boulder CO 80302
Regal Hotel Management Inc 160% Indirect subsidwary UsA 1345 28th Street iHold g cempany
Boulder CO 802302
Repuklic Hotels & Resarts Limitea 100% Indirect subsid ary Republic of 36 Robinson Road Hatel operator ond
S ngopore #04 O City House investment holding
Singapore 068877 company
Republic Hotels Suzhou Pte Lta 100% Indirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Rabinson Road Dormant
Singapore #04 U1 City House
Singapore 068877
Republic lcoric Hotel Pre Ltd 100% indirect subsid ary Republic of 36 Robinson Road Hotel operator
Singapare #04-01 City House
S ngapore 068877
RHH Operating LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary UsA 1345 28th Street, Hatel owner
Boulder, CO 80302
RHI Boston Hold ngs Corparation 100% indirect subsid ory USA 1345 28th Street Holding company
Boulder, CO 80302
RH! RBoston Hold 'ngs Corporation i 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 1345 28th Street Holding company
Boulder CO 80302
RtM Aurora LLC 100% Indirect subsid:ary usa 1345 28th Street Hotel ownership
Boulder, CC 80302
RHM Holdings Corporotion | 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 13245 28th Street Holding company
Boulder CO 80302
RHM Management LLC 100% Indirect subsid.ary LISA 1345 28th Street, Hotel ownership
Boulder CC 80302
RHM Ranch LLC 100% indirect subsid ary USA 1345 28tn Street Hotel owner
Boulder CO 80302
RHM Wynheld LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary Usa 1345 28th Street, Hotel ownership
Boulder CG 80302
RHM-88 LLC 100% Indirect subsid'ary USA 1345 28tn Street Hotel owner
Boulder, CC 80302 and operator
R chfield Holdings Corporction | 100% Indirect subsidiary UsA 1345 28th Street Holding company
Boulder CO 80302
Richheld Heldings Corporation |l 100% indirect subsid ary USA 1345 28tn Street Holding company

Boulder CC 80302
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Richfeld Holdngs Inc

Roga Investmerts Pte L

Rogo Reaty Corporation

5§ Resiaurant Corporation

St {ouss Operatirg Inc

Sunnyvale Partners Lid

Tora Hotels Deutschtand Gerkts

the Philppina Fund L m ted

TOSCAP Limited

Trimurx Hatet Coroorat on
WHE Biltrore LLC

WHSE Corporation
Wynfield GP Corporation
Wynhield One Ltd

Zatno Pre Ltd

Z llon Heldings Limited

100%

100%

24%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

a0%

100%

100%,

100%

100%

Ind rect subsichary

Indrrect subsidiary

Assoc ated
unoertokings

Ind.rect subsichary

Ind rect subsidrary

Ind.rect subsidiary

Ind rect subs d:ary

Indrrect subsidiary

Ind rect subsichary

Indirect subsidiary
Indirect subsichary
tndirect subsidiory
Indirect subsidiary
indirect subsidiory

'ndirect subsidiory

ndirect subsichary

LSA

Repoklic of
Sirgapere

Phitippines

ULSA
USA
USA

Germary

Bermuda

Republic of
Sirgapaore

USA
USA
USA
USA
USA

Republic of
Singapcre

Barboaos

1345 28th Street

Boulger CO 80307

36 Rop nsen Road

#04 01 City House

Sirgapcre 068877

16 Floor Hentage Hatel Man la
£DSA carner Raoxas Beulevara
Pasay City Phiipprres 1300
1345 28th Street

Boulaer CO 680302

1345 28th Street

Boulaer CO 80302

1345 26th Street

Roulder CO 80302
Reqistered atire

Traae cegister at

the loca caut of

Hannover with the
legatform of Private im:ted
comoany (nurber HRB 209133)
CroCosar Corporate Services
lirited Cumoperland House
G9tn Floor 1V ctania Street
ftamiten FHM 11 Bermuda
36 Roonson Rood

#04-01 City House
Singapere 068877

1345 28th Street

Boulaer, CO 60302

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302

1345 28th Street

Boutaer CO 80302

1345 28th Street

Boulaer, CO 80302

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302

36 Rooinsan Rood

#04-0) City House
Sirgapore 06887/

Tae Phoer x Centre
George Street

Bellev lle, St Michaet
Barbados

Held ng company

investment holding

Rea. estaie owner

—iquor hicense holder

Darmant

Hgtel ownershio
Hotel.nvestmeant

holaing
corrpany

investrrent Folding

Investrrent Folding

Hotel owner

and operator
Hotel owner

and operator
Holding company
Hotel ownership

Hoid ng company

Irvestment koldirg

Investrrent Falding

COL “osp ta iy Trusis s © staolee growp compr s rg (DL Josptonty Reol bstote avestmert Trust { 0 Ro § ) ¢ real estate investrert rrust anc COL Huspilality Bus ness st HB1Y g buaress

trust o REIT nos ar investn en: strotegy of nvesting directiy or G recty n o awers hed portfol o of reome proaucing real estale wh cn s prm aney ved “or nose ‘anly ard ‘or Foso ta. 'y rewated
purcoses wrether wholly or part ally ard reau estate related gsscts r rewgtior to e foregorg =37 14 0 bus ness trust wnich was activated r Secemoer 20 3 Ir oddit or to s furct or as a moster

assee HAT moy a.so unaertoke certa r raspifulity ard roso 1a'ly realed geve.opr ent projects cguisit ons ard avesT orts whick may not ce sanaoe for HERL

The regratered office aodress o

MBC RF'" Managomert Lim ea Yarager af H 7#F. 7 ana MEC Suaress Trust Yarogemert | mited Trustee Marager o =B7 15 36 Robinsen Reod #04 C1 City Howse 5 rgapore 06887/ As discloseo
n Note 3 to tre corsolidated Tnarcal s atemens e Growp has conciuded trar wraer ITRSI0 tnas ac acto certro, over LB Hosotobty Trosre

7 Toe Grown nas assessea he classfoa or of I puestrrents e et Soar sor Group

recedd Led New Jniy o dras imted naccoraaece weh IFRSC ara corcl ded that 2eaces noet hawe rontro
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AP S

Exemption from stotutory oudit

TR

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consclidated by the Group. where the Directors hove elected to toke the exemption from
having an audit of their financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 This exemtion s taken in accordance with Companies

Act s47%A

Archyield Limited (1747079)

CDL Hotels (Chelsea) Limited (2845022)

CDL Hotels (U K ) Linited {2729520)

Copthorne Hotel (Birmingham) Limited (1816493}
Copthorne Hotel (Cardiff) Limited (2411296)
Copthorne Hotel (Effingham Park) Lirited (1423841)
Copthorne Hotel (Gatwick) Limited (994968)
Copthorne Hotel (Manchester) Limited (1855800)
Capthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) Canstruction Lirmited (2649347
Copthorne Hotel (Merry Hill) Limited (2590620)
Copthorne Hotel (Plymouth) Limited (3253120)
Copthorne Hotel (Slough) Limited (2300992)
Copthorne (Nominees) Limited (2574042)

Diplomat Hotel Holding Limited (1927463)

Hotel Liverpool Limited (9636541)

Hotel Liverpool Mancgement Limited (9638468)
London Britanmia Hotel Limited (744379)

London Tara Hotel Limited (1005559)

M&C Asia Finance (UK) Limited (8391037)

M&C Asia Holdings (UK) Limited (8382946)

Each company's registered number is shown in brackets after its name

M&C (CB) Limited (3846711)

ME&C (CD) Limited (3846704)

M&C Finance (1) Limited (6783896)

ME&C Hotels Holdings Limited (4407581)

M&C Management Holdings Limited (5832248)

M&C New York Finance (UK) Limited (9060415)

MBC NZ Limited (5159722)

ME&C Singapore Finance (UK) Limited (8391052)

M&C Singapore Holdings (UK} Limted {8382985)

Milenmum & Copthorne (Austrian Holdings) Limited (3757378)
Miftennium & Copthorne (Jersey Holdings) Limited (5846574)
Millennium & Copthorne Pension Trustee Limited (6662791}
Millennium & Copthorne Share Trustees Limited (332099Q)
Millennium Hotet Holdings EMEA Limited (4592877)
Millenmum Hatels Limited (3141048)

Millennium Hotels Europe Moldings Limited {8844747)
Millennium Hotels London Limited {3691885)

Millennium Hotels (West London) Limited {8599282)
Millennium Hotels (West Landon) Management Limited (8891908)
Midlennium Hotels & Resorts Services Limited (4601112)
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meig ey NOT
2T
Millermiur & Copthorre Hotels New Zea.and
Limited { MCHNZ 3} New Zealand Hotel nvestment holding company 24% 25%
COL hosptabity Trusts { CDLHT ) Singopore Reol estate mnvastrmert trust 63% 63%

The follewing 1s summansed financial information for MCHNZ and CDLHT, prepared 'n accordanrce with local accounting standards The
information is before inter-company eliminations with other companies in the Group

s PRl

£n £
Revenve 103 &8 15 96
Praft ofter tax 30 26 72 25
Proft attributable to NCI 7 n 46 16
Orther compretersive ncome 37 33 4 G
Total comprehensive income &7 59 75 36
Total comorebersive ncomre attributoble te NCI 8 5 48 23
Current assets 93 80 106 3]
Non-current assets 344 284 1,487 1362
Curren: Ligbilities (5) a9 (85) 20)
Non-current uabilities 72 6 (381 (535)
Net gssets 350 283 1,027 B66
Net assets attributable to NCI 39 32 &47 546
Cash nflow fram cperatirg activities 29 36 78 71
Caosh outflow from investing activinies o) Z9 {151} 48]
Cush {outflow)/irflow from Fnancing detivites | [{o)] 81 (56)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9 i 8 5
Dwdenaos paid 1o NCl dunng tne year 2 ! 38 33

"lncleaes r case ows from inancirg go v ties

36 Assets held for sale

Or 22 December 2017, the H-REIT Group had entered into o sale and purchase ogreement to sell Mercure Brisbone and lbis Brisbane
Accordingly. these investment properties with o total carrying value of A$71m (E4im) have been clossified as assets held for sale in the

statement of financial positor as at 31 December 2017 The sale of the properties was completed in January 2018 (Note 32)
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COMPANY STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017

2017
i Em

Non-current ossets
Property plant and equipment (£} 2 3
Investmerts and other inancial assets (D] 1,970 1979
Deferred tax asset 2 2

1,974 1984
Current assats
Amounts owed by subsidiary urdertakings fa.ling due within one year 41 19
Other receivables [ 1
Cash and cash equivalents n 21

58 41

Cther cutrent liabilities <) (93) (163)
Net current babilitigs {35) 122)
Other non-current liabilities (H) (540) (505)
Net assets 1,399 1357
Equity
Called up share capital 0] 97 97
Share premium 843 843
Retained earnings 443 421
Treasury share reserve (4) )
Total equity 1,399 135/

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman

Registered No 3004377
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Balarce at | january 2016 9/ 843 4 398 1334
Profs - - - 8l 51
Other comprekersive expense - - N €]
Totol comorehersive ncome - - 44 44

Share-basea payment t-ansactiors (ret of tax) - - -

Dvideras - - - 20 [ed)]

Balonce at 31 December 2016 97 843 {4) 421 1,357
Bdlance at 1 january 2017 97 843 (4) 421 1,357
Proft - - - 64 b4
QOther compbrerersive expense - - - 4 4
Total comaorehersive ncomre - - - 68 48
Share-based payment transactiors (ret of tax) - - - O] 0}
Dwvidends - - - (25) (25)
Bal at 310 ber 2617 97 843 [€:)] 463 1,399

The notes on pages 152 to 153 are an integrot part of these Company's financia: statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Authorisation of financiat statements and statement of compliance with FRS 101

The parent company financial statements of Millenmium and Copthorne Hotels ple ("the Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2017
were authorised for issue by the board of Directers and signed on its behalf on 28 March 2018 The Company 1s incorporated and
demiciled in England end Wales The Company's ordinary shares are traded cn the London Stock Exchange

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financiol Reporting Stondord 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101)
The financial stotements are prepared under the historical cost convention

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2005, the income statement of the Company 15 not presented as part of the financial
statements

The Company's results are included in the consolidated finencial statements of Millenmum and Copthorne Hotels ple which are available
froam the Group's website www millenniumhotels com

The accounting palicies which follow set out those policies which apply in preporing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 The finagncial statements are prepared in Sterling and are rounded to the nearest million except when otherwise
indicated

B Accounting policies

The parent company financial stotements of Millennium and Copthorne Hotels ple have been prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and Finanaal Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ('FRS 101, which was first applied in 2015 ofter notifying
shareholders of the proposed change FRS 101 enables the financial statements of the parent company to be prepored in accordance with
EU-adopted IFRS but with certain disclosure exemptions The main areas of reduced disclosure ore i respect of equity settled share based
payments, financial instruments, the cash flow statement, end related party transactions with Group companies

The Company early adopted FRS 101 amendments before the effective date of 1 January 2016 regarding the presentation of financiat
statements in compliance with the IAS 1 formot

The accounting policies adopted for the parent company are otherwise consistent with those used for the Group which are set out on
pages 88 to 95

C Dividends
Details of dividends paid and propased in the current and prior year are given in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

D Profit attributable to members of the porent company
The profit dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 1s £64m (2016 £51m}

E Property, plant and equipment

Cost ot 1 January 2017 3 _ 3
Depreaiation U] - 0]

Cost at 31 December 2017 2 - 2
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F Investments and other Ainoncial assets

Cost ond net book value at1]anuary 2017 1903 &9 7 1.579
Adaitions 3 - - 3
Foreign excharge adjustnents an 0 - (12)
Cost and net book value at 31 December 2017 1,895 48 7 1,970

There were no prowssicns made aganst investments in subsidiary undertakings Reductions and acgditions relate to internal restructuring
transactions

The Company s subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2017 are listed 'n Note 34 to the consolidated financ.al statements

G Other current iabilities

Bank leans ond overarafts 64 52
Amounts owed to subsid ory yrdertasngs 23 107
Otke- payakles 3 2
Aceruals and geferred income 3 2

23 163

H  Other non-current habilities

P

fm
Bank lcans 45 80
Bords payaole 149 163
Amounts owed to subsidiary urderta<irgs 335 247
Net erployee defined beneft labilities " 15
540 505

Qther non-current ligbilities are repayable as follows -

FRIE

£m
Betweer one and two years n al
Betweer 'wo and five yeors 219 424
540 508

f Share caprtal
Details of the Company's share capital are given in Note 29 to the consoldated finoncial statements

i Related parties
For the year ended 31 December 2017, fees paid/payable by the Company to Hong Leong Management Services. ¢ subsidiary of Hong
L eong Investment Hoidings Pte Ltd amounted to Enil (2016 Enil) At 31 December 2017 £rul (2016 Enil) of fees payabie was outstanding
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GROUP FINANCIAL RECORD

2017 .
Em

Income statement
Revenuc 1,008 Q926 847 826 1.064
Operating proft 147 107 nz2 195 294
Net Anonce expense (20) (25) {20 an 3)
Income tox credit/(expense) 12 Qo) (12} (37 30y
Frofit for the year 199 98 97 151 265
Cash flow
Cash gererated from operations 230 2720 220 30 204
Statement of financial position
Praperty, plan: eguipment ana iease premium prepayment 3,232 3345 2858 283 2457
Investmert properties 577 534 506 479 414
nvestmert and laans in joint ventures and assoc ates 324 320 265 235 203
Loans due from associate - - - - -
Other inareial assets - - 5 5
Non-current assets 4133 4199 3619 3570 3079
Current assets excluding cash 228 195 163 182 259
Net debt (650) feins) (605) (525) 215
Deterred tax liabulties Qes) {2203 {210} {220 (208)
Prowvisions and other Liabilities (274) (297) (255) 2m (236}
Net assets 3,249 3170 2n2? 2735 7 6/9
Share capital and share premium 40 40 940 Q40 240
Reserves 1,736 1,728 1336 1323 1236
Totai equity attnbutable to equity holders 2,676 2 668 2276 2263 2176
Non-controlling interests 573 502 436 472 503
Total equity 3,249 3170 272 2735 2679

2017
Key operating staotistics
Gearing 24% 26% 27% 23% 10%
Earmings per share 38 1p 24 0p 199 34 0o &9 4p
Dividends per share &6.50p Mg 6 42p 13 590 22 74p
Hatel gross operating proht margin 32.2% 31 6% 341% 36 0% 350%
Occupancy 73 5% N a% 718% 74 2% 12 3%
Average room rate (€) £112.48 £106 78 £10019 £96 49 £96 25
RevPAR (£) £62 78 £/6 71 £7198 £71 55 £69 58

1 Dividerds per share neludes ord nary div derds and special dedends
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Yeal =ndes
7
Repartec
~urenne B
Qccupancy (%)
New Yarc 853 19
Regiona, Us 500 586
Total US 48 3 650
Londor 83.0 819
Rest of Eurepe 705 722
Total Europe 769 70
Singarccre 85.6 842
Rest o Asia b6 4 &0 4
Total Asia 73¢9 7
Austrclasia 812 ar3
Total Group 735 ne
Average Room Rate (£)
New Yore 19318 196 33 186 85
Regiona. US 103 23 1031 9812
Totat US 140 23 13934 338
Lendon 132 47 13083 130 83
Rest of Europe 7616 74 55 72 86
Tatal Eurape 10715 104 83 104 04
S.-ngapere 979 10G 41 2522
Rest of Asia 593 9943 32 66
Total Asig 97.37 99 &7 9381
Australasia 90.01 773 /184
Total Greup 112 &8 N 63 106 /8
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KEY OPERATING STATISTICS ©

s
H

A
i

.

!

Year ended

2007
Reported
currency "

RevPAR (E)

New York 144 B4 15303 145 64
Reg.onal US &1.90 60 41 5749
Total US 9579 09N 86 527
London 109.98 10716 10718
Rest of turope 53 66 5383 52 &l
Tatal Eurcpe 82.35 &0 85 8024
Sirgapore 83 83 84 58 80 21
Res: of Asia &4 39 6505 60 63
Total Asia na 72 61 68 21
Australasia 73.06 62 84 58 10
Total Group 82.78 4019 767N
Gross Operating Profit Margin (%)

New York 15.1 159
Reg.onal US a2 209
Total US 6.0 18 4
L.ondar 395 AQ 8
Res: of Lurope 2.2 91
Total Eurcpe 39.6 3’6
Singapore 405 408
Rest of Asia 34) 340
Totel Asia 369 370
Australosia 491 4685
Total Group 32.2 36

For comparability, the 31 December 2016 Average Room Rate and RevPAR have been transiated at average exchange rates for the year

ended 31 December 2017

*excluding managec franch sed and investment notels
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Grand Millennium Beijing Leaseho.d to year 20456 (hote.) G 268 514 0
Fortune Paza 7 Dongsanruan Middle Roca ieasehold to year 20156
Chaoyarg D strict 3eqirg 100020 PRC {underground car par<)
New World Millennium Hong Keng Hotel 75-year term fsom 28 111984 and may be 2850 464 50
{Owred by New Unity Holdings | irmited} renewable for g further 75 years
72 Mody Read Tamshatsu East
Kewloor Hong Kong
JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong fo-year term from 18 04 1985 and may be 10 69C &02 26
{Owned by New Unity Holdirgs Lirrited) renewable for o further 75 years (Part)
Pocific Pluce 88 Queensway
Horg Kerg
Millennium Hotel Sirih Jakarta Tne ttle s held urder ¢ Ho< Gung Bangunar 7 349 401 00
Jalan Fackragin 3, { e Rightte Bu ld) and a 40-yecr lease
Jokarta 10250 Indcores a wa 14 02 1984 and 22011986 for copreximate

site area of 7137 sg metres and 217 sq metres

respectively
Hotel MyStays Asakusabashi Freehold 564 139 37
1-5-5, Asakusabasn Tao-ku
Tokyo N1 0053 |Jonon
Hotel MyStays Kamata Freehold 49/ & 37
5-46-5 Kamcto Oto-ku
Tokyo 144-0052, |apan
Copthorne Orchid Hotel Penang Freehald 10329 307 100
Jalar Tarjurg Bungah 11200 Penong Malaysia
Grand Miltennium Kuala Lumpur Freehold 7 670 459 Q0
160 Jatar But B ntang
55100 Kuala Lumpu- Malaysia
Angsana Velavaru 50 year t Le commeancing from 26 081997 &1 N7 13 37
South Nilandhe Atoli
Republic of Maldives
Dhevanafushi Maldives Luxury Resort 50-year lease commencing from 53 576 k2 37
Meradhoo lsland 15 06 2006
Goofu Al fu Atolt
Republic of Maldives
The Hetitage Hotet Manila Fee simple 9 888 450 [+
Roxas Bou.evard at cosner of EDSA Pasay City,
Metropol tan Manila, Phiippires
Copthorne King's Hotel Singapare F9-year .case cemmencing fram 5637 30 34
403 tHavelock Roac $ ngapore 01 021968
Grand Copthorne Woterfront Hotel Singapore 20 year iease commencirg 1907 2006 and 0 860 574 3/
392 Hovelock Roaa Singapore extendakle for ¢ further 20 years
M Hotel Mreehold 2134 415 37

81 Arsan Road Siegapure
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MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES ¢ ET
[ L
Novetel Singapore Clorke Quay 97 years and 30 days leosehold interest 12925 403 37
177A Rwer Volley Road, Singooore cammencing from 02 04 1980
QOrchard Hotel Singapore Freehold a taa* 656 37
442 Orchard Reod Singopore
Studio M Hotel Singapore 99-yeor leose commencing from 2932 360 37
3 Nonson Road Singapore 26 02 2007
Millennium Seaul Hilton Freenold 8787 680 100
50 Sowol-ro, Jung-qu
Seoul. South Korea 100-802
Land Site in Seoul Freenold 1 564 100
Located at Chung-gu, Namdaeumro 5 Ga 652-1
Grand Hyatt Taipe: 50 years starting from 7 March 1990 14193 853 84
2 SengShou Road The lease agreement is extendaole for gnother
Toper Tawar 11051 30 years
* Inctudes Claymore Connect
Europe
1 1
Copthorhe Hotel Aberdeen Freehold 1302 a7 a3
122 Huntly Street
Aberdeen ABI0 15U, Scotland
Copthorne Hotel Birmingham Freehold 2188 2n 100
Paradise Circus,
Birmingham B3 3H]J, Ergland
Copthorne Hotel Cardiff-Caerdydd freehold 26,305 135 100
Copthorne Way Culverkouse Cross,
Cardiff CF5 6DH Wales
Coptherne Hotel Effingham Gatwick Freencld 161 878 122 100
Woest Park Road, Coptharne,
West Sussex RH10 3EU Englang
Copthorne Hotel Londan Gatwick Freenold 404 694 227 100
Copthorne Way Copthorne West Sussex
RH10 3PG England
Copthorne Hotel Manchester | easehold to yeor 2135 G800 166 00
Clippers Quay Salford Quays,
Manchester M50 3SN England
Copthorne Hotel Merry Hill-Dudley Freehold 13734 138 100

The Waterfront Level Street Brierley Hhill
Dudley West Midlandgs DY53TUR England
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Copthorne Motel Newcastle Freehold 22700 156 96
The Clese Quayside Newcaostle upon Tyne

NET 3RT England

Copthotne Hotel Plymouth Leusehod ta year 210 1853 135 160
Armoaa Way Plymouth PL1AR Ergland

Copthorne Hotel Slough-Windsar Freehold 6 880 219 100
C ppenham Lare S.cugh Berkskire

SUY2YE England

Copthorne Tara Hotel London Kensington Frechold 7535 833 100
Scorsdale Place Kens ngton Loragon

W8 58Y, England

Hard Days Night Hotel Liverpool Leasehe d to year 2129 5275 "0 130
Certral 84 ld'ngs North lohn Street

lwverpoo. | 2 6RR Frgland

Hilton Cambridge City Centre Hotel 125-year lease commencing 34600 198 37
Grand Arcade 20 Downing St from 25721990 and extendable

Camondge CB2 3DT Englard for afurther 50 years

The Lowry Hotel 150-yeor lease commencing 2200 165 37
50 Bearrrans Place from 18 G3 199/

Saiford Manchester

M3 5LH United Kingdom

The Bailey's Hotel London Freehotd 1923 212 160
140 Gloucester Road

London $W7 40H England

Millennium Gloucester Hotel Londan Kensington Freehold & 3458 610 100
Harnrgion Gardens

London SW7 4LH Englond

Millenniuvm Hotel Glasgow | easeho.d to year 2109 5,926 60 100
George Sguore Gasgow G2 1DS Scottand

Millennium Hotel London Knightsbridge Leasehoud to year 2091 80e 222 180
17 Sloane Street, Knightsbridge

London SWIX9NL tnglarag

Mitlennium Hotel London Mayfair Leaseho.d to year 2094 4260 338 160
44 Grosveror Sguare Mayfarr,

London WIK 2HP Englard

Millennium Hotel Paris Opéra Freehold 1093 163 100
12 Boulevard Haussmann

/5009 Paris France

Millennium Hatel Paris Charles de Gaulle Frechoid 1 &5/ 239 160

Zore Hoteuere Allée du Verger 95700
Roissy-en-France France
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Pullman Munich
Theodor-Dombart-Strasse 4
Murich 80805, Germany

Freehold

37

Grand Hotel Palace Rome
Via Veneto, 70 Rome 00187 taly

Freehold

a0t

86

100

The Chelsea Harbour Hotel

Chelsea Harbour London SWI0 0XG England

Leasehola to yecr 2112

2,561

158

100

North Americo

The Bostonian Boston

26 North Street

At Faneui Hall Marketplace Boston
MA 02109 USA

Freenold

2769

204

100

The Lokefront Anchorage
4800 Spenard Road. Ancrorage
AK G517 USA

Freencld

14159

245

100

Miltennmium Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles
506 South Grand Avenue Los Angeles
CAZO0N UsA

Freenold

11,305

683

100

Millenmum Butfale
2040 Walden Avenue
Buffalo, NY 14225, USA

| easehaold to year 2022
{with one 10-year cption)

31726

3

100

Millennium Harvest House Boulder
1345 28th Street
Boulder CO 80302 USA

Freeheld

64,019

269

100

Millennium Knickerbacker Hotel Chicago
163 Eost Walton Place Chicage
IL 60651 USA

freehold

2007

306

100

Mitlenniurm Hotel Cincinnati
150 Wes: Fifth Street Cincirrat
OH 45202, USA

Freehold

6.639

a7z

120

Millennium Hotet Durham
2800 Campus Walk Avenue, Durham
NC 27705 USA

Freehold

42814

316

100

Millennium Hotel Minneapolis
1313 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis
MMN 55403 USA

Leasehold to year 2030

4,537

321

100

Millennium Maxwell House Nashville
2025 Rosa L Farks Boulevard, Nashviile
N 37228, USA

| easehold to yecr 2030
(with two "O-year options)

287

100




Strategic Report Gevernance

Firarcia. stotements

Further infarmation

Milientium & Copthorne Hotels ple
Anpyal Revort & Accounts 2017

161

Millennium Broodwoy Hotel New York Frechold 1762 626 100
145 West 44*h Street, New York

NY 10034, USA

The Premier Hotel New York Freehold 360 124 160
133 Wes: 44:n Srreet New York

NY 10036 USA

Millennium Hilton New York ONE UN Plozg East tower freerotd/ 4 554 139 100
TUN Plaza 44-F Street ot 1st AvenLe West tower leasehold to

New Yor< NY 10017 USA year 2079

Millennium Hotel 5t Louis (closed) Freenold 17.033 780 100
200 Sauth dtn Sireet Stlous

MO 63107 USA

The McCormick Scottsdale Leascho d te year 2033 32 819 125 100
7401 North Scotisdale Read Gwith two 10 year ootions)

Scottsdale AZ 85208 USA

Millennium Hilton New York Downtown Freehold 1680 569 100
55 Church Street New York NY 10007 USA

Novotel New York Times Square Fee simple estate o leaseho.d nierest 1677 480 100
226 W 52rd Street New Yark NY 10019 LUSA and a leased fee irterest

Maingate Lakeside Resort Freehold Q3 194 475 100
77659 W irlo Bronsen Memora Higrway

Kiss mmee FL 34747 USA

Novotel Penthouse Leaseha.d to year 2080 307 100
1651-65 Broodway

New York NY 10019 USA

Comfort Inn Nedr Vail Beaver Creek Freehold 1209 |46 100
161 West Beaver Creek Boulevard Avon

CO 81620 UsA

Pine Lake Trout Club Freehold KKINeFZ & 100

17023 Chil'cathe Road Chagrin Falls
OH 44023 USA
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Australasia

Coptharne Hotel & Apartments Queenstown Lokeview Freencld/Strato tite 4N3 85 76
88 Frankton Rood

Queenstown New Zecland

Copthorne Hotel & Resort Bay of Islands teasehald land to year 62,834 180 37
Tau Henare Drive Paihia 202\ (witk a 30 year option)

New Zealand

Copthorne Haotel &t Resort Queenstown Lakefront Freenold 18 709 240 76
Corner Adelaide Street &t Frankton Rood

Queenstown New Zealand

Coptharne Hotel Auckland City Perpetual/Leasetoid ara 2495 L] 75
150 Ancac Avenue

Auckland New Zealard

M Social Auckland Freenald 247 130 76
196-200 Quay Street

Aucklard, New Zealand

Copthorne Hotel Palmerston Naorth Freehold 15514 a9 76
N0 Fazherbert Avenue

Palrrerston North New Zealand

Copthorne Hotel Rotorua Freenold 35935 na 76
Fenion Street

Rotorua, New Zealana

Coptharne Hatel Wellington Orientol Bay Freehold 3%04 118 76
100 Orental Parade,

Wellington New Zealand

lbis Perth Freehold 1480 192 37
334 Murray Street

Perth Western Australia, Australia

Kingsgate Hotel Dunedin Freehoid 2193 55 76
10 Stk Street,

Duneain, New Zecland

Kingsgate Hatel Greymouth Freehold/Perpetual 2807 98 76
32 Mawhera Quay teasehold lond

Greymouth New Zealand

Kingsgate Hotel Te Anau Freehold 8.819 94 76
20 Lakefront Brive

Te Anau New Zeoland

Mercure & lbis Brisbone intercannected at ground 3847 194/218 37
85-87 North Quay/ {evel, stuated on one

27-35 Turbot Street freehold title

Brisbane Queens.and Austraiic

Mercure Perth Strota freehotd 757 239 37

10 Irwin Street
Perth, Westerr Austrakio, Australio
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Millennium Hotel Queenstown Freeholg 7 453 220 76
Corner Frankton Road & Stanwey Street

Queenstown New Zea.ano

Millennrium Hotel Rotarua Freenoid/Perpetua. 1010% 227 76
Corner Eruera & Hinemary Streets leasehold lanz

Rotoruo New Zealand

Novotel Bnsbane Sorana volumetric freenold 6235 296 37
200 Cregk Stree”

Br.share Queersang Austraiia

Grand Millennium Ayckland Freghold 5910 452 a7
71-87 Moyora Drive Auckland New Zealand

Tanglin Shopping Centre Freehold & 029 100
Ashoppirg-cum-ofhce complex situated at

Tang.n Road Singapore w tnin the Orchord Road tounst d str ot

The Group owns 83 aut of 362 stratc-tiled un ts aad

325 car par< lots

Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo Freehold/ 1040130 7a
5 111 Girea Chuc Ku Leaschold - 30 years from 25 March 2009 {s:2creq)

Tokyo 104-0061

329 bedroom hotel

Biltmore Court & Tower Freehald 34 249 100
Situated at 500/520 South Grond Avenue Los Angeles CA 90071

Comprisirg the Court which tas 72 133 square metres Class B

lettable othce space within the Biltmore Fotel structure and tne

Tower which hos 12 116 square metres of Class A office space

Land site in Sunnyvale Freehold 3517 0a

Cryof Surryvale Co, fornia USA
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Chengdu Cityspring
North Yizhou Avenue Gaoxin District Chengdu Sichuan Province
the PRC

Comprsing commercial ard retail units

Leasenold o year 2049

23 367

36

Zuiderhof |
Jochthavenweg 121 Amsterdum the Netherlands
Comprising office space  archive space and 1M car park lots

Perpetua leasehold Grourd rert caid unul 2050

12 538

Pacrtgebouw Hoog Catharine

3rd Hoor up to and including the 9th 4oor of the Poartgebouw Haog
Catharrne Catharine Esplanade 13

351WK Utrecht, the Netherlands

Expecteo to comprise two hotels weth 320 hotel rooms in total on completion

Leasehold ta year 2069

N 404

36

Arena Towers

{Holiaay Inn/Holiday Inn Express Hotels)

Hoogoorddreef 86 and 68 Amsterdam, the Netnerlands comrpnsing 443 hate,
rooms and 509 car park lats

Perpetual leaseho.d
Ground rent paid unti, 2053

17 396

M Hotel Chengdu*

No 388, North Yizhou Averue Gaoxin District Chengdu, Sichuon Pravince
tne PRC

Comprising 194 hotel rooms ang suites

Leosehold 1o yeor 2049

19228
(Gross H area)

36

36

Crowne Plaza Chengdu Wenjiang & Holiday Inn Express Chengdu
Wenjiang Hotspring Hotels

No 81 A/B North Phoerix Street

Wenjang District Chengdu. Sichuan Province tne PRC
Comprisng 408 hotel rooms and suites and a hot spring facility

Leasehold o year 2051

81041
(Gross A area)

*Hatel moraged by the Mil.ennium fi Coothgrne Hotels Group
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MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE

HOTELS WORLDWIDE

ASIA

China

Crowne Ploza & Mouday Inr Express Cnengdu Wenjarg Hotsoning Hotels
Grand M llenmum Be |ing

Grand M llennum Snangha Hongguac

M Horel Chengdu

Millenrun Harourview Hotel X gmer
Millenmiur Hotet Cnergdu

Millenriure Hotet Fug ng

Millenmum Hotet Wux

Millenmiurr Residences @ Beiing Forture Puore
Millenmure Resart Hangzhau

Hong Kong
JW Marr oft Hote! Hong Korg
New World M-llenrium Hong Kong Hate

Indonesia
Millenniur Hatel Sk jakata

Japen

tiotel MyStoys Asakusanash

Hotel MyStays Kamora

Muilenmum M tsui Garden Hotel Tokyo

Malaysia

Coprhorne Hotet Cameron Highlands
Cop:horne Orchia Hatel Penang
Grand M llennium Kuala tumpur

Maldives
Argsara Velovary
Dhevara‘ush Mawdives Luxery Resort

Philippines
The Heritage Hotel Marila

Singapore

Copthorne King s Hotel Singapore

Grand Copthorne Waierfrort Hote Sirgaoore
™M Horel

M Sociol Sngapere

Novatel § nganare Ciarke Quay

Orchord Hotel Singapore

Stud & M Hatel Singapore

South Korea
Mitlenmium Seoul Hilign

Taiwan
Grond Hyatt 1a per
Milternnium Vee Hetel Ta chung

Thoiland
Milienniurr Resort Patong Pruket

AUSTRALASIA

Australia

Ib s Perth

Mercure & ikus Brismane
Mereure Perth

Novotel Brisbane

New Zecland

Copthorne Hotel Auck.ard City

Coptherne totel & Apartments Queenstowr Laxeview
Copthorne totel Grand Certrol New Plymouth
Copthorre Haotel Palmerston Nartk

Copthorne Hotel & Resort Bay of Islards
Caoptharre Hotel & Resort Hokiarga

Coptherre Hotel B Resart Queenstown _ckefror-
Copthorre Hotel & Reson Solway Park Wairarapo
Coptherne Hotel Retorua

Copthorne Hotel Welington Oriental Bay

Grand Miiler nium Aucklang

Kingsgare Hatel Autolodge Painio

€ingsgare Hotet Duned n

Kingsgaie Hoel Greymouth

Kingsgate Hotel Te Anau

Kingsgate Hotel The Avenue Wanganu
Millennium Hotel Queenstown

Millennium Hotel Rotoreo

Millennium Hotel & Resort Manuels Taupe

M Social toet Auckland

MIDDLE EAST'

iraq

Coptherne Hotel Baranan

Grand Millermum Sulaimran Hoted
Millenniim Kurd stan Hatel and Spa

Jordan
Grand Millenniun Hotel Armmar

Kuwait
Al-Jahra Coptnorne Hotel 8 Resort
Millenmurm Hotel and Convent an Centre Kuwa t

Oman

Grand Miller numr Muscat

Millenrium Executive Apartmerts Musca:
Millennium Resort Mussarah

Palestine
Millenrum Palestire Ramallak

Qatar

Coptharne tHatel Doka
Kingsgate Hotel Doha

Milienrium Hotel Noha
Msltenruum Flaza Boha

1 Asc resull of the sole of MBC s oint venture Plerest = the G Lp s “iddle tast soerating ontity M e reur & Coptnerme M aawe ostHlo.dinrgs imitea { MCME 4L 3 to the ciner sharenoider o
Decarrrer 20'6 croper. es *hat were prav ously snewr as ot ng maraged oy ire DreLD ore now shewn ay frarchsed o though as of ke date keteal tne orapend es corarte .o bo moroged or

rranersed oy MCM HL wr support fremire Group wnder o rmaster ' cense ana serv ces orrengerr ert
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MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE

HOTELS WORLDWIDE

Saudi Arabia

Coptharne by Milennium Riyadh
Makkah Millenn Lm Hotel

Makkah Millenmium Hotel Towers Hotel
M Hotel Makkah

Millernium Al Ageeq Hotel

Miliennium Hail Hotel

Millern um Taiba Hetel Madingb

United Arab Emirates

Bab Al Qosr Hotel

Copthorne Hotel Dubal
Copthorne Hotel Sharjah
Grand Miliennium A, Waohdo
Grand Mitlenmiurm Dubon

K ngsgate Hotel Abu Dhab

M Hetel Dawntown by Millennium
Millern um Awrport Hote, Dubai
Milennium Hotel Fujairah
Millenn um Plaza Hotel Duoao

EUROPE

Frange
Millenn.um Hotel Paris Charles de Gaule
Muternium Hotel Parnis Opéra

Germany
Pullman Hote! Munich

Geargia
The Biitmore Hotel Tbilisi

ltaly
Grand Hotel Palace Rome

UK

Conthorne Holel Aberdeen

Copthorne Hote: Birmingham

Copthorne Hotel Cordiff-Caerdydd
Capthorne Hete, Effingham Gatwick
Copthorne Hatel Lordon Gatwick
Copthorne Hotel Manchester

Copthorne Hotel Merry Hill Dudley
Copthorne Hoter Newcastle

Caothorne Hatel Plymouth

Copthorne Hates Sheffield

Coptharne Hotel Slough-Windsor
Copthorne Tara Hotel London Kensington
Hard Days Night Hotel Liverpoalt

Hiltan Cambridge Ciy Centre Hatel
Millennium & Copthorne Hotels at Chetsea Faotbail Club
Millenn um Cloucester Hotel London Kensington
Millennium Hotel Glasgew

Millenm.um Hotel London Knightsbridge
Milennium Hotel London Mayfawr
Millennum Madeyski Hotel Reading

The Bailey's Hotel | andon

The Chelsea Harbaur Hote!

I he Lowry Hotel

PR

£
e
o
-
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THE AMERICAS

USA

Comfort Inn Near Vail Beover Creek
Maingate Lakeside Resort

Millennium Bitrrore Hotel Los Angeles
™M lienrum Broadway Hotel New York
Muleamum Harvest House Boulder

™M llennium H lton New York Downtown
Millennium Hiltor New York ONE UN Plaza
™M lienmum Hotel Buffale

Millennium Hatel Cincinnat

M (ienmum Hotel Durham

Millennium Hotel Minneapous

M llernnium Hotel St Lows {closed)
Millennium Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago
M lennum Maxwell House Hotel Nashwville
Novotel New York T mes Squore

Pire Lake Trout Cluks

The Bostorian Bostor

The Lokefront Anchorage

The McCormick Scottsdale

The Prern er Hotel New York

CORPORATE OFFICES

Asia

Milennium & Copthorne International Limred
390 Hovelock Rood

#02-01King s Centre

Singapore 169662

Tel +[65] 6664 8688

Fax +[&5) 6732 5435

Ema | sales@millennumbotels com

Australasia

Millennmium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited

Level 13 280 Queen Street

Auckland 1010

New Zealand

Tel +[64](9) 353 5010

Fax + "64] (9) 309 3244

Emal sales mareting@rmillenniumhote s co nz

Middie East

Millennium & Copthorne Middle East & Afnca
H Haotel Office Tower [3rd floor)

Sheikh Zeyed Road

PO Box 194686

Cubai

Uriated Arab Emirates

Tel +[971](4) 3679 2000

Fox +[971] (4) 35} 0508

cherry tangpos@millenniurmhotets com
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Europe

Millenniurr & Copthorre Hotels ple
Corporate Headquarters
Scarsdale Ploce Kensirgtor
London W8 58Y, UK

Tet ~[44](0) 207872 2444

Fax - [44](0) 20 7872 2460

Emall rarketing ec@m lienn urr notels com

North America

Millenrurr Hotels ond Resorts
1345 281k Street

Beulder CO

80302 Ur ted States

Ter -3 303779 2000

Fax + {17303 779 200

tma | guestcomment@milenr umrclels com

GLOBAL SALES

Asia

Chna Beyng +[86]10 6533 0749
Ching Chengdu - [86, 28 8517 2000
Ching Guagngzhoo +[852] 29218328
Ching Srangha - [86] 21 6468 8099
Hong Korg ~ {85212921 8328
Singapore +"65] 6664 8888

Tapen +[886)(2) 2729 3299

Australasia

Sycney +{61f(2) 9358 5080
Aucaang +[64](9) 353 5010
Well ngion + [64](4) 382 0770

Europe

France - [33](0) 149491617
ltaly +[39] (Q) 6 4201 2198
UK +[44](0) 207872 2444

North America
New York +12127827860

Finarciastatements

Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels ple -'67
Further infarmation Anrua Report & Accounts 2017

international reservations

Asig

China North 4108 0065 00558 (ol ree)
Ch na Soutr +108 0026 52531 (ail free)
Harg Kong +800 96 2541

Irdonesia «001 803 65 6541

Malaysia 11800 80 1063

Singaoore +65 67357575

Tamar +0G8 01 6515 05 (toll free)

Tha lana +001 830 65 6544 (tol free)

Australasia
Ausrolia +1 800124 420
New Zeatund +0 800 804 228

Middle Eost

UAF - {971} (4) 309 9000
(Sundoy Thursday)

8 00arr - 5 COpm

Europe

When in the folowirg courines p.ease use this tol, free number

G0 800 846 b6 8084

Ausira Belgiurm Denmark Tirana (pref x 990 nsiead 00)
Germany Ireand lialy Tre Netherlands Nerwoy Portugal Soan,
Sweden & Switzerlard

France 0800909 584

UK 0800 41 4/ 4] Ma'n reservations

0845 30 20 00" 1 e sure bookings

0845 30 20 007 Meet ngs and Everts bouirgs

Narth America

When in the following countries please use this tol. free numbes
+1 866 866 086

Canada Puerto Reo USA 8 US Virgin Islonas
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Analysis of shareholders as at 31 December 2017

1-1G000 573 77 54% 725,560 022%
10001 - 25000 43 582% 698 942 022%
25001 - 50,000 21 2 84% 703 466 022%
50001 -100 000 22 298% 1 658 035 051%
100 001 — 500,000 44 595% 10388 N6 320%
500,001 -1000 000 8 108% 5611 592 173%
1000 OO - Highest 28 379% 304974444 93 20%
Total 739 100 00% 324,740,755 100 00%

Shareholders can find a wealth of infermation on the Company at
www millenniumhaotels com including

* regular updates about our business.

* hotel and other property infermation,

« the ability to book a room at one of our hotels around the world,

= share price information,

= financial results and investor information and

= our financial catendar which includes dividend payment dates
and amounts

Electronic shareholder communications

Registering for online communication gives sharehaolders more
control of their sharehclding The registration process 1s via our
registrar's secure website www shareview co uk

Once registered shareholders are able to

= elect how we communicate with them,

* amend therr datails,

+ amend the way dvidends are received. and
¢ buy or sel! shares oniine

This does not mean shareholders can no longer receve paper
coples of documents We are able to offer d range of services and
tailer communication to meet their needs

Managing your shares
Please contact our registrar, Equiniti, to manage your shareholding
if you wish to

= ragister for electronic communications,

« transfer your shares,

« change your registered name or address,

¢ register a lost share certificate and obtain a replacement,
* consolidate your share holdings.

* manage your dividend payments. and
« notify the death of @ sharehotder

You can also manage your shareholding online by registering for
Shareview at www shareview co uk When contacting Equiniti or
registering anbine, you should have your shareholder reference
number at hand This can be found on your share certificate or
lotest dividend tax voucher

Contact details for our reagistrar

Equiniti. Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing. West Sussex
BN99 6DA. United Kingdom

Telephone 0371384 2343*
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7047
Textphone 0371 384 2255
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7028

* L nes are open from 8 30 om to 5 30 pm Maonday to Froay UKume

ShareGift

it may be that you have a small number of shares which would cost
you mere to sell than they are worth It 1s possible to donate these to
ShareGift, o registered charty, who provide o free service to enable
you to dispose charitably of such shares More information on this

service can be abtained from www sharegift org or by calling +44
(0) 207 930 3737
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Be aware of share fraudsters

Sharehclders are cautioned to be very wary of ony unsolicited
adwice, offers to buy shares at a discount sell your shares at
prerm:um or offers of free reports on the Company

if you do receive such an approach you are encouraged to take the
following steps

« ootain the fuill name of the persan and organisation ana make a

recard of any other information they give you, for example

telephone number, address or web address

# the caller persists, simply hang up and

= report the matter to the Financial Conduct Authonty ( FCA™) so that
they can investigate

If you suspect that you nave beer opprecched by fraudsters please
tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fea org
uk/ scams where you can find out more about investment scams
You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpling on 0800 111 6768

You are cdvised to dedal only with financial serices firms that are
authorised by the FCA Check the firm 1s properly cuthorised by the
FCA before getting involved by visiting www fca org uk/register I
you do deal with an unauthorised firm you w.ll not be eligible to
receive payment under the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme if anything goes wrong

if you hove lost money to investment fraud you should report it to
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or online at www actionfraud

police uk

Find out more at www feca org uk/scamsmart

Further infarmation

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Contacts and advisers

Registered office

Victornia Heuse, Victona Road, Horley, Surrey RH6 7AF,
United Kingdom

Registered in England and Wales No 3004377

Corporate headquarters
Scarsdale Place, Kensington London W8 55Y
United Kingdom

Stockbroker
Credit Suisse International

Auditor
KPMG LLP

T

S T ®, "
v e?‘lw\!\:’ e
NA N cEoN oA L L

Solicitor
Hogan Lovells Internationat LLP

Principal bankers

Bank of Amenca Merrill Lynch

DBS Bank Lta

Mizuho Bank Ltd

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corperation Limited

Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Sumitomo Mitsut Banking Corporation

MUFG Bank. Ltd (formerly The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsutoishy UF], Ltd }
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registrar
Equinti Linmited
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2017 final dividend record date 16 March 2018
First quarter’s results announcement 4 May 2018
Annual general meeting 4 May 2018
2017 final dividend payment 1 May 2018
Interim results announcement 3 August 2018
Third quarters results announcement 2 November 2018

Please refer to the Company's website for further updates which can be found at hitps //investors millenniumhotels com/financiol/
financicl-calendar
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Further Information

We value feedback and welcome
comments and queshons you may
have regarding this publication

Please email us at:
companysecretary@millenniumhatels.co.uk

or write to:

The Company Secretary
Millennium & Copthorme Hotels pic
Scarsdale Place

Kensington

London W8 55Y

United Kingdom

FHC* CON1T785

This documeni s pnnted on Galene Satin, a paper
contaning 15% recycled fibre and 85% virgin fiore
sourced from well managed, responsible, FSC® certified
forests The pulp usec in this product 1s bleached using
an demental chionne free (ECF) process

Managed by Black&Callow
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Corporate headquarters:
Scarsdale Place

Kensington

London W8 55Y

United Kingdom

www.millenniumhotels.co.uk

Registered address:
Victoria House
Victoria Road
Horley

Surrey
RH6 7AF



